
 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING  

Monday, April 08, 2024 at 7:00 PM 

City Hall 

AGENDA 

    

1. Call to Order 

2. Flag Salute 

3. Roll Call 

4. Presentation 

5. Approval of Agenda 

6. Consent Agenda 

A. Minutes 

B. Audit of Reports 

1. Claims          #113573, 1000 - 1057     =     $278,812.21          

March 26 - April 8, 2024 

2. Payroll          #1051 - 1054                    =     $115,328.28 

March 29, 2024 

VOID 

7. Reports 

8. Audience Participation 
The City Council encourages public participation during meetings of the City Council and 
welcomes your comments. This time is set-aside for you to speak to the City Council on any 
issue. The Council ordinarily takes non-agenda matters under advisement before taking 
action. You are also invited to comment on action items as they are considered during the 
meeting. Individual speakers will be limited to three (3) minutes each in addressing the City 
Council.  When addressing the Council, please speak clearly and audibly and state your 
name and address for the record. 

9. Discussion 

A. Ordinance 1233-24, Ziply Fiber Franchise Agreement 

B. Ordinance 1234-24, Street Racing  

C. Fee Schedule Update for Rentals 

1



D. Resolution 1275-24, Public Works Equipment Surplus List 

E. Ordinance 1235-24, 2024 Budget Amendment  

F. IAM&AW Collective Bargaining Agreement 2024-2026 

10. New Business 

11. Old Business 

12. Ordinances & Resolution 

A. Resolution 1274-24, King County Parks Capital Project Grant Agreement 

B. Resolution 1273-24, Traffic School Fee 

13. Next Workshop 

14. Adjournment 

 

2



 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING  

Monday, March 25, 2024 at 7:00 PM 

City Hall 

MINUTES 

    

1. Call to Order 

Mayor Linnell called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M. 

2. Flag Salute 

3. Roll Call 

PRESENT 
Mayor Troy Linnell 
Council Member Gordon Cook 
Council Member Timothy Fairley 
Council Member William Thomas 
Council Member David White 
 
ABSENT 
Council Member Lynda Osborn 
 

4. Presentation 

5. Approval of Agenda 

Motion made by Council Member Fairley, Seconded by Council Member Cook. 
Voting Yea: Council Member Cook, Council Member Fairley, Council Member Thomas, 
Council Member White 
 

6. Consent Agenda 

A. Minutes 

Motion made by Council Member Thomas, Seconded by Council Member Cook. 
Voting Yea: Council Member Cook, Council Member Fairley, Council Member Thomas, 
Council Member White 

B. Audit of Reports 

1. Payroll                                         =     $ 78,402.51 
March 15, 2024 

VOID #113351 & 113517 

3

Section 6, ItemA.



7. Reports 

Council Member White - None 

Council Member Cook -  We has finance committee last Wednesday. We discussed indirect 
cost allocation.  

Council Member Fairley -  None 

Council Member Thomas - Going to Good Eggs on Wednesday. 

Chief Schrimpscher -  I will be doing a presentation at the next meeting on the traffic 
numbers.  I have applied for a traffic safety grant. Since the beginning of the year we have 
made 1331 traffic stops.  We are doing extra traffic patrols that are paid for by the Traffic 
Safety Commission. The Mayor, City Administrator and myself were talking and at the next 
workshop  we will be taking a look at the traffic data to see where we can lower the speed 
limit and what speed limits make sense.  Officer Rosario is attending a 40 hour crisis 
intervention training this week.  Officer Dubuois attended a one day class on people in 
distress.  I have three officers taking online Field Training Officer training through an 
accredited college . It is self paced.  We will begin the hiring process to replace Officer 
Fajaro after April 1st. I anticipate a start date  June 1st at the earliest. I have had five people 
who were interested so far.  

City Administrator Jessica Griess - Jessica gave a powerpoint presentation on the hard 
work that Public Works crew has done on the ditch maintenance along 167 and 9th.  They 
jetted out storm drains and cleaned out the catch basins. The new website should be up by 
May 1st.  There is a supply issue with the new phone system.  We will be doing time studies 
with Julie and Dana to update allocations for indirect costs.  Easter event will be on 
Saturday.  Recycling event will be on April 20th from 9-3. Fishing Derby will be in May. the Y 
will be doing open swim from 11-1. TheY is also doing an after school program.  The Sound 
Garden is installed.  

Mayor Linnell -  I met with several companies about coming to our location to perform 
maintenace on our public works equipment.  Several reasons for the decision are the variety 
of equipment that we have.  They will also be able to keep records on the maintenance. 
Most importantly is I think it is important that the team is out working in the city.  I 
attended  Good Eggs with Chief Schrimpscher.  The speaker was Dow Constentine.  King 
County Public health is out of money. I also met with King County Metropolitan MISWAC. 
The discussion was about  what to do about closing of the landfills by 2035.   

8. Audience Participation 
The City Council encourages public participation during meetings of the City Council and 
welcomes your comments. This time is set-aside for you to speak to the City Council on any 
issue. The Council ordinarily takes non-agenda matters under advisement before taking 
action. You are also invited to comment on action items as they are considered during the 
meeting. Individual speakers will be limited to three (3) minutes each in addressing the City 
Council.  When addressing the Council, please speak clearly and audibly and state your 
name and address for the record. 

9. Discussion 

4

Section 6, ItemA.



A. Ordinance 1233-24, Ziply Fiber Franchise Agreement 

Emily with Ogden Murphy went over the Ziply Fiber Franchise Agreement with council 
and answered any questions that they had 

B. Ordinance 1234-24, Street Racing  

Chief Schrimpscher went over the ordinance prohibiting street racing and spectating of 
street racing within the city.  

C. King County Parks, Capital Project Grant Agreement 

City Administrator Jessica Griess discussessed the one million dollar grant for the David 
E. Hill Wetland Preserve. 

D. Resolution 1273-24, Traffic School Fee 

Chief Schrimpscher discussed the Traffic School  Fee increase. 

10. New Business 

11. Old Business 

12. Ordinances & Resolution 

13. Next Workshop 

A. Executive Session 

For the purpose of discussing personnel issues with legal counsel pursuant to RCW 
42.30.110(1)(g) 

The Council Members adjourned at 7:37 for the purpose of discussing personnel issues 
with legal counsel pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(g)  and returned at 7:48 

14. Adjournment 

Mayor Linnell adjourned the meeting at 7:48 P.M. 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

              

Dana Parker – City Clerk               Troy Linnell – Mayor  

 

5

Section 6, ItemA.



 

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING  

Monday, March 25, 2024 at 6:00 PM 

City Hall 

MINUTES 

    

1. Call to Order 

Mayor Pro Tem Fairley called the meeting to order at 6:00 

2. Roll Call 

PRESENT 
Council Member Gordon Cook 
Mayor Pro Tem Timothy Fairley 
Council Member William Thomas 
Council Member David White 

Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Fairley, Seconded by Council Member Cook to excuse 
Council Member Osborn. Voting Yea: Council Member Cook, Mayor Pro Tem Fairley, 
Council Member Thomas, Council Member White 
 

3. Approval of Agenda 

Motion made by Council Member Thomas, Seconded by Council Member Cook. 
Voting Yea: Council Member Cook, Mayor Pro Tem Fairley, Council Member Thomas, 
Council Member White 
 

4. Presentations 

5. Discussion 

A. Solid Waste Contract 

City Administrator Jessica Griess gave an overview to Council on BinThere Consulting. 
She went over the three scopes of work and budget. They were Solid Waste Collection 
Contract Management, Solid Waste Collection Contract Procurement and Solid Waste 
Collection Contract On-Call Technical Assistance. Council asked several questions and 
requested that Jeanette with BinThere attend a workshop to answer their questions.  

6. Audience Participation 
The City Council encourages public participation during meetings of the City Council and 
welcomes your comments. This time is set-aside for you to speak to the City Council on any 
issue. The Council ordinarily takes non-agenda matters under advisement before taking 
action. You are also invited to comment on action items as they are considered during the 
meeting. Individual speakers will be limited to three (3) minutes each in addressing the City 

6

Section 6, ItemA.



Council.  When addressing the Council, please speak clearly and audibly and state your 
name and address for the record. 

7. Adjournment 

Mayor Pro Tem Fairley adjourned the meeting at 6:44 

ATTEST: 

 

              

Dana Parker – City Clerk               Tim Fairley – Mayor Pro Tem 

 

 

7

Section 6, ItemA.



 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL  

AGENDA BILL # 

City of Algona 

200 Washington Blvd. 

Algona, WA 98001 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

City Council Agenda Packet  04-08-2024  

ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT: 
 

   Ordinance 1233-24, Ziply Fiber Franchise  

   Agreement 

Agenda Date: April 8th, 2024   

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 

Mayor   
City Administrator  X 

City Attorney x x 
City Clerk  x 

Finance Dept   
PW/Utilities   

Planning Dept   
 Community Services   

Cost Impact: Police Dept   
Fund Source:  Finance Committee   
Timeline: 1st review - 3/25/2024 Planning Commission   

                  2nd review – 4/8/24 Civil Service Committee   
     

Staff Contact: Jessica Griess, City Administrator 

Attachments: Ordinance 1233-24; Ziply Fiber Agreement 

- 

SUMMARY STATEMENT:  

  Ziply Fiber submitted for a Franchise Agreement with the City in November 2023. This agreement 
presented has been put together by our attorney, given to the applicant for their input, and now it is for review 
by the Council.   

COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:  

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  

 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date:  Action: Vote:   

 

 

AB24-0120 

8

Section 9, ItemA.



{DPK2796234.DOCX;9/00073.080022/ } 1 
4879-5919-2719, v. 1 
{NMM4890-0990-1217;2/13150.000016/} 
} 

ORDINANCE NO. 1233-24 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF ALGONA, WASHINGTON, 
GRANTING TO ZIPLY FIBER PACIFIC, LLC DBA ZIPLY FIBER AND ITS 
AFFILIATES, SUCCESSORS, AND ASSIGNS THE RIGHT, PRIVILEGE, 
AUTHORITY, AND NONEXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE FOR FIVE YEARS TO 
CONSTRUCT, MAINTAIN, OPERATE, REPLACE, AND REPAIR A 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS NETWORK IN, ACROSS, OVER, ALONG, 
UNDER, THROUGH, AND BELOW THE PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY OF 
THE CITY OF ALGONA, WASHINGTON. 
 

 

 
 
WHEREAS, Ziply Fiber Pacific, LLC dba Ziply Fiber (the “Franchisee”) has 

requested that the City Council grant a nonexclusive franchise (this “Franchise”) for 
purposes of operating and maintaining a telecommunications network; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has the authority to grant franchises for the use of its 

streets and other public properties pursuant to RCW 35A.47.040; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Algona Municipal Code requires persons who are seeking to 

operate and maintain wireline telecommunications facilities in City rights-of-way to obtain 
a franchise to do so; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City is willing to grant the rights requested by Franchisee for a 

wireline franchise subject to certain terms and conditions, which are acceptable to both 
parties. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALGONA, 

WASHINGTON, DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. FRANCHISE GRANTED. Franchisee is granted a non-exclusive 

franchise for the transmission of wireline telecommunications in, through, over, and under 
the rights-of-way of the City of Algona, in accordance with the terms and conditions of the 
franchise language detailed in Section 3 of this Ordinance. 

 
Section 2. EFFECTIVE DATE. In compliance with RCW 35A.47.040, this 

Ordinance shall take effect five (5) days after its passage, approval, and publication of an 
approved summary thereof consisting of the title, all as required by law (“Effective Date”). 

 
Section 3. TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF FRANCHISE. The following provisions 

establish the terms and conditions of the franchise granted herein: 
 

 

9

Section 9, ItemA.



{DPK2796234.DOCX;9/00073.080022/ } i 
{NMM4890-0990-1217;2/13150.000016/} 
} 

Table of Contents 

Page 

Section 1 .  Franchise Granted. .............................................................................................. 3 

Section 2 .  Authority Limited to Occupation of Public Rights-of-Way 
for Services.................................................................................................................................. 4 

Section 3 .  Non-Exclusive Franchise Grant ....................................................................... 5 

Section 4 .  Location of Telecommunications Network Facilities ................................. 5 

Section 5 .  Relocation of Telecommunications Network Facilities. ............................ 6 

Section 6 .  Undergrounding of Facilities .......................................................................... 10 

Section 7 .  Maps and Records ............................................................................................. 12 

Section 8 .  Work in the Rights-of-Way .............................................................................. 13 

Section 9 .  One Call Locator Service ................................................................................. 16 

Section 10 .  Safety Requirements. ..................................................................................... 16 

Section 11 .  Work of Contractors and Subcontractors................................................. 18 

Section 12 .  Restoration after Construction .................................................................... 18 

Section 13 .  Emergency Work/Dangerous Conditions. ................................................ 19 

Section 14 .  Recovery of Costs, Taxes, and Fees .......................................................... 21 

Section 15 .  Indemnification. ............................................................................................... 23 

Section 16 .  Insurance. .......................................................................................................... 26 

Section 17 .  Abandonment of Franchisee’s Telecommunications 
Network. ...................................................................................................................................... 29 

Section 18 .  Security - Bonding. ......................................................................................... 30 

Section 19 .  Remedies to Enforce Compliance. ............................................................. 31 

Section 20 .  Forfeiture and Revocation............................................................................. 32 

Section 21 .  Non-Waiver ........................................................................................................ 33 

Section 22 .  City Ordinances and Regulations ............................................................... 33 

10

Section 9, ItemA.



 ii 
4879-5919-2719, v. 1 
{NMM4890-0990-1217;2/13150.000016/} 
} 

Section 23 .  Cost of Publication .......................................................................................... 33 

Section 24 .  Survival .............................................................................................................. 33 

Section 25 .  Assignment. ...................................................................................................... 34 

Section 26 .  Extension ........................................................................................................... 35 

Section 27 .  Entire Agreement ............................................................................................. 36 

Section 28 .  Eminent Domain .............................................................................................. 36 

Section 29 .  Vacation ............................................................................................................. 36 

Section 30 .  Notice .................................................................................................................. 36 

Section 31 .  Severability. ...................................................................................................... 37 

Section 32 .  Compliance with All Applicable Laws. ...................................................... 37 

Section 33 .  Amendment. ...................................................................................................... 37 

Section 34 .  Attorney Fees ................................................................................................... 38 

Section 35 .  Hazardous Substances .................................................................................. 38 

Section 36 .  Licenses, Fees, and Taxes ............................................................................ 38 

Section 37 .  Miscellaneous. .................................................................................................. 39 

Section 38 .  Acceptance ........................................................................................................ 40 

 

11

Section 9, ItemA.



 3 
4879-5919-2719, v. 1 
{NMM4890-0990-1217;2/13150.000016/} 
} 

 This Franchise is entered into in Algona, Washington, by and between the City of 

Algona, a Washington municipal corporation (hereinafter “the City”), and Ziply Fiber 

Pacific, LLC dba Ziply Fiber (the “Franchisee”).  The City and Franchisee are sometimes 

referred to hereinafter collectively as the “parties.” 

Section 1.  Franchise Granted. 

  Pursuant to RCW 35A.47.040, the City hereby grants to the 

Franchisee, its affiliates, heirs, successors, legal representatives, and assigns, subject to 

the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth, a Franchise for a period of five (5) years, 

beginning on the Effective Date of this ordinance. This franchise will automatically renew 

for an additional five (5) year period, unless either party provides at least ninety (90) days’ 

written notice of its intent not to renew. 

  This Franchise ordinance grants Franchisee the right, privilege, and 

authority to construct, operate, maintain, replace, relocate, repair, upgrade, remove, 

excavate, acquire, restore, and use the Facilities, as defined in Section 2.1 , for its 

telecommunications network, in, under, on, across, over, through, along, or below the 

public Rights-of-Ways located in the City of Algona, as approved pursuant to City codes 

and permits issued pursuant to this Franchise.  Public “Rights-of-Way” means all public 

streets and property granted or reserved for, or dedicated to, public use for street 

purposes, together with public property granted or reserved for, or dedicated to, public 

use for walkways, sidewalks, bikeways and horse trails, whether improved or unimproved, 

including the air rights, sub‑surface rights and easements related thereto. Rights-of-Way 

for the purpose of this Franchise do not include: buildings, other City-owned physical 

facilities, parks, poles, conduits, fixtures, real property or property rights owned by the 

City, or similar facilities or property owned by or leased to the City.  Franchisee is required 

to obtain a lease or similar agreement for the usage of any City or third party owned poles, 

conduit, fixtures, or structures.     

 

 

 

 

12

Section 9, ItemA.



 4 
4879-5919-2719, v. 1 
{NMM4890-0990-1217;2/13150.000016/} 
} 

Section 2.  Authority Limited to Occupation of Public Rights-of-Way for Services. 

  The authority granted herein is a limited authorization to occupy and 

use the Rights-of-Way throughout the City (the “Franchise Area”). The Franchisee is 

authorized to place its Facilities in the Rights-of-Way only consistent with this Franchise, 

the Algona Comprehensive Plan, the Algona Public Works Standards, and the Algona 

Municipal Code (collectively, the “Codes”). Nothing contained herein shall be construed 

to grant or convey any right, title, or interest in the Rights-of-Way of the City to the 

Franchisee other than for the purpose of providing telecommunications services. The 

following “Services” are permitted under this Franchise: high speed data and fiber optic 

services, internet protocol-based services (including voice over internet protocol), internet 

access services, conduit and dark fiber leasing, telephone, and data transport services 

conveyed using wireline facilities.  For the purposes of this Franchise the term Facilities 

excludes “microcell” facilities, “minor facilities,” “small cell facilities,” all as defined by 

RCW 80.36.375, and small wireless facilities as defined by 47 CFR 1.6002, including 

towers and new base stations and other similar facilities used for the provision of 

“personal wireless services” as defined by RCW 80.36.375 (collectively “Personal 

Wireless Services”).   

  This Franchise does not grant the right to offer cable internet services 

or Cable Services as those terms are defined in 47 U.S.C. § 522(6) by wireline 

transmission. 

  No right to install any facility, infrastructure, wires, lines, cables, or 

other equipment, on any City property other than a Right-of-Way, or upon private property 

without the owner’s consent, or upon any City, public, or privately-owned poles or 

conduits is granted herein.  Nothing contained within this Franchise shall be construed to 

grant or convey any right, title, or interest in the Rights-of-Way of the City to Franchisee 

other than for the purpose of providing the Services, or to subordinate the primary use of 

the Right-of-Way as a public thoroughfare.  If Franchisee desires to expand the Services 

provided within the City, it shall request a written amendment to this Franchise.  If 

Franchisee desires to use City-owned property, or to site new structures within the Rights-

13

Section 9, ItemA.



 5 
4879-5919-2719, v. 1 
{NMM4890-0990-1217;2/13150.000016/} 
} 

of-Way, it shall enter into a separate lease, site specific agreement, or license agreement 

with the City.   

  Franchisee shall have the right, without prior City approval, to offer or 

provide capacity or bandwidth to its customers consistent with this Franchise provided: 

(a) Franchisee at all times retains exclusive control over its telecommunications 

system, Facilities and Services and remains responsible for constructing, installing, and 

maintaining its Facilities pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Franchise;  

(b) Franchisee may not grant rights to any customer or lessee that are greater 

than any rights Franchisee has pursuant to this Franchise; and  

(c) Such customer or lessee shall not be construed to be a third-party 

beneficiary under this Franchise.  

 
Section 3.  Non-Exclusive Franchise Grant.  This Franchise is a non-exclusive 

franchise and is granted upon the express condition that it shall not in any manner prevent 

the City from granting other or further franchises in, along, over, through, under, below, 

or across any said Rights-of-Way.  This Franchise shall in no way prevent or prohibit the 

City from using any of said roads, streets, or other public properties or affect its jurisdiction 

over them or any part of them, and the City shall retain power to make all necessary 

changes, relocations, repairs, maintenance, establishment, improvement, dedication of 

same as the City may deem fit, including the dedication, establishment, maintenance, 

and improvement of all new Rights-of-Way, thoroughfares and other public properties of 

every type and description. 

Section 4.  Location of Telecommunications Network Facilities.   

  Franchisee may locate its Facilities anywhere within the Franchise 

Area consistent with and subject to the City’s Algona Standards for Public Works 

Engineering and Construction Manual and applicable Code requirements in effect at the 

time of the specific Facility application is submitted as well as any requirements included 

in the facility permit.  Franchisee shall not be required to amend this Franchise to 

14

Section 9, ItemA.



 6 
4879-5919-2719, v. 1 
{NMM4890-0990-1217;2/13150.000016/} 
} 

construct or acquire Facilities within the Franchise Area, provided that Franchisee does 

not expand its Services beyond those described in Section 2. 

  To the extent that any Rights-of-Way within the Franchise Area are 

part of the state highway system (“State Highways”), are considered managed access by 

the City and are governed by the provisions of Chapter 47.24 RCW and applicable 

Washington State Department of Transportation (WSDOT) regulations, Franchisee shall 

comply fully with said requirements in addition to local ordinances and other applicable 

regulations.  Without limitation of the foregoing, Franchisee specifically agrees that: 

(a) any pavement trenching, and restoration performed by Franchisee within 

State Highways shall meet or exceed applicable WSDOT requirements;  

(b) any portion of a State Highway damaged or injured by Franchisee shall be 

restored, repaired and/or replaced by Franchisee to a condition that meets or exceeds 

applicable WSDOT requirements; and  

(c) without prejudice to any right or privilege of the City, WSDOT is authorized 

to enforce in an action brought in the name of the State of Washington any condition of 

this Franchise with respect to any portion of a State Highway. 

 
Section 5.  Relocation of Telecommunications Network Facilities. 

  Relocation Requirement. Consistent with the requirements of AMC 

12.02.250, the City may require Franchisee, and Franchisee covenants and agrees, to 

protect, support, relocate, remove, and/or temporarily disconnect or relocate its Facilities 

within the Right-of-Way when required by the City for projects covered by AMC 

12.02.250(A), and consistent with the timeline contained in AMC 12.02.250(B). Costs and 

expenses associated with relocations or disconnections ordered pursuant to this Section 

5.1 shall be apportioned as set forth in AMC 12.02.250(C) and RCW 35.99.060. 

  Relocation – Third-Party Structures.  If the request for relocation from 

the City originates due to a Public Project, in which structures or poles are either replaced 

or removed, then Franchisee shall relocate or remove its Facilities as required by the City 

and at no cost to the City, subject to the procedure in Section 5.5.   

15

Section 9, ItemA.



 7 
4879-5919-2719, v. 1 
{NMM4890-0990-1217;2/13150.000016/} 
} 

  Relocation – Franchisee-Owned Structures.  The cost of relocation of 

any Franchisee-owned poles or structures shall be determined in accordance with the 

requirements of RCW 35.99.060(3)(b) for any aerial to underground relocations.  For this 

Section 5.3, designation of the Right-of-Way for a Public Project shall be undertaken in 

the City’s Comprehensive Plan in accordance with the requirements of Ch. 36.70A 

RCW.  The Comprehensive Plan includes, but is not limited to, the Transportation 

element or Transportation Improvement Plan (TIP), Capital Facilities element, utilities 

element and any other element authorized by RCW 36.70A.070 and RCW 36.70A.080.  

  Locate. Franchisee shall maintain accurate maps and improvement 

plans of its Facilities located within the City. Franchisee shall provide, upon demand of 

the Public Works Director, or designee, and deliver to the office of the Public Works 

Department free of charge, within thirty (30) days after such demand, such maps and 

plans as may be required to show in detail the exact location, size, depth, and description 

of all Franchisee Facilities installed within said Public Right-of-Way. If such maps and 

plans are not available for City requests, Franchisee shall, at Franchisee’s sole cost and 

expense, expose by potholing to a depth of one foot (1’) below the bottom of Franchisee’s 

subsurface Facilities, within thirty (30) days of receipt of a written request from the City to 

do so. 

  Notice and Relocation Process.  If the City determines that the project 

necessitates the relocation of Franchisee’s existing Facilities, the City shall provide 

Franchisee notice in writing as soon as practicable with a date by which the relocation 

shall be completed (the “Relocation Date”) consistent with RCW 35.99.060(2). In 

calculating the Relocation Date, the City shall consult with Franchisee and consider the 

extent of facilities to be relocated, the services requirements, and the construction 

sequence for the relocation, within the City’s overall project construction sequence and 

constraints, to safely complete the relocation.  Relocation schedules and the timeline for 

the work to be completed shall be in compliance with AMC 12.02.250(B).  Franchisee 

shall complete the relocation by the Relocation Date, unless the City or a reviewing court 

establishes a later date for completion, as described in RCW 35.99.060(2) or by mutual 

agreement of the City and the Franchisee.   To provide guidance on this notice process, 

16

Section 9, ItemA.



 8 
4879-5919-2719, v. 1 
{NMM4890-0990-1217;2/13150.000016/} 
} 

the City will make reasonable efforts to engage in the following recommended process, 

absent an emergency posing a threat to public safety or welfare or an emergency beyond 

the control of the City that will result in severe financial consequences to the City: 

(a) The City will consult with the Franchisee in the predesign phase of any 

Public Project in order to coordinate the project’s design with Franchisee’s Facilities within 

such project’s area. 

(b) Franchisee shall participate in predesign meetings until such time as (i) both 

parties mutually determine that Franchisee’s Facilities will not be affected by the Public 

Project or (ii) until the City provides Franchisee with written notice regarding the relocation 

as provided in subsection (d) below. 

(c) Franchisee shall, during the predesign phase, evaluate and provide 

comments to the City related to any alternatives to possible relocations.  The City will give 

any alternatives proposed by the Franchisee full and fair consideration, but the final 

decision accepting or rejecting any specific alternative shall be within the City’s sole 

discretion. 

(d) In the event that the provisions of a state or federal grant require a different 

notification period or process than that outlined in Section 5.5, the City will notify the 

Franchisee during the predesign meetings and the process mandated by the grant 

funding will control. 

(e) Within 30 days following receipt of such written notice, Franchisee shall 

provide a schedule to the City indicating the estimated completion date for such required 

relocation. The relocation work shall be completed within 90 days following the original 

notice by the city unless a different duration is specifically authorized by the city engineer 

Such relocation shall be provided at no charge or expense to the City unless otherwise 

permitted under state law. Such timeline may be extended by a mutual agreement.  

 
  Alternative Arrangements.  The provisions of this Section 5 shall in no 

manner preclude or restrict Franchisee from making any arrangements it may deem 

appropriate when responding to a request for relocation of its Facilities by any person or 

entity other than the City, where the facilities to be constructed by said person or entity 

17

Section 9, ItemA.



 9 
4879-5919-2719, v. 1 
{NMM4890-0990-1217;2/13150.000016/} 
} 

are not or will not become City-owned, operated, or maintained facilities, provided that 

such arrangements do not unduly delay a City construction project. 

  Contractor Delay Claims.  Franchisee shall be solely responsible for 

the actual costs incurred by the City for delays in a Public Project to the extent the delay 

is caused by or arises out of Franchisee's failure to comply with the final schedule for the 

relocation (other than as a result of a Force Majeure Event or causes or conditions caused 

by the acts or omissions of the City or any third party unrelated to Franchisee.  Franchisee 

vendors and contractors shall not be considered unrelated third parties) or failure to 

properly locate existing facilities. Such costs may include, but are not limited to, payment 

to the City’s contractors and/or consultants for increased costs and associated court 

costs, interest, and attorney fees incurred by the City to the extent directly attributable to 

such Franchisee’s caused delay in the Public Project. 

  Indemnification. Franchisee will indemnify, hold harmless, and pay the 

costs of defending the City, in accordance with the provisions of Section 15, against any 

and all claims, suits, actions, damages, or liabilities for delays on City construction 

projects caused by or arising out of the failure of Franchisee to remove or relocate its 

Facilities as provided in this Section 5; provided, that Franchisee shall not be responsible 

for damages due to delays caused by circumstances beyond the control of Franchisee or 

the sole negligence, willful misconduct, or unreasonable delay of the City or any third 

party. 

  Building Moving.  Whenever any person shall have obtained 

permission from the City to use any Right-of-Way for the purpose of moving any building, 

Franchisee, upon seven (7) days’ written notice from the City, shall raise, remove, or 

relocate to another part of the Right-of-Way, at the expense of the person desiring to 

move the building, any of Franchisee’s Facilities that may obstruct the removal of such 

building. 

  City’s Costs. If Franchisee fails, neglects, or refuses to remove or 

relocate its Facilities as directed by the City following the procedures outlined in Section 

5.1 through Section 5.5, then upon at least ten (10) days’ written notice to Franchisee, 

18

Section 9, ItemA.



 10 
4879-5919-2719, v. 1 
{NMM4890-0990-1217;2/13150.000016/} 
} 

the City may perform such work (including removal) or cause it to be done, and the City’s 

costs shall be paid by Franchisee pursuant to Section 14.3 and Section 14.4, and the City 

shall not be responsible for any damage to the Facilities. 

  Survival. The provisions of this Section 5 shall survive the expiration 

or termination of this Franchise during such time as Franchisee continues to have 

Facilities in the Rights-of-Way. 

Section 6.  Undergrounding of Facilities.   

  Wireline Facilities. 

(a) As it pertains to Franchisee’s wireline Facilities, Franchisee shall not be 

permitted to erect poles or to run or suspend wires, cables or other facilities thereon, but 

shall lay such wires, cables or other facilities underground in the manner required by the 

City, except as prohibited by applicable law or unless specifically allowed pursuant to a 

permit.  Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that if the City does not require the 

undergrounding of its wireline Facilities at the time of permit application, the City may, at 

any time in the future, require the conversion of Franchisee’s aerial wireline Facilities to 

underground installation at Franchisee’s expense, except as otherwise provided in RCW 

35.99.060(4) or other applicable law.  Unless otherwise permitted by the City, Franchisee 

shall underground its wireline Facilities in all new developments and subdivisions, and 

any development or subdivision where utilities, other than electrical utilities, are currently 

underground. 

(b) Whenever the City may require the undergrounding of the aerial utilities in 

any area of the City, Franchisee shall underground its wireline Facilities in the manner 

specified by the City, concurrently with and in the area of the other affected utilities.  The 

location of any such relocated and underground utilities shall be approved by the City.  

Where other utilities are present and involved in the undergrounding project, Franchisee 

shall only be required to pay its fair share of common costs borne by all utilities, in addition 

to the costs specifically attributable to the undergrounding of Franchisee’s own wireline 

Facilities.  “Common costs” shall include necessary costs not specifically attributable to 

the undergrounding of any particular facility, such as costs for common trenching and 

19

Section 9, ItemA.



 11 
4879-5919-2719, v. 1 
{NMM4890-0990-1217;2/13150.000016/} 
} 

utility vaults.  “Fair share” shall be determined for a project on the basis of the number 

and size of Franchisee’s wireline Facilities being undergrounded in comparison to the 

total number and size of all other utility facilities being undergrounded.   

  To the extent Franchisee is providing wireline Facilities to Small 

Wireless Facilities owned by a third party, Franchisee shall adhere to the design 

standards for such Small Wireless Facilities, and shall underground its wireline Facilities 

and/or place its wireline Facilities within the pole as may be required by such design 

standards.  For the purposes of clarity, this Section 6.1(b) does not require 

undergrounding or interior placement of wireline Facilities within the pole to the extent 

that the Small Wireless Facilities are located on utility poles that have pre-existing aerial 

telecommunications facilities and provided such construction of Franchisee's Facilities 

continue to comply with Section 6.1. 

  Franchisee shall not remove any underground Facilities that require 

trenching or other opening of the Rights-of-Way, except as provided in this Section 6.1. 

Franchisee may remove any underground Facilities from the Right-of-Way that have been 

installed in such a manner that it can be removed without trenching or other opening of 

the Right-of-Way, or if otherwise permitted by the City. Franchisee may remove any 

underground cable from the Rights-of-Way where reasonably necessary to replace, 

upgrade, or enhance its Facilities, or pursuant to Section 5.  When the City determines, 

in the City’s reasonable discretion, that Franchisee’s underground Facilities must be 

removed in order to eliminate or prevent a hazardous condition, Franchisee shall remove 

such Facilities at Franchisee’s sole cost and expense. Franchisee must apply and receive 

a permit, pursuant to Section 8.2, prior to any such removal of underground Facilities from 

the Right-of-Way and must provide as-built plans and maps pursuant to Section 7.1. 

  The provisions of this Section 6 shall survive the expiration, 

revocation, or termination of this Franchise. Nothing in this Section 6 shall be construed 

as requiring the City to pay any costs of undergrounding any of the Franchisee’s Facilities. 

 

 

 

20

Section 9, ItemA.



 12 
4879-5919-2719, v. 1 
{NMM4890-0990-1217;2/13150.000016/} 
} 

Section 7.  Maps and Records.   

  Franchisee shall provide the City with an accurate as-built map or 

maps certifying the location of all Facilities within the City annually. Upon request by the 

City, Franchisee shall, within 30 calendar days, at no cost to the City: (1) submit sufficient 

information to demonstrate that Franchisee has complied with all requirements of AMC 

Chapter 12.02; (2) verify that all fees due to the City in connection with the Facilities have 

been paid by Franchisee; and (3) make all books, records, maps and other documents 

maintained by Franchisee with respect to the Facilities within Rights-of-Way available for 

inspection by the City. 

  Nothing in Section 7.1 shall be construed to require Franchisee to 

violate state or federal law regarding customer privacy, nor shall this Section 7.2 be 

construed to require Franchisee to disclose proprietary or confidential information without 

adequate safeguards for its confidential or proprietary nature. Unless otherwise permitted 

or required by State or federal law, nothing in this Section 7.2 shall be construed as 

permission to withhold relevant customer data from the City that the City requests in 

conjunction with a tax audit or review; provided, however, Franchisee may redact 

identifying information including but not limited to names, street addresses (excluding City 

and zip code), Social Security Numbers, or Employer Identification Numbers related to 

any confidentiality agreements Franchisee has with third parties. 

  Franchisee shall not be required to disclose information that it 

reasonably deems to be proprietary or confidential in nature; provided, however, 

Franchisee shall disclose such information to comply with a utility tax audit. Franchisee 

shall be responsible for clearly and conspicuously identifying the work as confidential or 

proprietary and shall provide a brief written explanation as to why such information is 

confidential and how it may be treated as such under State or federal law. In the event 

that the City receives a public records request under Chapter 42.56 RCW or similar law 

for the disclosure of information Franchisee has designated as confidential, trade secret, 

or proprietary, the City shall promptly provide written notice of such disclosure so that 

Franchisee can take appropriate steps to protect its interests. 

21

Section 9, ItemA.



 13 
4879-5919-2719, v. 1 
{NMM4890-0990-1217;2/13150.000016/} 
} 

  Nothing in Section 7.2 or Section 7.3 prohibits the City from complying 

with Chapter 42.56 RCW or any other applicable law or court order requiring the release 

of public records, and the City shall not be liable to Franchisee for compliance with any 

law or court order requiring the release of public records. The City shall comply with any 

injunction or court order obtained by Franchisee that prohibits the disclosure of any such 

confidential records; however, in the event a higher court overturns such injunction or 

court order and such higher court action is or has become final and non-appealable, 

Franchisee shall reimburse the City for any fines or penalties imposed for failure to 

disclose such records as required hereunder within sixty (60) days of a request from the 

City. 

Section 8.  Work in the Rights-of-Way.   

  During any period of relocation, construction or maintenance, all work 

performed by Franchisee or its contractors shall be accomplished in a safe and 

workmanlike manner, so to minimize interference with the free passage of traffic and the 

free use of adjoining property, whether public or private. Franchisee shall at all times post 

and maintain proper barricades, flags, flaggers, lights, flares and other measures as 

required for the safety of all members of the general public and comply with all applicable 

safety regulations during such period of construction as required by the ordinances of the 

City or the laws of the State of Washington, including RCW 39.04.180 for the construction 

of trench safety systems. The provisions of this Section 8 shall survive the expiration or 

termination of this Franchise and during such time as Franchisee continues to have 

Facilities in the Rights-of-Way. 

  Whenever Franchisee shall commence work in any Rights-of-Way it 

shall apply to the City for a permit consistent with the requirements of the Municipal Code. 

During the progress of the work, the Franchisee shall not unnecessarily obstruct the 

passage or proper use of the Rights-of-Way, and all work by the Franchisee in the area 

shall be performed in accordance with applicable City standards and specifications and 

warranted consistent with the Municipal Code requirements.  In no case shall any work 

22

Section 9, ItemA.



 14 
4879-5919-2719, v. 1 
{NMM4890-0990-1217;2/13150.000016/} 
} 

commence within any Rights-of-Way without a permit, except as otherwise provided in 

this Franchise or by Code. 

  The City reserves the right to limit or exclude Franchisee’s access to 

a specific route, public Right-of-Way or other location when, in the judgment of the Public 

Works Director there is inadequate space (including but not limited to compliance with 

ADA clearance requirements and maintaining a clear and safe passage through the 

Rights-of-Way), a pavement cutting moratorium, unnecessary damage to public property, 

public expense, inconvenience, interference with City utilities, or for any other lawful 

reason determined by the Public Works Director. 

  New wireline Facilities shall not be installed on existing metal street 

light standards or traffic signal standards unless specifically approved by the Public Works 

Director.   

  If the Franchisee shall at any time plan to make excavations in any 

area covered by this Franchise, the Franchisee shall afford the City, upon receipt of a 

written request to do so, an opportunity to share such excavation, PROVIDED THAT: 

(a) Such joint use shall not unreasonably delay the work of the Franchisee 

causing the excavation to be made; 

(b) Such joint use shall be arranged and accomplished on terms and conditions 

satisfactory to both parties;  

(c) To the extent reasonably possible, Franchisee, at the direction of the City, 

shall cooperate with the City and provide other private utility companies with the 

opportunity to utilize joint or shared excavations in order to minimize disruption and 

damage to the Right-of-Way, as well as to minimize traffic-related impacts; and  

(d) Franchisee may only charge the incremental costs to the City of installing 

facilities supplied by the City in such joint or shared excavations.   

(e)   If required by a permit, Franchisee shall give reasonable advance notice 

of intended construction to entities or persons adjacent to the affected area. Such notice 

shall contain the dates, contact number, nature and location of the work to be performed.   

23

Section 9, ItemA.



 15 
4879-5919-2719, v. 1 
{NMM4890-0990-1217;2/13150.000016/} 
} 

(f) Following performance of the work, Franchisee shall restore the Right-of-

Way to City standards in effect at the time of construction except for any change in 

condition not caused by Franchisee. Any disturbance of landscaping, fencing, or other 

improvements on private property caused by Franchisee’s work shall, at the sole expense 

of Franchisee, be promptly repaired and restored to the reasonable satisfaction of the 

property owner/resident. Notwithstanding the above, nothing herein shall give Franchisee 

the right to enter onto private property without the permission of such private property 

owner, or as otherwise authorized by applicable law (e.g., RCW 80.36.020). 

  Franchisee may trim trees upon and overhanging on public ways, 

streets, alleys, sidewalks, and other public places of the City consistent with AMC 

8.26.090. Franchisee shall be responsible for all debris removal from such activities. All 

trimming, except in emergency situations, is to be done after the explicit prior written 

notification and approval of the City and at the expense of Franchisee.  Franchisee may 

contract for such services, however, any firm or individual so retained must first receive 

City permit approval prior to commencing such trimming. Nothing herein grants 

Franchisee any authority to act on behalf of the City, to enter upon any private property, 

or to trim any tree or natural growth encroaching into the Public Rights-of-Way. 

Franchisee shall be solely responsible and liable for any damage to any third parties’ 

trees or natural growth caused by Franchisee’s actions. Franchisee shall indemnify, 

defend and hold harmless the City from third-party claims of any nature arising out of any 

act or negligence of Franchisee with regard to tree and/or natural growth trimming, 

damage, and/or removal. Franchisee shall reasonably compensate the City or the 

property owner for any damage caused by trimming, damage, or removal by Franchisee. 

Except in an emergency situation, all tree trimming must be performed under the direction 

of an arborist certified by the International Society of Arboriculture, and in a manner 

consistent with the most recent issue of “Standards of Pruning for Certified Arborists” as 

developed by the International Society of Arboriculture or its industry accepted equivalent 

(ANSI A300), unless otherwise approved by the Public Works Director or his/her 

designee. 

24

Section 9, ItemA.



 16 
4879-5919-2719, v. 1 
{NMM4890-0990-1217;2/13150.000016/} 
} 

  Franchisee shall meet with the City and other franchise holders and 

users of the Rights-of-Way upon reasonable advance written notice to schedule and 

coordinate construction in the Rights-of-Way. All construction locations, activities, and 

schedules shall be coordinated, as ordered by the City to minimize public inconvenience, 

disruption or damages. 

  Franchisee shall maintain all above ground improvements that it 

places on City Rights-of-Way pursuant to this Franchise. In order to avoid interference 

with the City's ability to maintain the Right-of-Way, Franchisee shall provide a clear zone 

of five (5) feet on all sides of such improvements. If Franchisee fails to comply with this 

provision, and by its failure, property is damaged, then Franchisee shall be responsible 

for all damages caused thereby, including restoration. 

Section 9.  One Call Locator Service. Prior to doing any work in the Rights-of-Way, the 

Franchisee shall follow established procedures, including contacting the Utility 

Notification Center in Washington and comply with all applicable State statutes regarding 

the One Call Locator Service pursuant to Chapter 19.122 RCW. Further, upon request, 

by the City or a third party, Franchisee shall locate its Facilities consistent with the 

requirements of Chapter 19.122 RCW. The City shall not be liable for any damages to 

Franchisee’s Facilities or for interruptions in service to Franchisee’s customers that are a 

direct result of Franchisee’s failure to locate its Facilities within the prescribed time limits 

and guidelines established by the One Call Locator Service regardless of whether the 

City issued a permit. 

Section 10.  Safety Requirements. 

  Franchisee shall, at all times, employ professional care and shall 

install and maintain and use industry-standard methods for preventing failures and 

accidents that are likely to cause damage, injuries, or nuisances to the public. All 

structures and all lines, equipment, and connections in, over, under, and upon the Rights-

of-Ways, wherever situated or located, shall at all times be kept and maintained in a safe 

condition. Franchisee shall comply with all federal, State, and City safety requirements, 

rules, regulations, laws, and practices, and employ all necessary devices as required by 

25

Section 9, ItemA.



 17 
4879-5919-2719, v. 1 
{NMM4890-0990-1217;2/13150.000016/} 
} 

applicable law during the construction, operation, maintenance, upgrade, repair, or 

removal of its Facilities. Additionally, Franchisee shall keep its Facilities free of debris and 

anything of a dangerous, noxious or offensive nature or which would create a hazard or 

undue vibration, heat, noise or any interference with City services. By way of illustration 

and not limitation, Franchisee shall also comply with the applicable provisions of the 

National Electric Code, National Electrical Safety Code, FCC regulations, and 

Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) Standards. Upon reasonable 

notice to Franchisee, the City reserves the general right to inspect the Facilities to 

evaluate if they are constructed and maintained in a safe condition.  

  If an unsafe condition or a violation of Section 10.1 is found to exist, 

and becomes known to the City, the City agrees to give Franchisee written notice of such 

condition and afford Franchisee a reasonable opportunity to repair the same. If 

Franchisee fails to start to make the necessary repairs and alterations within the time 

frame specified in such notice (and pursue such cure to completion), then the City may 

make such repairs or contract for them to be made. All costs, including administrative 

costs, incurred by the City in repairing any unsafe conditions shall be borne by Franchisee 

and reimbursed to the City pursuant to Section 14.3 and Section 14.4.  

  Additional standards include: 

(a) All installations and maintenance of equipment, lines, and ancillary facilities 

shall be installed and maintained in accordance with industry-standard engineering 

practices and shall comply with all federal, State, and local regulations, ordinances, and 

laws. 

(b) Any opening or obstruction in the Rights-of-Way or other public places 

made by Franchisee in the course of its operations shall be protected by Franchisee at 

all times by the placement of adequate barriers, fences, or boarding, the bounds of which, 

during periods of dusk and darkness, shall be clearly marked and visible. 

 
  Stop Work Order. On notice from the City that any work is being 

performed contrary to the provisions of this Franchise, or in an unsafe or dangerous 

26

Section 9, ItemA.



 18 
4879-5919-2719, v. 1 
{NMM4890-0990-1217;2/13150.000016/} 
} 

manner as determined by the City, or in violation of the terms of any applicable permit, 

laws, regulations, ordinances, or standards, the work may immediately be stopped by the 

City. The stop work order shall: 

(a) Be in writing; 

(b) Be given to the person doing the work or posted on the work site; 

(c) Be sent to Franchisee by overnight delivery; 

(d) Indicate the nature of the alleged violation or unsafe condition; and 

(e) Establish conditions under which work may be resumed. 

 
Section 11.  Work of Contractors and Subcontractors. Franchisee’s contractors and 

subcontractors shall be licensed and bonded in accordance with State law and the City’s 

ordinances, regulations, and requirements. Work by contractors and subcontractors are 

subject to the same restrictions, limitations, and conditions as if the work were performed 

by Franchisee. Franchisee shall be responsible for all work performed by its contractors 

and subcontractors and others performing work on its behalf as if the work were 

performed by Franchisee and shall ensure that all such work is performed in compliance 

with this Franchise and applicable law.   

Section 12.  Restoration after Construction.   

  Franchisee shall, promptly after installation, construction, relocation, 

maintenance, or repair of its Facilities, or after abandonment approved pursuant to 

Section 17, promptly remove any obstructions from the Rights-of-Way and restore the 

surface of the Rights-of-Way as required by the City’s Public Works Standards and 

applicable Algona Municipal Code provisions. The Public Works Director or his/her 

designee shall have final approval of the condition of such Rights-of-Way after restoration. 

All concrete encased survey monuments that have been disturbed or displaced by such 

work shall be restored pursuant to federal, state (such as Chapter 332-120 WAC), and 

local standards and specifications. 

  Franchisee agrees to promptly complete all restoration work and to 

promptly repair any damage caused by work to the Franchise Area or other affected area 

27

Section 9, ItemA.



 19 
4879-5919-2719, v. 1 
{NMM4890-0990-1217;2/13150.000016/} 
} 

at its sole cost and expense and according to the time and terms specified in the 

construction permit issued by the City. All work by Franchisee pursuant to this Franchise 

shall be performed in accordance with applicable City standards and warranted as 

required by Code. 

  If conditions (e.g. weather) make the complete restoration required 

under this Section 12 impracticable, Franchisee shall temporarily restore the affected 

Right-of-Way or property. Such temporary restoration shall be at Franchisee’s sole cost 

and expense. Franchisee shall promptly undertake and complete the required permanent 

restoration when conditions no longer make such permanent restoration impracticable. 

  In the event Franchisee does not repair or restore a Right-of-Way as 

required under this Section 12, the City shall provide Franchisee with written notice 

including a description of actions the City reasonably believes are necessary to restore 

the Right-of-Way. If Franchisee fails to take such action after notice is provided pursuant 

to this section, the City may take such action as reasonably necessary to repair or restore 

the Right-of-Way. Pursuant to Section 14.3 and Section 14.4, the City may bill Franchisee 

for expenses associated with the inspection of such restoration work. The failure by 

Franchisee to complete such repairs shall be considered a breach of this Franchise and 

is subject to remedies outlined in Code and including the imposition of damages 

consistent with Section 19. 

  The provisions of this Section 12 shall survive the expiration or 

termination of this Franchise so long as Franchisee continues to have Facilities in the 

Rights-of-Way and has not completed all restoration to the City’s standards. 

Section 13.  Emergency Work/Dangerous Conditions.  

  In the event of any emergency in which any of Franchisee’s Facilities 

located in the Rights-of-Way breaks, falls, becomes damaged, or is otherwise in such a 

condition as to immediately endanger the property, life, health, or safety of any person, 

entity, or the City, Franchisee shall immediately take the proper emergency measures to 

repair its Facilities in order to cure or remedy the dangerous conditions for the protection 

28

Section 9, ItemA.



 20 
4879-5919-2719, v. 1 
{NMM4890-0990-1217;2/13150.000016/} 
} 

of property, life, health, or safety of any person, entity, or the City without first applying for 

and obtaining a permit as required by this Franchise. However, this shall not relieve 

Franchisee from the requirement of obtaining any permits necessary for this purpose, and 

Franchisee shall apply for all such permits not later than the next succeeding day during 

which City Hall is open for business. The City retains the right and privilege to cut, move, 

or remove any Facilities located within the Rights-of-Way of the City, as the City may 

determine to be necessary, appropriate, or useful in response to any public health or 

safety emergency. 

  The City shall not be liable for any damage to or loss of Facilities 

within the Rights-of-Way as a result of or in connection with any public works, public 

improvements, construction, grading, excavation, filling, or work of any kind in the Rights-

of-Way by or on behalf of the City, except to the extent directly and proximately caused 

by the sole negligence, intentional misconduct, or criminal actions of the City, its 

employees, contractors, or agents. The City shall further not be liable to Franchisee for 

any direct, indirect, or any other such damages suffered by any person or entity of any 

type as a direct or indirect result of the City’s actions under this Section 13 except to the 

extent caused by the sole negligence, intentional misconduct, or criminal actions of the 

City, its employees, contractors, or agents. 

  Whenever the construction, installation, or excavation of Facilities 

authorized by this Franchise has caused or contributed to a condition that appears to 

substantially impair the lateral support of the adjoining street or public place, or endangers 

the public, an adjoining public place, street, electrical or telecommunications utilities, or 

City property, the Public Works Director may direct Franchisee, at Franchisee’s own 

expense, to take reasonable action to protect the public or such property, and such action 

may include compliance within a prescribed time. In the event that Franchisee fails or 

refuses to promptly take the actions directed by the City, or fails to fully comply with such 

directions, or if emergency conditions exist which require immediate action, before the 

City can timely contact Franchisee to request Franchisee effect the immediate repair, the 

City may access the Facilities and take such reasonable actions as are necessary to 

protect the public, the adjacent streets, or street utilities, or to maintain the lateral support 

29

Section 9, ItemA.



 21 
4879-5919-2719, v. 1 
{NMM4890-0990-1217;2/13150.000016/} 
} 

thereof, or reasonable actions regarded as necessary safety precautions, and Franchisee 

shall be liable to the City for the costs thereof. 

Section 14.  Recovery of Costs, Taxes, and Fees. 

  Franchisee shall pay a fee for the actual and reasonable 

administrative expenses incurred by the City that are directly related to the receiving and 

approving this Franchise pursuant to RCW 35.21.860 and AMC 12.02.440, including the 

costs associated with the City’s legal costs incurred in drafting and processing this 

Franchise. Franchisee shall further be subject to all permit fees associated with activities 

undertaken through the authority granted in this Franchise or under the laws of the City. 

Where the City incurs costs and expenses for review, inspection, or supervision of 

activities, including but not limited to reasonable fees associated with attorneys, 

consultants, City staff, and City Attorney time, undertaken through the authority granted 

in this Franchise or any ordinances relating to the subject for which a permit fee is not 

established, Franchisee shall pay such costs and expenses directly to the City in 

accordance with the provisions of Section 14.3.   

  Franchisee shall promptly reimburse the City in accordance with the 

provisions of Section 14.3 and Section 14.4 for any and all costs the City reasonably 

incurs in response to any emergency situation involving Franchisee’s Facilities, to the 

extent said emergency is not the fault of the City. The City agrees to simultaneously seek 

reimbursement from any franchisee or permit holder who caused or contributed to the 

emergency situation. 

  Franchisee shall reimburse the City within sixty (60) days of submittal 

by the City of an itemized billing for reasonably incurred costs, itemized by project, for 

Franchisee’s proportionate share of all actual, identified expenses incurred by the City in 

planning, constructing, installing, repairing, altering, or maintaining any City facility as the 

result of the presence of Franchisee’s Facilities in the Rights-of-Way. Such costs and 

expenses shall include but not be limited to Franchisee’s proportionate cost of City 

personnel assigned to oversee or engage in any work in the Rights-of-Way as the result 

of the presence of Franchisee’s Facilities in the Rights-of-Way. Such costs and expenses 

30

Section 9, ItemA.



 22 
4879-5919-2719, v. 1 
{NMM4890-0990-1217;2/13150.000016/} 
} 

shall also include Franchisee’s proportionate share of any time spent reviewing 

construction plans in order to either accomplish the relocation of Franchisee’s Facilities 

or the routing or rerouting of any utilities so as not to interfere with Franchisee’s Facilities. 

  The time of City employees shall be charged at their respective rate 

of salary, including overtime if applicable, plus benefits and reasonable overhead. Any 

other costs will be billed proportionately on an actual cost basis. All billings will be itemized 

so as to specifically identify the costs and expenses for each project for which the City 

claims reimbursement. At the City’s option, the billing may be on an annual basis, but the 

City shall provide the Franchisee with the City’s itemization of costs, in writing, at the 

conclusion of each project for information purposes. 

  Franchisee hereby warrants that its operations as authorized under 

this Franchise will be consistent with the services described in Section 2 above, including 

the provision of data transmission, internet access, voice over internet protocol and 

similar data services.   As a result, the City will not impose a franchise fee under the terms 

of this Franchise, other than as described herein. The City hereby reserves its right to 

impose a franchise fee on Franchisee if Franchisee’s operations as authorized by this 

Franchise change such that the statutory prohibitions of RCW 35.21.860 no longer apply 

or if statutory prohibitions on the imposition of such fees are removed. In either instance, 

the City also reserves its right to require that Franchisee obtain a separate Franchise for 

its change in use. Nothing contained herein shall preclude Franchisee from challenging 

any such new fee or separate agreement under applicable federal, state, or local laws. 

  Franchisee acknowledges that certain of its business activities may 

be subject to taxation as a telephone business and that Franchisee shall pay to the City 

the rate applicable to such taxable services under Title 5 of the Algona Municipal Code, 

and consistent with state and federal law. The parties agree that if there is a dispute 

regarding tax payments that the process in Title 5 of the Algona Municipal Code shall 

control. In that event, the City may not enforce remedies under Section 19 or commence 

a forfeiture or revocation process pursuant to Section 20 until the dispute is finally 

resolved either consistent with Title 5 of the Algona Municipal Code or by judicial action 

31

Section 9, ItemA.



 23 
4879-5919-2719, v. 1 
{NMM4890-0990-1217;2/13150.000016/} 
} 

and then only if the Franchisee does not comply with such resolution. The parties agree, 

however, that nothing in this Franchise shall limit the City's power of taxation as may exist 

now or as later imposed by the City. This provision does not limit the City's power to 

amend the Algona Municipal Code as may be permitted by law. 

Section 15.  Indemnification. 

  Franchisee releases, covenants not to bring suit against, and agrees 

to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City, its officers, employees, agents, and 

representatives from any and all claims, costs, judgments, awards, or liability to any 

person, for injury or death of any person or damage to property to the extent caused by 

or arising out of any acts or omissions of Franchisee, its agents, servants, officers, or 

employees in the performance of this Franchise and any rights granted within this 

Franchise. This obligation to indemnify the City shall extend to claims, costs, judgements, 

awards, or liability arising under the circumstances listed in AMC 12.02.340(A). This 

indemnification obligation shall also extend to claims that are not reduced to a suit and 

any claims that may be compromised, with Franchisee’s prior written consent, prior to the 

culmination of any litigation or the institution of any litigation.  Franchisee shall have sole 

control over the defense and any settlement of any claims indemnified under this Section.  

Franchisee shall consult with the City throughout the defense and/or settlement of any 

matter covered by this section but is not obligated to follow any recommendations made 

by the City.  The City may, at its cost and expense, participate in the defense of any such 

action using counsel of its choice. If the City chooses to participate, the parties will 

cooperatively work together in the defense of the matter, but Franchisee retains sole 

control over the defense and any settlement of claims indemnified under this section.   

  Inspection or acceptance by the City of any work performed by 

Franchisee at the time of completion of construction shall not be grounds for avoidance 

by Franchisee of any of its obligations under this Section 15. 

  The City shall promptly notify Franchisee of any claim or suit and 

request in writing that Franchisee indemnify the City. Franchisee may choose counsel to 

defend the City subject to this Section 15.3. City’s failure to so notify and request 

32

Section 9, ItemA.



 24 
4879-5919-2719, v. 1 
{NMM4890-0990-1217;2/13150.000016/} 
} 

indemnification shall not relieve Franchisee of any liability that Franchisee might have, 

except to the extent that such failure prejudices Franchisee’s ability to defend such claim 

or suit. In the event that Franchisee refuses the tender of defense in any suit or any claim, 

as required pursuant to the indemnification provisions within this Franchise, and said 

refusal is subsequently determined by a court having jurisdiction (or such other tribunal 

that the parties shall agree to decide the matter), to have been a wrongful refusal on the 

part of Franchisee, Franchisee shall pay all of the City’s reasonable costs for defense of 

the action, including all expert witness fees, costs, and attorney’s fees, and including 

costs and fees incurred in recovering under this indemnification provision. If separate 

representation to fully protect the interests of both parties is necessary, such as a conflict 

of interest between the City and the counsel selected by Franchisee to represent the City, 

then upon the prior written approval and consent of Franchisee, which shall not be 

unreasonably withheld, the City shall have the right to employ separate counsel in any 

action or proceeding and to participate in the investigation and defense thereof, and 

Franchisee shall pay the reasonable fees and expenses of such separate counsel, except 

that Franchisee shall not be required to pay the fees and expenses of separate counsel 

on behalf of the City for the City to bring or pursue any counterclaims or interpleader 

action, equitable relief, restraining order or injunction.  The City’s fees and expenses shall 

include all out-of-pocket expenses, such as consultants and expert witness fees, and shall 

also include the reasonable value of any services rendered by the counsel retained by 

the City but shall not include outside attorneys’ fees for services that are unnecessarily 

duplicative of services provided the City by Franchisee. Each party agrees to cooperate 

and to cause its employees and agents to cooperate with the other party in the defense 

of any such claim and the relevant records of each party shall be available to the other 

party with respect to any such defense. 

  Except to the extent that damage or injury arises from the sole 

negligence or willful misconduct of the City, its officers, officials, employees, or agents, 

the obligations of Franchisee under the indemnification provisions of this Section 15 and 

any other indemnification provision herein shall apply regardless of whether liability for 

damages arising out of bodily injury to persons or damages to property were caused or 

33

Section 9, ItemA.



 25 
4879-5919-2719, v. 1 
{NMM4890-0990-1217;2/13150.000016/} 
} 

contributed to by the concurrent negligence of the City, its officers, officials, employees, 

or agents and the Franchisee. Notwithstanding the proceeding sentence, to the extent 

the provisions of RCW 4.24.115 are applicable, the parties agree that the indemnity 

provisions hereunder shall be deemed amended to conform to said statute and liability 

shall be allocated as provided therein. It is further specifically and expressly understood 

that the indemnification provided constitutes Franchisee’s waiver of immunity under Title 

51 RCW, solely for the purposes of this indemnification, relating solely to indemnity claims 

made by the City directly against the Franchisee for claims made against the City by 

Franchisee’s employees. This waiver has been mutually negotiated by the parties.  

  Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Section 155, Franchisee 

assumes the risk of damage to its Facilities located in the Rights-of-Way and upon City-

owned property from activities conducted by the City, its officers, agents, employees, 

representatives, elected and appointed officials, and contractors, except to the extent any 

such damage or destruction is caused by or arises from any solely negligent, willful 

misconduct, or criminal actions on the part of the City, its officers, agents, employees, 

representatives, elected or appointed officials, or contractors. In no event shall either 

Party be liable to the other Party for any indirect, incidental, special, consequential, 

exemplary, or punitive damages, including, by way of example and not limitation, lost 

profits, lost revenue, loss of goodwill, or loss of business opportunity in connection with 

its performance or failure to perform under this Franchise. Franchisee releases and 

waives any and all such claims against the City, its officers, agents, employees, 

representatives, elected or appointed officials, or contractors. Franchisee further agrees 

to indemnify, hold harmless, and defend the City against any third-party claims for 

damages, including, but not limited to, business interruption damages, lost profits, and 

consequential damages, brought by or under users of Franchisee’s Facilities as the result 

of any interruption of service due to damage or destruction of Franchisee’s Facilities 

caused by or arising out of activities conducted by the City, its officers, agents, 

employees, or contractors.   

  The provisions of this Section 15 shall survive the expiration, 

revocation, or termination of this Franchise. 

34

Section 9, ItemA.



 26 
4879-5919-2719, v. 1 
{NMM4890-0990-1217;2/13150.000016/} 
} 

 

Section 16.  Insurance. 

  Franchisee shall maintain for so long as Franchisee has Facilities in 

the Rights-of-Way, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to 

property which may arise from or in connection with the acts or omissions of Franchisee. 

The Franchisee shall cause each and every Subcontractor to provide insurance coverage 

that complies with all applicable requirements of the Franchise-provided insurance as set 

forth herein, except the Franchisee shall have sole responsibility for determining the limits 

of coverage required to be obtained by Subcontractors.  The Franchisee shall ensure that 

the City is an additional insured on each and every Subcontractor’s Commercial General 

liability insurance policy using an endorsement as least as broad as ISO CG 20 10 10 01 

for ongoing operations and CG 20 37 10 01 for completed operations. Franchisee shall 

maintain insurance from insurers with a current A.M. Best rating of not less than A-. 

Franchisee shall provide a copy of a certificate of insurance and additional insured 

endorsement (except for workers compensation) to the City for its inspection at the time 

of acceptance of this Franchise, and such insurance certificate shall evidence a policy of 

insurance that includes: 

(a) Automobile Liability insurance with limits of no less than $5,000,000 

combined single limit per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage.  

(b) Commercial General Liability insurance, written on an occurrence basis with 

limits of no less than $5,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and 

property damage and $5,000,000 general aggregate including personal and 

advertising injury, blanket contractual; premises; operations; independent 

contractors; products and completed operations; and broad form property 

damage; explosion, collapse and underground (XCU). 

(c) Pollution liability shall be in effect throughout the entire Franchise term, with 

a limit of one million dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence, and two million 

dollars ($2,000,000) in the aggregate  

35

Section 9, ItemA.



 27 
4879-5919-2719, v. 1 
{NMM4890-0990-1217;2/13150.000016/} 
} 

(d) Workers’ Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance 

laws of the State of Washington and Employer’s Liability with a limit of 

$1,000,000 each accident/disease/policy limit. Evidence of qualified self-

insurance is acceptable. 

(e) Excess Umbrella liability policy with limits of no less than $5,000,000 per 

occurrence and in the aggregate. Franchisee may use any combination of 

primary and excess to meet required total limits. 

  Payment of deductible or self-insured retention shall be the sole 

responsibility of Franchisee. Franchisee may utilize primary and umbrella liability 

insurance policies to satisfy the insurance policy limits required in this Section 16. 

Franchisee’s umbrella liability insurance policy shall provide “follow form” coverage over 

its primary liability insurance policies or be at least as broad as such underlying policies. 

  The required insurance policies, with the exception of Workers’ 

Compensation, and Employer’s Liability, and Pollution Liability obtained by Franchisee 

shall include the City, its officers, officials, employees, agents, and representatives 

(“Additional Insureds”), as an additional insured, with coverage at least as broad as ISO 

endorsement form CG 20 26, with regard to any work or operations performed under this 

Franchise or by or on behalf of the Franchisee. The coverage shall contain no special 

limitations on the scope of protection afforded to the Additional Insureds. In addition, the 

insurance policy shall contain a clause stating that coverage shall apply separately to 

each insured against whom a claim is made, or suit is brought, except with respect to the 

limits of the insurer’s liability. Franchisee shall provide to the City upon acceptance a 

certificate of insurance and additional insured endorsement. Receipt by the City of any 

certificate showing less coverage than required is not a waiver of Franchisee’s obligations 

to fulfill the requirements. Franchisee’s required commercial general and auto liability 

insurance shall be primary insurance with respect to the City. Any insurance, self-

insurance, or insurance pool coverage maintained by the City shall be in excess of 

Franchisee’s required insurance and shall not contribute with it.  

36

Section 9, ItemA.



 28 
4879-5919-2719, v. 1 
{NMM4890-0990-1217;2/13150.000016/} 
} 

  Upon receipt of notice from its insurer(s) Franchisee shall provide 

the City with thirty (30) days prior written notice of any cancellation of any insurance 

policy, except for non-payment, in which case a ten (10) day notice will be provided, 

required pursuant to this Section 16. Franchisee shall, prior to the effective date of such 

cancellation, obtain replacement insurance policies meeting the requirements of this 

Section 16. Failure to provide the insurance cancellation notice and to furnish to the City 

replacement insurance policies meeting the requirements of this Section 16 shall be 

considered a material breach of this Franchise and subject to the City’s election of 

remedies described in Section 19 below. Notwithstanding the cure period described in 

Section 19.2, the City may pursue its remedies immediately upon a failure to furnish 

replacement insurance. 

  Franchisee’s maintenance of insurance as required by this Section 

16 shall not be construed to limit the liability of Franchisee to the coverage provided by 

such insurance, or otherwise limit the City’s recourse to any remedy available at law or 

equity. Further, Franchisee’s maintenance of insurance policies required by this 

Franchise shall not be construed to excuse unfaithful performance by Franchisee.  If 

Franchisee maintains higher insurance limits than the minimums shown above, the City 

shall be insured for the full available limits of Commercial General and Excess Umbrella 

liability maintained by the Franchisee, irrespective of whether such limits maintained by 

the Franchisee are greater than those required by this contract or whether any certificate 

of insurance furnished to the City evidences limits of liability lower than those maintained 

by the Franchisee. 

  The City may review all insurance limits once every three years 

during the Term and may make reasonable adjustments in the limits upon thirty (30) days’ 

prior written notice to and review by Franchisee. Franchisee shall then issue or provide a 

certificate of insurance to the City showing compliance with these adjustments. Upon 

request by the City, Franchisee shall make available for review copies of all required 

insurance policies, including endorsements, required in this Franchise and evidence of 

all contractors’ coverage. 

37

Section 9, ItemA.



 29 
4879-5919-2719, v. 1 
{NMM4890-0990-1217;2/13150.000016/} 
} 

  As of the Effective Date of this Franchise, Franchisee is not self-

insured. Should Franchisee wish to become self-insured at the levels outlined in this 

Franchise at a later date, Franchisee or its affiliated parent entity shall comply with the 

following: (i) provide the City, upon request, a copy of Franchisee’s or its parent 

company’s most recent audited financial statements, if such financial statements are not 

otherwise publicly available; (ii) Franchisee or its parent company is responsible for all 

payments within the self-insurance program; and (iii) Franchisee assumes all defense 

and indemnity obligations as outlined in the indemnification section of this Franchise. 

Section 17.  Abandonment of Franchisee’s Telecommunications Network. 

  Where any Facilities or portions of Facilities are no longer needed, 

and their use is to be discontinued, Franchisee shall promptly report such Facilities in 

writing (“Deactivated Facilities”) to the Public Works Director. Deactivated Facilities, or 

portions thereof, shall be completely removed within ninety (90) days following written 

notice from the Public Works Director, or his/her designee, that such removal is required,  

and the site or infrastructure restored to its pre-existing condition.  

  If Franchisee leases a structure from a landlord and such landlord 

later abandons the structure, Franchisee shall remove its Facilities from the abandoned 

structure within the timeline provided by the landlord, but no more than ninety (90) days 

of such notification from the landlord, at no cost to the City and shall remove the pole if 

so required by the landlord. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, the timelines 

determined by the City for relocation projects described in Section 5 above shall apply.  

Upon the expiration, termination, or revocation of the rights granted under this Franchise, 

Franchisee shall remove all of its Facilities from the Rights-of-Way within ninety (90) days 

of receiving written notice from the Public Works Director or his/her designee. The 

Facilities, in whole or in part, may not be abandoned by Franchisee without written 

approval by the City. Any plan for abandonment or removal of Franchisee’s Facilities must 

be first approved by the Public Works Director or his/her designee, and all necessary 

permits must be obtained prior to such work. Franchisee shall restore the Rights-of-Way 

to at least the same condition (accounting for reasonable wear and tear) the Rights-of-

38

Section 9, ItemA.



 30 
4879-5919-2719, v. 1 
{NMM4890-0990-1217;2/13150.000016/} 
} 

Way were in immediately prior to any such installation, construction, relocation, 

maintenance or repair, provided Franchisee shall not be responsible for any changes to 

the Rights-of-Way not caused by Franchisee or any person doing work for Franchisee. 

Franchisee shall be solely responsible for all costs associated with removing its Facilities. 

  Notwithstanding Section 17.1 above, the City may permit 

Franchisee’s Facilities to be abandoned in place in such a manner as the City may 

prescribe consistent with PMC 11.05.190. Upon permanent abandonment, and 

Franchisee’s agreement to transfer ownership of the Facilities to the City, Franchisee 

shall submit to the City a proposal and instruments for transferring ownership to the City.  

  In the event that Franchisee fails to remove Facilities within ninety 

(90) days of either the date of termination or revocation of this Franchise or the date the 

City issued a permit authorizing removal, whichever is later, the City may cause the 

Facilities to be removed. Any costs incurred by the City in removing the Facilities shall be 

reimbursed by Franchisee. Nothing contained within this Section 17 shall prevent the City 

from compelling Franchisee to remove any such Facilities through judicial action.   

  The provisions of this Section 17 shall survive the expiration, 

revocation, or termination of this Franchise and for so long as Franchisee has Facilities 

in Rights-of-Way. 

Section 18.  Bonding.  

  Performance. Franchisee shall furnish a performance financial 

guarantee for any work in the right-of-way as required by AMC 12.02.370 and the City’s 

current Standards for Public Works Standards, as applicable. 

  Security Fund. Prior to the issuance of the Franchise, Franchisee shall 

establish a permanent security fund with the City by depositing the amount of fifty 

thousand dollars ($50,000), or such other amount as deemed necessary by the Director 

of Public Works, with the City in cash, bond, or an unconditional letter of credit, based 

upon both operating history in Rights-of-Way, other ways, and City property and the cost 

39

Section 9, ItemA.



 31 
4879-5919-2719, v. 1 
{NMM4890-0990-1217;2/13150.000016/} 
} 

of removal of Franchisee’s Facilities (“Security Fund”), which shall be maintained at the 

sole expense of the Franchisee so long as any of the Franchisee’s Facilities are located 

within the Rights-of-Way. The Security Fund shall serve as security for the full and 

complete performance of this Franchise including any costs, expenses, damages, or loss 

the City pays or incurs, including civil penalties, because of any failure attributable to the 

Franchisee to comply with the codes, ordinances, rules, regulations, or permits of the City 

applicable to the construction, maintenance, repair, or removal of Facilities in the Rights-

of-Way or upon City property. Franchisee shall replenish the Security Fund within 

fourteen (14) days after written notice from the City that there is a deficiency in the amount 

of the Security Fund.  

 Franchisee specifically agrees that its failure to comply with the terms 

of this Section 18 shall constitute a material breach of this Franchise. The amount of any 

bond or security fund established pursuant to this Section 18 shall not be construed to 

limit Franchisee's liability or to limit the City's recourse to any remedy to which the City is 

otherwise entitled at law or in equity. 

Section 19.  Remedies to Enforce Compliance. 

  The City may elect, without any prejudice to any of its other legal 

rights and remedies, to obtain an order from the superior court having jurisdiction 

compelling Franchisee to comply with the provisions of the Franchise and to recover 

damages and costs incurred by the City by reason of Franchisee’s failure to comply. In 

addition to any other remedy provided herein, the City reserves the right to pursue any 

remedy to compel or force Franchisee and/or its successors and assigns to comply with 

the terms hereof, and the pursuit of any right or remedy by the City shall not prevent the 

City from thereafter declaring a forfeiture or revocation for breach of the conditions herein. 

Provided, further, that by entering into this Franchise, it is not the intention of the City or 

Franchisee to waive any other rights, remedies, or obligations as otherwise provided by 

40

Section 9, ItemA.



 32 
4879-5919-2719, v. 1 
{NMM4890-0990-1217;2/13150.000016/} 
} 

law equity, or otherwise, and nothing contained here shall be deemed or construed to 

affect any such waiver. 

  If Franchisee shall violate, or fail to comply with any of the provisions 

of this Franchise, or should it fail to heed or comply with any notice given to Franchisee 

under the provisions of this Franchise, the City shall provide Franchisee with written 

notice specifying with reasonable particularity the nature of any such breach and 

Franchisee shall undertake all commercially reasonable efforts to cure such breach within 

thirty (30) days of receipt of notification. If the parties reasonably determine the breach 

cannot be cured within (30) thirty days, the City may specify a longer cure period, and 

condition the extension of time on Franchisee's submittal of a plan to cure the breach 

within the specified period, commencement of work within the original thirty (30) day cure 

period, and diligent prosecution of the work to completion. If the breach is not cured within 

the specified time, or Franchisee does not comply with the specified conditions, the City 

may, at its discretion, (1) commence revocation proceedings, pursuant to Section 21, or 

(2) claim damages of Two Hundred Fifty Dollars ($250.00) per day against the Security 

Fund set forth in Section 18.2, or (3) suspend the issuance of additional permits, or (4) 

pursue other remedies as described in Section 19.1 above. 

Section 20.  Forfeiture and Revocation. If Franchisee willfully violates or fails to comply 

with any material provisions of this Franchise beyond applicable notice and cure periods, 

then at the election of the Algona City Council after at least thirty (30) days written notice 

to Franchisee specifying the alleged violation or failure and an opportunity to cure, the 

City may revoke all rights conferred and this Franchise may be revoked by the City 

Council after a hearing held upon such notice to Franchisee. Such hearing shall be open 

to the public and Franchisee and other interested parties may offer written and/or oral 

evidence explaining or mitigating such alleged noncompliance. Within thirty (30) days 

after the hearing, the Algona City Council, on the basis of the record, will make the 

determination as to whether there is cause for revocation, whether the Franchise will be 

terminated, or whether lesser sanctions should otherwise be imposed. The Algona City 

Council may in its sole discretion fix an additional time period to cure violations. If the 

deficiency has not been cured at the expiration of any additional time period or if the 

41

Section 9, ItemA.



 33 
4879-5919-2719, v. 1 
{NMM4890-0990-1217;2/13150.000016/} 
} 

Algona City Council does not grant any additional period, the Algona City Council may by 

resolution declare the Franchise to be revoked and forfeited or impose lesser sanctions. 

If Franchisee appeals revocation and termination, such revocation may be held in 

abeyance pending judicial review by a court of competent jurisdiction, provided 

Franchisee is otherwise in compliance with the Franchise.   

Section 21.  Non-Waiver. The failure of the City to insist upon strict performance of any 

of the covenants and agreements of this Franchise or to exercise any option herein 

conferred in any one or more instances shall not be construed to be a waiver or 

relinquishment of any such covenants, agreements, or option or of any other covenants, 

agreements, or option. 

Section 22.  City Ordinances and Regulations. Nothing herein shall be deemed to 

restrict the City’s ability to adopt and enforce all necessary and appropriate ordinances 

regulating the performance of the conditions of this Franchise, including any valid 

ordinance made in the exercise of its police powers in the interest of public safety and for 

the welfare of the public. The City shall have the authority at all times to reasonably control 

by appropriate regulations the location, elevation, manner of construction, and 

maintenance of Facilities by Franchisee, and Franchisee shall promptly conform with all 

such regulations, unless compliance would cause Franchisee to violate other 

requirements of law. In the event of a conflict between the provisions of this Franchise 

and any other generally applicable ordinance(s) enacted under the City’s police power 

authority, such other ordinances(s) shall take precedence over the provisions set forth 

herein. 

Section 23.  Cost of Publication. The cost of publication of this Franchise shall be borne 

by Franchisee. 

Section 24.  Survival. All of the provisions, conditions, and requirements of Section 5, 

Section 6, Section 8, Section 12, Section 15, Section 17, Section 24, Section 26, and 

Section 37.2 of this Franchise shall be in addition to any and all other obligations and 

liabilities Franchisee may have to the City at common law, by statute, or by contract, and 

shall survive the City’s Franchise to Franchisee for the use of the Franchise Area and any 

42

Section 9, ItemA.



 34 
4879-5919-2719, v. 1 
{NMM4890-0990-1217;2/13150.000016/} 
} 

renewals or extensions thereof. All of the provisions, conditions, regulations, and 

requirements contained in this Franchise shall further be binding upon the heirs, 

successors, executors, administrators, legal representatives, and assigns of Franchisee 

and all privileges, obligations, and liabilities of Franchisee shall inure to its heirs, 

successors, and assigns equally as if they were specifically mentioned where Franchisee 

is named herein. 

Section 25.  Assignment. 

  This Franchise may not be directly or indirectly assigned, transferred, 

or disposed of by sale, lease, merger, consolidation, or other act of Franchisee, by 

operation of law or otherwise, unless prompt written notice is provided to the City within 

sixty (60) days following the assignment. Franchisee may freely assign this Franchise in 

whole or in part to a parent, subsidiary, or affiliated entity, unless there is a change of 

control as described in Section 25.2 below, or to an entity that acquires all or substantially 

all of Franchisee’s assets located in the area defined by the Federal Communications 

Commission in which the Facilities are located, or for collateral security purposes.  

Franchisee shall provide prompt, written notice to the City of any such assignment. In the 

case of transfer or assignment as security by mortgage or other security instrument in 

whole or in part to secure indebtedness, such notice shall not be required unless and until 

the secured party elects to realize upon the collateral. For purposes of this Section 25, no 

assignment or transfer of this Franchise shall be deemed to occur based on the public 

trading of Franchisee's stock; provided, however, any tender offer, merger, or similar 

transaction resulting in a change of control shall be subject to the provisions of this 

Franchise. 

  Any transactions which singularly or collectively result in a change 

of 50% or more of the (i) ownership or working control (for example, management of 

Franchisee or its Telecommunications facilities) of the Franchisee; or (ii) ownership or 

working control of the Franchisee's Telecommunications facilities within the City; or 

(iii) control of the capacity or bandwidth of the Franchisee's Telecommunication facilities 

within the City, shall be considered an assignment or transfer requiring notice to the City 

43

Section 9, ItemA.



 35 
4879-5919-2719, v. 1 
{NMM4890-0990-1217;2/13150.000016/} 
} 

pursuant to this Franchise. Such transactions between affiliated entities are not exempt 

from notice requirements. A Franchisee shall notify the City of any proposed change in, 

or transfer of, or acquisition by any other party of control of a Franchisee within sixty (60) 

days following the closing of the transaction.  In the event such a transfer, assignment, or 

disposal of franchisee’s ownership is approved by the Washington Utilities and 

Transportation Commission (“WUTC”), the City will be deemed to have consented to such 

transfer.  Grantee will provide City with a copy of any such approval. 

  Franchisee may, without prior consent from the City: (i) lease the 

Facilities, or any portion, to another person; (ii) grant an indefeasible right of user interest 

in the Facilities, or any portion, to another person; or (iii) offer to provide capacity or 

bandwidth in its Facilities to another person, provided further, that Franchisee shall at all 

times retain exclusive control over its Facilities and remain fully responsible for 

compliance with the terms of this Franchise, and Franchisee shall furnish, upon request 

from the City, proof of any such lease or agreement, provided that Franchisee may redact 

the name, street address (except for City and zip code), Social Security Numbers, 

Employer Identification Numbers or similar identifying information, and other information 

considered confidential under applicable laws provided in such lease or agreement, and 

the lessee complies, to the extent applicable, with the requirements of this Franchise and 

applicable City codes. Franchisee’s obligation to remain fully responsible for compliance 

with the terms under this Section 25.3 shall survive the expiration of this Franchise but 

only if and to the extent and for so long as Franchisee is still the owner or has exclusive 

control over the Facilities used by a third party. 

Section 26.  Extension. If this Franchise expires without renewal or is otherwise lawfully 

terminated or revoked, the City may, subject to applicable law: 

(a) Allow Franchisee to maintain and operate its Facilities on a month-to-month 

basis, provided that Franchisee maintains insurance for such Facilities during such period 

and continues to comply with this Franchise; or 

(b) The City may order the removal of any and all Facilities at Franchisee’s sole 

cost and expense consistent with Section 17. 

44

Section 9, ItemA.



 36 
4879-5919-2719, v. 1 
{NMM4890-0990-1217;2/13150.000016/} 
} 

 
Section 27.  Entire Agreement. This Franchise constitutes the entire understanding and 

agreement between the parties as to the subject matter herein and no other agreements 

or understandings, written or otherwise, shall be binding upon the parties upon execution 

of this Franchise. 

Section 28.  Eminent Domain. The existence of this Franchise shall not preclude the 

City from acquiring by condemnation in accordance with applicable law, all or a portion of 

the Franchisee’s Facilities for the fair market value thereof. In determining the value of 

such Facilities, no value shall be attributed to the right to occupy the area conferred by 

this Franchise.   

Section 29.  Vacation. If at any time the City, by ordinance, vacates all or any portion of 

the area affected by this Franchise, the City shall not be liable for any damages or loss to 

the Franchisee by reason of such vacation. The City shall notify the Franchisee in writing 

not less than ninety (90) days before vacating all or any portion of any such area. The 

City may, after ninety (90) days written notice to the Franchisee, terminate this Franchise 

with respect to such vacated area. 

Section 30.  Notice. Any notice required or permitted under this Franchise shall be in 

writing, and shall be delivered personally, delivered by a nationally recognized overnight 

courier, or sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, to the other party 

at the address listed below. If such notice, demand or other communication shall be 

served personally, service shall be conclusively deemed made at the time of such 

personal service. If such notice, demand or other communication is given by overnight 

delivery, it shall be conclusively deemed given the day after it was sent to the party to 

whom such notice, demand or other communication is to be given. If such notice, demand 

or other communication is given by mail, it shall be conclusively deemed given three (3) 

days after it was deposited in the United States mail addressed to the party to whom such 

notice, demand or other communication is to be given.   

 

CITY OF ALGONA 
Public Works Director 

Franchisee:   
Ziply Fiber Pacific, LLC 

45

Section 9, ItemA.



 37 
4879-5919-2719, v. 1 
{NMM4890-0990-1217;2/13150.000016/} 
} 

200 Washington Blvd 
Algona, WA 98001 
info@algonawa.gov  
 

Attn: Legal Department 
135 Lake Street South, 
Suite 155 
Kirkland, WA  98033 
legal@ziply.com. 
 
 
  
 

 

Section 31.  Severability. If any section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Franchise 

is or should be held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, 

such invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of any 

other section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Franchise unless such invalidity or 

unconstitutionality materially alters the rights, privileges, duties, or obligations hereunder, 

in which event either party may request renegotiation of those remaining terms of this 

Franchise materially affected by such court ruling. 

Section 32.  Compliance with All Applicable Laws. Franchisee agrees to comply with 

all present and future federal and state laws, ordinances, rules and regulations. Nothing 

herein shall be deemed to restrict the City’s ability to adopt and enforce all necessary and 

appropriate ordinances regulating the performance of the conditions of this Franchise, 

including any valid ordinance made in the exercise of its police powers in the interest of 

public safety and for the welfare of the public. The City shall have the authority at all times 

to reasonably control by appropriate regulations the location, elevation, manner of 

construction and maintenance of Facilities by Franchisee, and Franchisee shall promptly 

conform with all such regulations, unless compliance would cause Franchisee to violate 

other requirements of law.  Franchisee shall not be required to comply with any new 

ordinances to the extent that they impact existing Facilities authorized by the City in 

accordance to the ordinance appliable at the time of the Facilities’ construction.  

Section 33.  Amendment. The City reserves the right at any time to amend this 

Franchise to conform to any hereafter enacted, amended, or adopted federal or state 

statute or regulation relating to the public health, safety, and welfare; or relating to 

roadway regulation or relating to a City ordinance enacted pursuant to such federal or 

46

Section 9, ItemA.



 38 
4879-5919-2719, v. 1 
{NMM4890-0990-1217;2/13150.000016/} 
} 

state statute or regulation; provided that the City provide Franchisee with ninety (90) days 

prior written notice of its action setting forth the full text of the amendment and identifying 

the statute, regulation, or ordinance requiring the amendment. Said amendment shall 

become automatically effective upon expiration of the notice period unless, before 

expiration of that period, Franchisee makes a written request for negotiations over the 

terms of the amendment. If the parties do not reach agreement as to the terms of the 

amendment within ninety (90) days of the call for negotiations, the parties shall submit 

the issue to non-binding mediation. If such mediation is unsuccessful, the parties may 

then submit the issue to a court of competent jurisdiction. 

 
Section 34.  Attorney Fees. If a suit or other action is instituted in connection with any 

controversy arising out of this Franchise, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover 

all of its costs, expenses, and attorney fees as the court finds reasonable, including those 

upon appeal of any judgment or ruling. 

Section 35.  Hazardous Substances. Franchisee shall not introduce or use any 

hazardous substances (chemical or waste) in violation of any applicable law or regulation, 

and Franchisee shall not allow any of its agents, contractors, or any person under its 

control to do the same. Franchisee will be solely responsible for and will defend, 

indemnify, and hold the City and its officers, officials, employees, agents, and 

representatives harmless from and against any and all claims, costs, and liabilities, 

including reasonable attorney fees and costs, arising out of or in connection with the 

cleanup or restoration of the property associated with Franchisee’s use, storage, or 

disposal of hazardous substances, whether or not intentional, and/or with the use, storage 

or disposal of such substances by Franchisee’s agents, contractors, or other persons 

acting under Franchisee’s control, whether or not intentional. 

Section 36.  Licenses, Fees, and Taxes. Prior to constructing any improvements, 

Franchisee shall obtain a business or utility license from the City. Franchisee shall pay 

promptly, and before they become delinquent, all taxes on personal property and 

improvements owned or placed by Franchisee and shall pay all license fees and public 

utility charges relating to the conduct of its business, shall pay for all permits, licenses, 

47

Section 9, ItemA.



 39 
4879-5919-2719, v. 1 
{NMM4890-0990-1217;2/13150.000016/} 
} 

and zoning approvals, shall pay any other applicable tax unless documentation of 

exemption is provided to the City, and shall pay utility taxes and license fees imposed by 

the City. 

Section 37.  Miscellaneous. 

  City and Franchisee respectively represent that its signatory is duly 

authorized and has full right, power, and authority to execute this Franchise. 

  This Franchise shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the 

State of Washington. Venue for any dispute related to this Franchise shall be the United 

States District Court for the Western District of Washington or King County Superior 

Court. 

  The section captions and headings herein are intended solely to 

facilitate the reading thereof. Such captions and headings shall not affect the meaning or 

interpretation of the text herein. 

  Where the context so requires, the singular shall include the plural 

and the plural includes the singular. 

  Franchisee shall be responsible for obtaining all other necessary 

approvals, authorizations, and agreements from any party or entity and it is acknowledged 

and agreed that the City is making no representation, warranty, or covenant whether any 

of the foregoing approvals, authorizations, or agreements are required or have been 

obtained by Franchisee by any person or entity. 

  This Franchise may be enforced at both law and equity. 

  Franchisee acknowledges that it, and not the City, shall be 

responsible for the premises and equipment’s compliance with all marking and lighting 

requirements of the FAA and the FCC. Franchisee shall indemnify and hold the City 

harmless from any fines or other liabilities caused by Franchisee’s failure to comply with 

such requirements. Should Franchisee or the City be cited by either the FCC or the FAA 

48

Section 9, ItemA.



 40 
4879-5919-2719, v. 1 
{NMM4890-0990-1217;2/13150.000016/} 
} 

because the Facilities or the Franchisee’s equipment is not in compliance and should 

Franchisee fail to cure the conditions of noncompliance within the timeframe allowed by 

the citing agency, the City may either terminate this Franchise immediately on notice to 

the Franchisee or proceed to cure the conditions of noncompliance at the Franchisee’s 

expense. 

    Neither party shall be required to perform any covenant or obligation 

in this Franchise, or be liable in damages to the other party, so long as the performance 

of the covenant or obligation is delayed, caused or prevented by a Force Majeure Event. 

A "Force Majeure Event" is defined for purposes of this Franchise as strikes, lockouts, sit-

down strike, unusual transportation delays, riots, floods, washouts, explosions, 

earthquakes, fire, storms, weather (including inclement weather which prevents 

construction), acts of the public enemy, wars, terrorism, insurrections, and any other 

similar act of God event. 

Section 38.  Acceptance. The rights and privileges granted pursuant to this Franchise 

shall not become effective until its terms and conditions are accepted by Franchisee. 

Acceptance shall be accomplished by Franchisee’s submission of a written instrument in 

the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, executed and sworn to by a corporate officer of the 

Franchisee before a Notary Public. Acceptance must be filed with the City within thirty 

(30) days after the effective date of this Ordinance. At the time that acceptance is 

submitted, Franchisee shall also submit necessary insurance documentation pursuant to 

Section 16; any Performance Bond, if applicable, pursuant to Section 18; and the 

Franchise Bond required pursuant to Section 18.2. The administrative fees owing 

pursuant to Section 14.1 are due within thirty (30) days of receipt of invoice from the City. 

 

APPROVED: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
TROY LINNELL, MAYOR 

49

Section 9, ItemA.



 41 
4879-5919-2719, v. 1 
{NMM4890-0990-1217;2/13150.000016/} 
} 

  

ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED: 
 
 
_______________________________  
DANA PARKER, CITY CLERK 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
____________________________________ 

Zach Lell, CITY ATTORNEY 
 

 

 

FILED WITH THE CITY CLERK:   
PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL:   
PUBLISHED:   
EFFECTIVE DATE:   
ORDINANCE NO.:   
 

50

Section 9, ItemA.



 

 42 
4879-5919-2719, v. 1 
{NMM4890-0990-1217;2/13150.000016/} 
} 

 

SUMMARY OF ORDINANCE NO.  ____ 
 

City of Algona, Washington 
 
   
 

On the ____ day of _____, 202__, the City Council of the City of Algona 
passed Ordinance No.________. A summary of the content of said Ordinance, consisting 
of the title, is provided as follows: 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF ALGONA, WASHINGTON, GRANTING 
TO ZIPLY FIBER PACIFIC, LLC DBA ZIPLY FIBER AND ITS AFFILIATES, 
SUCCESSORS, AND ASSIGNS THE RIGHT, PRIVILEGE, AUTHORITY, 
AND NONEXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE FOR FIVE YEARS TO CONSTRUCT, 
MAINTAIN, OPERATE, REPLACE, AND REPAIR A 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS NETWORK IN, ACROSS, OVER, ALONG, 
UNDER, THROUGH, AND BELOW THE PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY OF 
THE CITY OF ALGONA, WASHINGTON. 

 
The full text of this Ordinance will be mailed upon request. 

 
 

   
DANA PARKER, CITY CLERK 

 
 
 
 
FILED WITH THE CITY CLERK:   
PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL:   
PUBLISHED:   
EFFECTIVE DATE:   
ORDINANCE NO.:   
 
  

51

Section 9, ItemA.



 

 43 
4879-5919-2719, v. 1 
{NMM4890-0990-1217;2/13150.000016/} 
} 

EXHIBIT A 
 

STATEMENT OF ACCEPTANCE 
 

Ziply Fiber Pacific, LLC dba Ziply Fiber, for itself and its successors, affiliates and assigns, 
hereby accepts and agrees to be bound by all lawful terms, conditions, and provisions of 
the Franchise attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 
Ziply Fiber Pacific, LLC 
 
By: _________________________________ Date: _______________________ 

Name: ____________________ 

Title:   Associate General Counsel 
 
 
 
STATE OF ________________ ) 
COUNTY OF ______________ ) 
 
On this ____ day of _______________, 202_, before me the undersigned, a Notary 
Public in and for the State of _________________, duly commissioned and sworn, 
personally appeared, __________________ of _____________________, the company 
that executed the within and foregoing instrument, and acknowledged the said instrument 
to be the free and voluntary act and deed of said company, for the uses and purposes 
therein mentioned, and on oath stated that he/she is authorized to execute said 
instrument. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal on the 
date hereinabove set forth. 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Signature 
 
_____________________________________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of __________________, residing at 
________________________ 
 
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: ______________________________ 

 
 

 

 

52

Section 9, ItemA.



 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL  

AGENDA BILL # 

City of Algona 

200 Washington Blvd. 

Algona, WA 98001 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

City Council Agenda Packet  04-08-2024  

ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT: 
 

   Ordinance 1234-24, Street Racing 

Agenda Date: April 8th, 2024   

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 

Mayor   
City Administrator  X 

City Attorney x x 
City Clerk  x 

Finance Dept   
PW/Utilities   

Planning Dept   
 Community Services   

Cost Impact: Police Dept  x 
Fund Source:  Finance Committee   
Timeline: 1st review - 3/25/24 Planning Commission   

                  2nd review – 4/8/24 Civil Service Committee   
     

Staff Contact: James Schrimpsher, Chief of Police 

Attachments: Ordinance 1234-24 

- 

SUMMARY STATEMENT:  

  This ordinance codifies street racing as an illegal activity in city limits.  

COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:  

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  

 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date:  Action: Vote:   

 

 

AB24-0121 

53

Section 9, ItemB.



{JZL4872-1665-4255;3/13150.000004/} 

 

CITY OF ALGONA, WASHINGTON 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 1234-24 
____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALGONA, 
WASHINGTON; AMENDING TITLE 10 AMC BY THE ADDITION OF A 
NEW CHAPTER 10.30 STREET RACING THERETO; PROHIBITING 
STREET RACING AND SPECTATING OF STREET RACING WITHIN 
THE CITY; DESIGNATING CERTAIN AREAS WITHIN THE CITY AS “NO 
RACING ZONES”; SETTING FORTH PENALTIES AND REMEDIES FOR 
VIOLATIONS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND ESTABLISHING 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE  

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 
WHEREAS, the City regulates vehicles and traffic through the provisions codified at Title 10 

of the Algona Municipal Code (AMC); and  
 
WHEREAS, in 2023 the Washington Legislature adopted Senate Bill (SB) 5606, updating 

and amending the state law provisions governing illegal street racing and providing penalties and 
remedies therefor, including without limitation criminal sanctions and vehicle impoundment; and 

 
WHEREAS, consistent with SB 5606, the City Council desires to amend Title 10 AMC by 

adopting a new chapter specifically prohibiting street racing and spectating of street racing, and 
designating certain areas within the City as “no racing zones”; and 

 
WHEREAS, the new regulations set forth in this ordinance will serve the public interest by 

protecting and enhancing the safety of vehicular, nonmotorized, and pedestrian traffic within the City; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALGONA DO ORDAIN AS 

FOLLOWS:  
 

Section 1.  Amendment of Title 10 AMC—Addition of New Chapter 10.30. Title 10 of the 
Algona Municipal Code is hereby amended by the addition of a new Chapter 10.30 AMC Street 
Racing to provide in its entirety as contained in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein 
by this reference as if set forth in full.  

 
Section 2.  Severability. Should any section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 

ordinance, or its application to any person or circumstance, be declared unconstitutional or otherwise 
invalid for any reason, or should any portion of this ordinance be pre-empted by state or federal law 
or regulation, such decision or pre-emption shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of 
this ordinance or its application to other persons or circumstances.  
  

Section 3.   Effective Date. This ordinance shall be published in the official newspaper of the 
City, and shall take effect and be in full force five (5) days after the date of publication.  
 

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF THIS ____ DAY 
OF APRIL 2024. 
 
 
 

54

Section 9, ItemB.



 2  
4872-1665-4255, v. 3 
{JZL4872-1665-4255;3/13150.000004/} 

              
Troy Linnell, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Dana Parker, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
       
J. Zachary Lell 
City Attorney 
 
Filed with the City Clerk:  
Passed by the City Council:  
Ordinance No.: XXXX-XX 
Date of Publication:  
 

  

55

Section 9, ItemB.



 3  
4872-1665-4255, v. 3 
{JZL4872-1665-4255;3/13150.000004/} 

Exhibit A 

 

Chapter 10.30 

STREET RACING 

 

Sections: 

 10.30.010 Purpose and authority.  
 10.30.020 Definitions. 
 10.30.030 Street racing prohibited. 
 10.30.040 Spectating of street racing prohibited. 
 10.30.050 Designation of no racing zones. 
 10.30.060  Stay out of areas of racing orders. 
 10.30.070 Authority preserved.  

 

10.30.010 Purpose and authority. 

Street racing threatens the health and safety of the public, interferes with pedestrian and vehicular 

traffic, creates a public nuisance, interferes with the right of businesses and residents to enjoy the 

use of their property, and unnecessarily expends law enforcement resources. 

This chapter is adopted to prohibit not only street racing itself but also to prohibit spectators at street 

races. In prohibiting spectators, the act of organizing and participating in illegal street races will be 

discouraged. 

The city has the authority to regulate the use of its streets under its constitutional police powers and 

state law, including but not limited to RCW 35A.11.020. 

Chapter 10.01 AMC sets forth the city’s traffic regulations, adopting the State’s Model Traffic 

Ordinance, which applies certain provisions of Chapter 46.61 RCW, Rules of the Road, throughout 

the city’s jurisdiction. 

RCW 46.61.530 provides that no person may race any motor vehicle upon any public highway. 

Racing occurs when any person or persons willfully compare or contest relative speeds by operation 

of one or more motor vehicles, whether or not such speed is in excess of the maximum speed 

prescribed by law. Racing constitutes reckless driving under RCW 46.61.500. Reckless driving is a 

gross misdemeanor, with not less than 30 days’ license suspension.  

10.30.020 Definitions. 

"Drifting" means a driver intentionally oversteers a vehicle, causing loss of traction, while 

maneuvering a vehicle in a turning direction.  

“Exhibition of speed” means the operation of a motor vehicle to present a display of speed, 

maneuverability, or power. Exhibition of speed or acceleration includes, but is not limited to, 

squealing the tires of a motor vehicle while it is stationary or in motion, rapid acceleration, rapid 

swerving or weaving, drifting, producing smoke from tire slippage, or leaving visible tire acceleration 

marks on the surface of a paved or unpaved area, that is done intentionally to draw the attention of 

persons in the vicinity. 

56

Section 9, ItemB.

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/LakeForestPark/html/LakeForestPark10/LakeForestPark1004.html#10.04


 4  
4872-1665-4255, v. 3 
{JZL4872-1665-4255;3/13150.000004/} 

“Illegal race event” means an event where street racing occurs using public highways, streets, or 

rights-of-way in violation of applicable motor vehicle and traffic laws, including 

RCW 46.61.500 and 46.61.530, or within an off-street parking facility. 

“Off-street parking facility” means a public or private off-street parking area open for use by the 

general public for parking motor vehicles. 

“Preparations” means acts done to facilitate the racing event including, but not limited to, arrival of 

motor vehicles at a predetermined location; impeding the use of a city street by action, word, or 

physical barrier; the revving of motor vehicle engines or spinning of motor vehicle tires; the gathering 

of individuals with intent to actively take part in the event or to spectate; or the presence of a person 

acting as a race starter. 

“Spectator” means any person who has actual or constructive knowledge that they are present at an 

illegal race event with intent to view, observe, watch, record, support, encourage, or witness the 

event as it progresses, whether on public or private property. 

“Street” means land acquired or dedicated for public and private roads and thoroughfares for vehicle 

use. 

“Street racing” means an exhibition of speed; the action of a person(s) who willfully compare or 

contest of relative speeds by operation of one or more motor vehicles, or who willfully demonstrates, 

exhibits, or compares speed, maneuverability, or the power of one or more motor vehicles, including 

"drifting," whether or not such speed is in excess of the maximum speed prescribed by law, as 

provided in RCW 46.61.530, as amended, regardless of whether the comparison or contest is against 

another vehicle, clock, or other timing device. Street racing includes a contest or exhibition of speed 

whether in a parallel or circular direction and may occur both on streets and in off-street parking 

areas.  

10.30.030 Street racing prohibited. 

A. No person shall knowingly engage or participate in street racing on a street or within an off-street 

parking facility within the city. 

B. Violations of this section shall be a gross misdemeanor punishable as provided in 

RCW 46.61.500, reckless driving, as amended. In addition to the penalties provided for in 

RCW 46.61.500, upon conviction, the court may impound the person’s vehicle for up to 30 calendar 

days. 

10.30.040 Spectating of street racing prohibited. 

A. No person shall knowingly spectate at an illegal race event or where preparations are being made 

for an illegal race event with the intent to be present at the illegal race event. 

B. For the purpose of this section, a person shall be considered present if within 200 feet of the 

location of the illegal race event or the location where preparations are being made for the illegal 

race event, whether on public or private property. 

C. Nothing in this section prohibits law enforcement officers from being spectators in the course of 

their official duties. 

D. Violations of this section shall be a misdemeanor punishable as provided in AMC 1.24.010.  

10.30.050 Designation of no racing zones. 

57

Section 9, ItemB.



 5  
4872-1665-4255, v. 3 
{JZL4872-1665-4255;3/13150.000004/} 

A. Certain areas of the city are designated and identified as “no racing zones.” These zones are or 

have been frequented by illegal racers and those who attend illegal race events because of their 

characteristics, such as straight, wide, long, and with low traffic volumes during nighttime hours. 

B. The following described areas are identified and designated as no racing zones: 

1. All of Boundary Blvd and South on Algona Blvd to 7th Ave N; 

2. Milwaukee Blvd N from 5th Ave N to Boundary; 

3. All of Pacific Ave N from 1st Ave N to the South City Limits; and 

4. All of Ellingson Rd from the East City Limits to the West City Limits. 

C. No racing zones shall include the full width of streets and adjoining property areas, including 

sidewalks, planting strips, and parking areas if those areas are being used for racing or race 

attendance, regardless of whether such property is a public place or is private property. 

D. No racing zones shall be designated by the placement of clear and conspicuous signs at all 

street/highway entrances to the “no racing zone.” At a minimum, these signs shall advise that the 

area is a “no racing zone”; that race attendance is prohibited; and violators are subject to 

Chapter 10.30 AMC.  

10.30.060 Stay out of areas of racing orders. 

A. In addition to any other penalty imposed by this chapter, the city attorney or city prosecuting 
attorney, after consultation with the chief of police, may seek a stay out of areas of racing (SOAR) 
order from the district court as a condition of pre-trial release or a condition of sentence, deferral, or 
suspension for any person found to be in violation of this chapter when the illegal race event occurred 
within a designated no racing zone. 

B. The district court may enter a SOAR order prohibiting a person from entering or remaining in a no 
racing zone for up to one year. The SOAR order shall be in writing, contain any conditional exceptions 
imposed by the court, and shall bear the following language: 

Violation of this court order is a criminal offense under AMC 
10.30.050 and shall constitute a separate criminal offense. Violators 
will be subject to arrest and their vehicle subject to impound. 

C. The district court in its discretion may allow a person subject to a SOAR order to enter a no racing 
zone under certain conditional exceptions. Exceptions to the SOAR order may include travel to and 
from and/or remaining in the following locations so long as these locations apply to or are used by 
the person who is subject of the SOAR order: 

1. Place of residence; 

2. Court/government offices (while open to the public); 

3. Social services provider or treatment center; 

4. Place of employment; 

5. School; 

6. Attorney’s office; 

7. Place of worship; or 

8. Medical services. 

58

Section 9, ItemB.



 6  
4872-1665-4255, v. 3 
{JZL4872-1665-4255;3/13150.000004/} 

D. If the court allows for exceptions in the SOAR order, the person subject to that order is required 
to have a copy of the order on their person whenever they are traveling through a no racing zone. 
Failure to present this order upon request by law enforcement is a violation of the SOAR order and 
subject to the penalties set forth in this chapter. For the purpose of this section, “travel” is defined as 
movement on foot or in a vehicle from one point to another without delay. 

E. Upon entering a SOAR order, the clerk of the court shall forward a copy of the order to the police 
department on or before the next judicial day following issuance of the order. Upon receipt, the police 
department shall enter the order into the appropriate law enforcement information system, noting the 
expiration date of the SOAR order. 

F. Notice of SOAR Order. A person is deemed to have notice of the SOAR order when: 

1. The signature of either the person named in the order is affixed to the bottom of the order, 
acknowledging receipt of the order; or 

2. The order otherwise indicates that the person appeared before the court at the time the order 
was entered. 

G. Enforcement Procedure. 

1. If a law enforcement officer has probable cause to believe that a person subject to a SOAR 
order, and in the officer’s presence, is knowingly violating that order, such person may be 
arrested without the necessity for any warrant or additional court order and the officer may 
impound the person’s vehicle pursuant to state law or court-imposed conditions of the SOAR 
order. 

2. The chief of police, in consultation with the city attorney, shall have the authority to 
promulgate procedures for the administration of this chapter. 

H. Penalties. 

1. Any person who knowingly violates a SOAR order shall be guilty of a gross misdemeanor. 

 

10.30.070   Authority preserved.  

The penalties and remedies set forth in this chapter are nonexclusive, and are without prejudice to 

any and all other applicable penalties and remedies under state law and/or this code.  

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

59

Section 9, ItemB.



60

Section 9, ItemC.



61

Section 9, ItemC.



 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL  

AGENDA BILL # 

City of Algona 

200 Washington Blvd. 

Algona, WA 98001 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

City Council Agenda Packet  04-08-2024  

ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT: 
 

   Rental Fee Schedule 

Agenda Date: April 8th, 2024   

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 

Mayor   
City Administrator  X 

City Attorney  x 
City Clerk  x 

Finance Dept   
PW/Utilities   

Planning Dept   
 Community Services   

Cost Impact: Police Dept   
Fund Source:  Finance Committee   
Timeline: 1st review - 3/11/24 Planning Commission   

                  2nd review – 4/8/24 Civil Service Committee   
     

Staff Contact: Jessica Griess, City Administrator 

Attachments: Memo from Community Center Advisory Board; draft rental packet 

- 

SUMMARY STATEMENT:  

  The Community Center Advisory Board has discussed renting the shelters in the parks and reviewed the 
current fees for the community center. Their recommendation is in front of you for your review and 
discussion. Also included is an updated rental packet that includes the recommendations.  

COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:  

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  

 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date:  Action: Vote:   

 

 

AB24-0118 

62

Section 9, ItemC.



 

{JZL2013262.DOCX;1/13150.000003/ }  

 

 

 
 

CITY OF ALGONA 
 

COMMUNITY CENTER 

& 

Park Facilities 
 

 

RENTAL PACKET 
 

 

 

 

200 Washington Blvd 

Algona, Washington 98001 

253.833.2897 Phone 

253.939.3366 Fax 

garyk@algonawa.gov 

 
 

 

 

63

Section 9, ItemC.

mailto:garyk@algonawa.gov


 

{JZL2013262.DOCX;1/13150.000003/ }  

 
 

 
 

APPLICATION AND AGREEMENT FOR USE OF CITY FACILITIES 
 

Date ___________________ 

 

Applicant_______________________________ Driver’s Lic #_________________________ 

 

NAME OF PERSON IN CHARGE (MUST BE 21) __________________________________ 

PHONE # (w) _____________________ (h) __________________ (c)___________________ 

ADDRESS OF APPLICANT:   

STREET _________________________________   CITY______________ ZIP_____________ 

*IF APPLYING AS A NON PROFIT, YOU ARE REQUIRED TO SHOW PROOF OF NON 

PROFIT DESIGNATION 

 

FACILITY REQUESTED:  Community room ___Kitchen___ (access only) (“City Facility”) 

DATE(S) REQUESTED: ________________TIME REQUESTED: From_______ TO______ 

 

PROPOSED USE OF CITY FACILITY 

The Applicant proposes to the use the City Facility for the following purposes (the “Permitted 

Use”): 

 

 

The Applicant shall not use, or allow the use of, the City Facility for any purpose other than the 

Permitted Use, and shall not enter upon, use, or allow to be used, the City Facility at any time 

except during the Rental Period.  

 

REMEMBER TO INCLUDE YOUR SET UP TIME AS WELL AS CLEAN UP TIME. 

TYPE OF ACTIVITY/MEETING__________ NUMBER OF PEOPLE EXPECTED _______ 

ADMISSION COLLECTED?  YES ___ NO ___ EXPLAIN ___________________ 

 

AGREEMENT:  The above application and the following Terms and Conditions (collectively 

“the Agreement”) set forth the binding contractual relationship between the Applicant and the 

City with respect to the Applicant’s use of the City Facility.   The undersigned hereby makes 

application to the City for use of the City Facility described above and certifies that the 

64

Section 9, ItemC.



 

{JZL2013262.DOCX;1/13150.000003/ }  

information provided in the application is correct.  The undersigned further represents and 

warrants that he/she has the authority to make this application, and to execute this Agreement, on 

behalf of the Applicant, and further agrees that the Applicant will strictly observe and comply 

with the requirements of this Agreement and all applicable laws, rules, regulations and policies 

governing the Permitted Use and the use of City Facility.  The Applicant agrees to exercise the 

utmost care in the use of the City Facility and to indemnify and hold the City harmless from all 

losses, liabilities, claims, demands or causes of action resulting from Applicant’s use thereof as 

set forth in this Agreement.  The Applicant further agrees to reimburse the City for any damage 

arising from the Applicant's use of the City Facility as set forth in this Agreement. 

 

I have read and do understand the terms and conditions for use of the City Facility and agree to 

the provisions set forth in this Agreement. 

 

Signature: ___________________________________ Today’s Date: ____________________ 

 

Applicant: ___________________________________ 

 
For City use only   

Approved: ___ Denied ___ Reason for denial __________________________________ 

Rental Fee ____ PAID _____ DAMAGE DEPOSIT __________ PAID _____________ 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS _______________________________________________ 

SIGNATURE ________________________________ DATE ______________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

65

Section 9, ItemC.



 

{JZL2013262.DOCX;1/13150.000003/ }  

 

 

 

ALGONA COMMUNITY CENTER RENTAL AGREEMENT 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

Reservations 
 

To make reservations, please visit the Algona Community Center Monday through Friday 

between the hours of 9:00 am – 12:00 pm and 1:00 pm – 5:00 pm.  You may also reach us at 

253.833.2897.  

 

Rental reservations are taken on the first come first serve basis.  Reservations cannot be finalized 

until payment is made in full. 

Payment reflects the total hours the Applicant will use the City Facility as well as the 

Damage Deposit. 
 

All applications must be verified and approved by the Recreation Coordinator 
 

DAMAGE DEPOSIT RULES, CANCELLATION RATES 

 

In addition to rental fees, the Applicant will be charged a Damage Deposit in an amount 

specified by the City.  Damage Deposits are completely refundable as long as the following 

terms are met: 

 

1. The City Facility (including outside grounds) is 

left in a clean and orderly manner per the rental Clean Up Checklist. 

2. The Applicant’s use of the City’s Facility does not exceed or otherwise extend 

beyond the Rental Period. 

3. All City equipment located within or otherwise associated with the City Facility is 

accounted for and undamaged. 

4. Additional City staff time is not required as part of the Applicant’s use of the City 

Facility. 

5. Damage to the City Facility, or other City property, resulting from or otherwise 

arising out Applicant’s use has not occurred. 

6. The Applicant has complied with the prohibition against consumption of any 

alcoholic beverage in the City Facility or grounds of City Hall. 

7. All rules/guidelines/policies governing the Permitted Use, and the rental usage of 

the Algona Community Center, are met. 

 

 

If these conditions are not met to the reasonable satisfaction of the City, an appropriate amount 

will be deducted from the Damage Deposit.  If deemed reasonably necessary by the City, the 

66

Section 9, ItemC.



 

{JZL2013262.DOCX;1/13150.000003/ }  

Applicant will also be charged for any additional costs and/or expenses incurred by the City.  

Please allow 14 days for the Damage Deposit to be returned. 
 

 

 

Cancellations 
 

 Cancellations made at least 14 days prior to the event will result in no cancellation 

charge. 

 Cancellations made with less than a two-week notice will result in a cancellation fee of 

$100.00.  Unless due to an emergent situation decided by the City. 

 

 

NOTE:  The City reserves the right to cancel the Applicant’s scheduled use of the City Facility 

with a full refund to Applicant if, in the City’s reasonable discretion, the City Facility is needed 

for a public purpose, specifically including without limitation any emergency purpose, during the 

Rental Period. 

Park Facility Fees 
   

Baseball Field and Picnic Shelters 

 Half Day (9:00 – 3:00 or 3:30 – dusk) Resident   $50.00 

       Non Resident  $75.00 

 Full Day (9:00 – dusk)   Resident   $75.00  

       Non Resident   $125.00 

 

Community Center Fees 
   

Community Room 

 Damage Deposit   $250.00  

 Hourly fee      Resident       $ 50.00 

Non Resident        $ 75.00                              Non-Profit   $45.00 

 

Kitchen (access only) 
 Use of Kitchen $30.00 flat fee  

 

Meeting Room (114, 116, and 117) 

 Hourly fee      Resident                $ 15.00 

Non Resident        $ 20.00                                Algona Non-Profit   $ 10.00 

Non-Algona Non-Profit $ 15.00 
 

Additional Fees 

Over run fees for room rental will be charged as follows 

 15-30minutes-1/2 hour 

 30-60 minutes- 1 hour 

 

 

67

Section 9, ItemC.



 

{JZL2013262.DOCX;1/13150.000003/ }  

Kitchen Information 
 

It is the exclusive responsibility of the Applicant to provide its own food serving, and eating 

dishes, paper products, utensils, and all other kitchen items, as applicable.  No cooking is 

allowed on the premises.  All food must be pre-prepared off-site and/or catered. 

 

Room Setup 

 

Set up of the City Facility as necessary to accommodate the Permitted Use is the sole 

responsibility of the Applicant.  The Applicant will not be allowed inside the City Facility prior 

to the start of the Rental Period.  Please be sure to allow enough time to complete any desired 

room set up and/or decorating when booking the rental.  The Applicant will be charged for any 

and all time used for set up.  The Applicant is responsible for returning the furniture and other 

items inside the City Facility to their original configuration at the conclusion of the Applicant’s 

use. 

 

Loading, Deliveries and Storage 
 

All deliveries to the City Facility provided or otherwise arranged by the Applicant must occur 

during the Rental Period only.  Deliveries that arrive early will not be accepted.  City Staff will 

not sign for any deliveries.  All items must be removed from the City Facility at the end of the 

Rental Period. 

 

Cleaning the Facility 
 

Applicant is solely responsible for cleaning the City Facility in accordance with the Rental 

Clean-up Check List.  All garbage generated from the Applicant’s use is to be removed from the 

City Facility at the conclusion of the Rental Period and placed in the dumpster.  (Please use the 

dumpster located in back parking lot.) 

 

Any cleaning and or repairs that require staff time and materials will be deducted from the 

Damage Deposit and/or charged to the Applicant.  If the Applicant’s use of the City Facility 

exceeds the Rental Period, the Applicant will be charged for the additional time and/or it will be 

deducted from the Damage Deposit. 

 

Decorations 
 

Decorations may be attached to the walls, windows, or ceilings of the City Facility with blue 

tape only.  The use of tacks, staples, glue or other marring materials on walls, tables, or 

floors of the City Facility is strictly prohibited. 

The use of candles or flammable materials is strictly prohibited.  

The use of smoke machines is strictly prohibited. 

 

68

Section 9, ItemC.



 

{JZL2013262.DOCX;1/13150.000003/ }  

 Alcohol Consumption 
 

The consumption of alcohol is strictly prohibited on all City property. 

 

Smoking 
 

The Algona Community Center is a smoke free and tobacco free facility.  Therefore, smoking, 

chewing, etc. of tobacco is prohibited inside the City Facility. Please smoke outside of the City 

Facility in designated smoking areas only (across Washington Blvd. in the gravel parking area).  

 

 

Selling Items 
 

Applicants wishing to sell items while meeting at the Community Center may be required to 

obtain a City of Algona Business License.  A copy of the business license must be on file with 

the rental application 7 days prior to the scheduled event.  Business Licenses may be obtained by 

contacting the City Clerk Office at City Hall (253-833-2897).  See attached business license 

application. 
 

 

Indemnification, Insurance and Risk of Loss 
 

 

Indemnification / Hold Harmless 

 

Applicant shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City, its officer, officials, employees and 

volunteers from and against any and all claims, suits, actions, or liabilities for injury or death of 

any person, or for loss or damage to property, which arises out of Applicant’s use of the City 

Facility or from any activity, work or thing done, permitted, or suffered by Applicant in or about 

the City Facility, except only such injury or damage as shall have been occasioned by the sole 

negligence of the City.  The provisions of this paragraph shall survive the expiration or termination 

of this Agreement.  

 

Insurance  

 

Unless waived in writing by the City (see below), Applicant shall procure and maintain for the 

duration of the use or rental period insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to 

property which may arise from or in connection with the use of the City Facility and the activities 

of the Applicant and his or her guests, invites, representatives, volunteers and employees.  

 

No Limitation. Applicant’s maintenance of insurance as required by this Agreement shall not be 

construed to limit the liability of the Applicant to the coverage provided by such insurance or 

otherwise limit the City’s recourse to any remedy available at law or in equity.  

69

Section 9, ItemC.



 

{JZL2013262.DOCX;1/13150.000003/ }  

 

Applicant’s required insurance shall be as follows:  General Liability insurance shall be at least as 

broad as Insurance Services Office (ISO) occurrence from CG 00 01 covering premises, 

operations, products-completed operations and contractual liability.  The City shall be named as 

an additional insured on Applicant’s General Liability insurance policy using ISO Additional 

Insured-Managers or Lessors of Premises Form CG 20 11 or an endorsement providing at least as 

broad coverage.  The General Liability insurance shall be written with limits no less than 

$1,000,000 each occurrence, $1,000,000 general aggregate. 

 

The insurance policy shall contain, or be endorsed to contain that Applicant’s insurance coverage 

shall be primary insurance as respect to the City.  Any insurance, self-insurance, or self-insured 

pool coverage maintained by the City shall be excess of Applicant’s insurance and shall not 

contribute with it.   

 

City Full Availability of Applicant Limits.  If the Applicant maintains higher insurance limits than 

the minimums shown above, the City shall be insured for the full available limits of Commercial 

General and Excess or Umbrella liability maintained by Applicant, irrespective of whether such 

limits maintained by Applicant are greater than those required by this contract or whether any 

certificate of insurance furnished to the City evidences limits of liability lower than those 

maintained by Applicant. 

 

Applicant shall provide a certificate of insurance evidencing the required insurance before using 

the Premises.  

 

Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best rating of not less than A: VII.   

 

 

 To be completed by the City (check one):  

 

 ____ Applicant IS REQUIRED to procure and maintain insurance 

 

 ____ Applicant IS NOT REQUIRED to procure and maintain insurance 

 

Risk of Loss.   
 

Applicant exclusively assumes all risk of loss in storing, using or operating any equipment, 

materials or other personal property within the City Facility, and the City shall have no 

responsibility whatsoever for the safety, protection, integrity or preservation thereof.      

 

 

Damage and Injury Pre-check space and report it 
 

Damage to the City Facility and/or any City equipment must be reported to the City by Applicant 

within twenty-four hours.  Applicant shall be financially responsible for all damages incurred 

during or resulting from Applicant’s use of the City Facility.  The City shall not be responsible 

for accident, injury or loss of property. 

70

Section 9, ItemC.



 

{JZL2013262.DOCX;1/13150.000003/ }  

 

    

 

Misuse of Facility 

 
The misuse of the City Facility or the failure to conform to these rules and regulations will be 

sufficient reason for denying any future applications for use of City facilities and retention of the 

full amount of the security deposit. 

 

 

 

Miscellaneous 
 

Governing Law; Venue; Attorneys’ Fees.  This Agreement shall be governed by the Laws of the 

State of Washington.  The venue for any litigation arising out of this Agreement shall be the 

Superior Court for King County, Washington. The substantially prevailing party in any such 

litigation shall be entitled to an award of its reasonable attorneys’ fees.   

Entire Agreement.  The provisions of this Agreement constitute the entire agreement of the parties 

regarding the Designated Premises.  Any amendment or modification of this Agreement must be 

in writing and signed by both parties. 

No Third-Party Beneficiary.  This Agreement is executed for the exclusive benefit of the signatory 

parties and their respective successors and assigns.  Nothing herein shall be construed as creating 

any enforceable right, claim or cause of action in or for any third-party.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

71

Section 9, ItemC.



 

{JZL2013262.DOCX;1/13150.000003/ }  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RENTAL CLEAN UP CHECK LIST 

                        

      1.  Floors and rugs clean and free of debris.  ____ 

  2.  Tables and chairs clean and free of debris/     ____ 

       All tables used must be wiped down.                

  3.  Kitchen counters clean.         ____ 

  4.  Garbage cans need to be emptied.  Please        ____ 

       use dumpster located in back parking lot.   

  5.  All decorations and supplies from event       ____ 

   removed.         

          6.  Room put back to original configuration.      ____ 

   7.  All windows and doors must be closed and 

        Locked.              ____ 

   

 
 

      

________________________________________________ 

Signature of Renter     Date   

       

 

Staff Signature     Date 

72

Section 9, ItemC.



 

{JZL2013262.DOCX;1/13150.000003/ }  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RENTAL CLEAN UP CHECK LIST 

(copy for renter to take)  

                       

  1.  Floors and rugs clean and free of debris.         ____ 

  2.  Tables and chairs clean and free of debris/  ____ 

       All tables used must be wiped down.                

  3.  Kitchen counters clean.      ____ 

  4.  Garbage cans need to be emptied.  Please     ____ 

       use dumpster located in back parking lot.   

  5.  All decorations and supplies from event   ____ 

   removed.         

          6.  Room put back to original configuration.  ____ 

   7.  All windows and doors must be closed and 

        locked, all lights must be turned off.   ____ 

    

 
 

      

________________________________________________ 

Signature of Renter     Date 

       

____________________________________________________ 

73

Section 9, ItemC.



 

{JZL2013262.DOCX;1/13150.000003/ }  

Staff signature      Date 

74

Section 9, ItemC.



 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL  

AGENDA BILL # 

City of Algona 

200 Washington Blvd. 

Algona, WA 98001 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

City Council Agenda Packet  04-08-2024  

ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT: 
 

   Resolution 1275-24, Surplus of Public Works   

   Equipment 

Agenda Date: April 8th, 2024   

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 

Mayor  x 
City Administrator  X 

City Attorney   
City Clerk  x 

Finance Dept   
PW/Utilities   

Planning Dept   
 Community Services   

Cost Impact: Police Dept   
Fund Source:  Finance Committee   
Timeline: 1st review – 4/8/24 Planning Commission   

                   Civil Service Committee   
     

Staff Contact: Jessica Griess, City Administrator 

Attachments: Resolution 1275-24 

- 

SUMMARY STATEMENT:  

  This resolution authorizes the dump truck, the red F250 truck, and the Ferris Mower to be considered 
surplus and sold. The mower has been replaced as per the asset replacement plan. The two trucks will be 
replaced with a smaller dump truck that can also be used as a crew truck.    

COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:  

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  

 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date:  Action: Vote:   

 

 

AB24-0122 

75

Section 9, ItemD.



CITY OF ALGONA 
WASHINGTON 

RESOLUTION NO. 1275-24 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF ALGONA, 

WASHINGTON, AUTHORIZING THE DISPOSAL OF 

SURPLUS PROPERTY  

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 WHEREAS, the City has determined the items listed on Exhibit A are no longer necessary 

for City operations and are therefore surplus; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council has authority to dispose of surplus property pursuant to RCW 

35A.11.010; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to authorize the City Administrator or designee to 

dispose of surplus City property; 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALGONA, 

WASHINGTON, DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 Section 1.  Surplus Property.  The City Council hereby declares the property listed on 

Exhibit “A” attached hereto as surplus to the needs of the City. 

 

Section 2.  Disposal Method.  The surplus equipment identified in Exhibit A may be 

disposed of to the general public by means of direct sales, sealed bid, trade-in, auction, or other 

reasonable method of disposal as determined by the City Administrator or designee to be in the 

best interests of the City.   

 

 

 PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF ON THE 

_____ DAY OF ______ 2024.   

 

        

       CITY OF ALGONA 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Troy Linnell, Mayor  

 

 

 

 

 

 

76

Section 9, ItemD.



ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED: 

 

 

______________________________ 

Dana Parker 

City Clerk 

 

 

 

Filed with the City Clerk: 

Passed by the City Council: 

Resolution No.:  

Date Posted: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

77

Section 9, ItemD.



Exhibit “A” 
 

 

Surplus List 
 

  Item Description                 Serial # / VIN         Estimated Value 

2000 Freightliner FL70 Dump Truck 1FTSX21538EA02821 $15,000 

2008 Ford F250 1FV6HJBA0XHF6929 $10,000 

Ferris 48” Mower  $1,000 

 
 

78

Section 9, ItemD.



To: Mayor Troy Linnell and City Council Members 

From: Tara Dunford, CPA 

Date: April 8, 2024 

Re: Ordinance No.  1235-24 2024 Budget Amendment #1 

ATTACHMENTS: Ordinance No. 1235-24; Exhibit A – Proposed Budget Amendment; Exhibit B – 

Authorized Positions; Exhibit C – Wage Scale 

TYPE OF ACTION: Action. Recommended motion: “I move to adopt the attached ordinance 1235-24 

amending the 2024 budget as outlined in Exhibits A, B, and C.” 

 

Discussion:  
 

This proposed budget amendment includes the following: 

 

Salaries and Benefits 

 

 Increase non-uniform union salaries by 4.5% as per approved union contract.  The total cost of 

$29,335 is allocated across funds as follows: 

o General Fund - $16,565 

o Street Fund - $4,655 

o Storm Fund - $5,075 

o Water Fund - $2,110 

o Sewer Fund - $930 

 

 Increase non-uniform union clothing allowances as per approved union contract.  The total cost of 

$10,200 is allocated across funds as follows: 

o General Fund - $1,925 

o Street Fund - $2,920 

o Storm Fund - $2,793 

o Water Fund $1,677 

o Sewer Fund - $886 

 

 Increase the Police uniform budget by $7,000. 

 

 Add a Parks Seasonal at $25.00/hour for up to 720 hours. Total cost = $19,500 for salaries + 

benefits. 

 

 

Equipment Replacement Fund 

 

 Increase Capital Outlay expenditures by $85,000 to fund replacement of asset PW9 (Dump Truck).  

This asset was originally on the list for replacement in 2028 at a cost of $140,000.  Through 2023, 

$121,000 has been set aside for replacement of this asset.  The difference between the amount saved 

and the $85,000 purchase cost will be applied to asset replacement plan in 2025 in accordance with 

79

Section 9, ItemE.



established allocation percentages and will reduce the amount which will need to be saved for 

replacement of the new (2024) asset.  

 

 

Summary of Net Increase (Decrease) in Expenditures by Fund: 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Fund Total

General 16,565               1,925                 19,500              7,000                -                         44,990     

Street 4,655                 2,920                 -                       -                      -                         7,575      

Storm 5,075                 2,793                 -                       -                      -                         7,868      

Water 2,110                 1,677                 -                       -                      -                         3,787      

Sewer 930                    886                    -                       -                      -                         1,816      

Equipment Replacement -                        -                        -                       -                      85,000                 85,000     

Total 29,335              10,200              19,500             7,000              85,000               151,035 

General Fund Line Item Adjustments:

Increase Community Events 5,000                 

Decrease Finance Professional Services (2,000)                

Decrease Finance Communications (2,000)                

Decrease Central Services/Utilities (1,000)                

Net -                        

Asset 

ReplacementPark Seasonal

Non-Uniform 

Clothing 

Allowances

Non-Uniform 

Salaries

Police Uniform 

Increase

80

Section 9, ItemE.



 

 

 

CITY OF ALGONA, WASHINGTON 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 1235-24 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF ALGONA, WASHINGTON, MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS 

OF FACT AND AMENDING THE 2024 BUDGET ADOPTED WITH ORDINANCE NO. 1231-23 ON 

DECEMBER 11, 2023, AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, AN EFFECTIVE DATE, AND FOR 

SUMMARY PUBLICATION BY ORDINANCE TITLE ONLY. 

 

          

 

WHEREAS, the Algona City Council adopted the 2024 Budget with Ordinance No. 1231-23 on 

December 11, 2023; and 

 

WHEREAS, unplanned and unbudgeted expenditures have been identified; and  

 

WHEREAS, the non-uniform union contract was pending settlement at the time the 2023 budget was 

adopted, therefore salary increases for those positions were excluded from the adopted budget; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is in the best interest of the City of Algona to 

authorize a part-time Parks seasonal employee; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is in the best interest of the City of Algona to 

increase the General Fund budget by $44,990; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is in the best interest of the City of Algona to 

increase the Street Fund budget by $7,575; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is in the best interest of the City of Algona to 

increase the Stormwater Management Fund budget by $7,868; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is in the best interest of the City of Algona to 

increase the Water Maintenance Fund budget by $3,787; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is in the best interest of the City of Algona to 

increase the Sewer Maintenance Fund budget by $1,816; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is in the best interest of the City of Algona to 

increase the Equipment Replacement Fund budget by $85,000; and 

 

WHEREAS, the increase in the General Fund expenditure budget will decrease ending fund balance by 

$44,990; and  

 

WHEREAS, the increase in the Street Fund expenditure budget will decrease ending fund balance by 

$7,575; and  

 

WHEREAS, the increase in the Stormwater Management Fund expenditure budget will decrease ending 

fund balance by $7,868; and  

81

Section 9, ItemE.



WHEREAS, the increase in the Water Maintenance Fund expenditure budget will decrease ending fund 

balance by $3,787; and  

 

WHEREAS, the increase in the Sewer Maintenance Fund expenditure budget will decrease ending fund 

balance by $1,816; and  

 

WHEREAS, the increase in the Equipment Replacement  Fund expenditure budget will decrease ending 

fund balance by $85,000; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is in the best interest of the City of Algona to adopt 

by ordinance non-uniform union salaries as per the 2024 collective bargaining agreement; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE,  

 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALGONA, WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1.  The above stated recitals are hereby adopted as the council’s findings and reasons for the 

adoption of this ordinance. 

 

Section 2.  The 2024 budget, as adopted with ordinance 1231-23 is hereby amended with an increase of 

zero dollars to revenues and $151,035 to expenditures as detailed in the attached exhibit (Exhibit A – 

Proposed Budget Amendment) and positions are officially authorized as detailed in the attached exhibit 

(Exhibit B – Authorized Positions) and the wage scale is modified as detailed in the attached exhibit 

(Exhibit C – Wage Scale). 

 

Section 3. Severability.  If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance should be held to be 

invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or unconstitutionality shall 

not affect the validity or constitutionality of any other sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance. 

 

Section 4.  Effective Date.  This ordinance, being an exercise of power specifically delegated to the City 

legislative body, is not subject to referendum, and shall take effect five (5) days after passage and 

publication of an approved summary thereof consisting of the title. 

 

Passed by the Algona City Council the _____ day of April 2024, and approved by the Mayor, the ____ 

day of April 2024. 

 

 

  

 

 

 

              
Troy Linnell, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Dana Parker, City Clerk 
 
 

82

Section 9, ItemE.



APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
       
J. Zachary Lell 
City Attorney 
 
Filed with the City Clerk:  
Passed by the City Council:  
Ordinance No.: XXXX-XX 
Date of Publication:  
 

  

83

Section 9, ItemE.



 

 

 

 

 

84

Section 9, ItemE.



Amending Section 2 of Ordinance 1231-23 and Page 11 of the City of Algona 2024 Budget

Fund Original Amended Increase (Decrease)
General 3,332,589                           3,377,579                           44,990                                 
Drug -                                            -                                            -                                            
Street 1,065,700                           1,073,275                           7,575                                   
Rainy Day Fund -                                            -                                            -                                            
Capital Improvement 315,000                              315,000                              -                                            
Park Impact -                                            -                                            -                                            
General Obligation Bond 318,300                              318,300                              -                                            
Stormwater Management 393,800                              401,668                              7,868                                   
Water Maintenance 830,200                              833,987                              3,787                                   
Sewer Maintenance 1,142,900                           1,144,716                           1,816                                   
Water Capital Improvement -                                            -                                            -                                            
Sewer Capital Improvement -                                            -                                            -                                            
Stormwater Capital Improvement -                                            -                                            -                                            
Equipment Replacement Fund 100,000                              185,000                              85,000                                 
Unemployment Trust -                                            -                                            -                                            
Explorers Program -                                            -                                            -                                            

Total 7,498,489                           7,649,524                           151,035                              

Fund Original Amended Increase (Decrease)
General 860,734                              815,744                              (44,990)                               
Drug 7,677                                   7,677                                   -                                            
Street 134,636                              127,061                              (7,575)                                  
Rainy Day Fund 365,174                              365,174                              -                                            
Capital Improvement 4,826                                   4,826                                   -                                            
Park Impact 244,500                              244,500                              -                                            
General Obligation Bond 464                                      464                                      -                                            
Stormwater Management 919,146                              911,278                              (7,868)                                  
Water Maintenance 1,307,054                           1,303,267                           (3,787)                                  
Sewer Maintenance 1,006,218                           1,004,402                           (1,816)                                  
Water Capital Improvement 773,165                              773,165                              -                                            
Sewer Capital Improvement 424,266                              424,266                              -                                            
Stormwater Capital Improvement 269,877                              269,877                              -                                            
Equipment Replacement Fund 772,209                              687,209                              (85,000)                               
Unemployment Trust 3,587                                   3,587                                   -                                            
Explorers Program 27,417                                 27,417                                 -                                            

Total 7,120,950                           6,969,915                           (151,035)                             

Ending Fund Balance

EXHIBIT A

2024 Budget Amendment #1

Expenditures

85

Section 9, ItemE.



Administration:

City Administrator 1 -- -- 1 1

City Clerk 1 1 1 -- 1

Deputy City Clerk 1 1 1 1 --

Clerical Assistant 1 1 1 1 1

Community Connector 1 1 1 1 1

Code Enforcement Officer/Permit Tech -- -- -- 1 1

Permit Technician 1 -- -- -- --

Total Administration 6 4 4 5 5

Police:

Police Chief 1 1 1 1 1

Police Clerk 2 1 1 1 1

Police Sergeant 1 1 1 -- --

Police Corporal -- -- 1 1 1

Police Officer 6 6 5 7 7

Police Office Manager -- -- -- 1 1

Reserve Officer part time part time part time part time part time

Total Police 10 9 9 11 11

Public Works:

Public Works Director 1 1 1 1 1

Utility Superintendent 1 1 1 -- --

Utility Worker 2 1 1 1 1 --

Utility Worker 1 2 3 3 3 4

Park Seasonal part time

Total Public Works 5 6 6 5 5

City-Wide Total 21 19 19 21 21

EXHIBIT B

2024 Budget Amendment #1

Amending Page 12 of the City of Algona 2024 Budget

2020 Final 2021 Final

2024 

(Amended)

Authorized Positions

2022 Final

2023 

(Amended)

86

Section 9, ItemE.



Elected Officials Annual

Mayor 35,000           

Councilmembers 3,600             

Non-Represented Full Time Positions Step A Step B Step C Step D Step E

Police Chief 138,248         

City Administrator 110,250         

Public Works Director 111,387         

City Clerk/Treasurer 90,350           

Non-Represented Part Time/Temp Hourly

Police Reserve Officers 32.59             

Temp EHM/Court Security 29.11             

Park Seasonal 25.00             

Represented - Non-Uniform Step A Step B Step C Step D Step E

Police Clerk 57,709           60,600           63,477           66,657           69,996           

Clerical Assistant 55,049           57,795           60,687           63,722           66,599           

Community Connecter 71,211           74,767           78,511           82,197           86,303           

Utility Superintendent 70,878           74,420           78,135           82,038           86,144           

Utility Worker 1 59,068           61,944           65,038           68,291           71,702           

Code Enforcement Officer/Permit Tech 70,878           74,420           78,135           82,038           86,144           

Represented - Uniform Step A Step B Step C Step D Step E

Police Corporal 80,196           84,204           88,419           92,840           97,482           

Police Officer 75,657           79,438           83,414           87,585           91,964           

Police Officer Manager 80,196           84,204           88,418           92,840           97,482           

Wage Scale

 Annual Rates Per Collective Bargaining Agreement 

 Annual Rates Per Collective Bargaining Agreement 

Annual Rates

EXHIBIT C

2024 Budget Amendment #1

Amending Page 13 of the City of Algona 2024 Budget

87

Section 9, ItemE.



 

 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT i 
CITY ALGONA – IAM&AW DISTRICT LODGE 160 
 
4875-1918-5069, v. 1 

 

 

A G R E E M E N T 
 

BY AND BETWEEN 
 

CITY OF ALGONA 
 

AND 

 
INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF MACHINISTS AND AEROSPACE 

WORKERS DISTRICT LODGE 160, LOCAL LODGE 297 
 

REPRESENTING THE PUBLIC WORKS AND CLERICAL EMPLOYEES 
 

JANUARY 1, 2024 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2026 
  

88

Section 9, ItemF.



 

 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT ii 
CITY ALGONA – IAM&AW DISTRICT LODGE 160 
 
4875-1918-5069, v. 1 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
PREAMBLE .................................................................................................................... 3 

ARTICLE 1 RECOGNITION AND BARGAINING UNIT ......................................................... 3 

ARTICLE 2 MANAGEMENT RIGHTS ................................................................................ 3 

ARTICLE 3 UNION SECURITY........................................................................................ 4 

ARTICLE 4 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE ............................................................................. 4 

ARTICLE 5 UNION REPRESENTATION — ACCESS TO EMPLOYEES ...................................... 7 

ARTICLE 6 NONDISCRIMINATION ................................................................................. 8 

ARTICLE 7 STRIKES OR LOCKOUTS .............................................................................. 8 

ARTICLE 8 SAFETY ...................................................................................................... 8 

ARTICLE 9 LABOR MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE ................................................................ 9 

ARTICLE 10 EMPLOYEE PROBATION ............................................................................. 9 

ARTICLE 11 SENIORITY............................................................................................. 10 

ARTICLE 12 EMPLOYEE CLASSIFICATIONS .................................................................. 11 

ARTICLE 13 WAGES AND CLASSIFICATIONS ................................................................ 11 

ARTICLE 14 LONGEVITY ............................................................................................ 14 

ARTICLE 15 HOLIDAYS ............................................................................................. 14 

ARTICLE 16 VACATION ............................................................................................. 15 

ARTICLE 17 SICK LEAVE ........................................................................................... 17 

ARTICLE 18  EMPLOYEE RIGHTS ................................................................................. 18 

ARTICLE 19  DISCIPLINE & DISCHARGE PROCEDURES .................................................. 19 

ARTICLE 20 LEAVE OF ABSENCE ................................................................................ 20 

ARTICLE 21 HEALTH AND BENEFITS ........................................................................... 21 

ARTICLE 22 INDEMNIFICATION OF CITY EMPLOYEES .................................................... 22 

ARTICLE 23 SUBCONTRACTING ................................................................................. 23 

ARTICLE 24 EDUCATION INCENTIVE ........................................................................... 23 

ARTICLE 25 CLOTHING ALLOWANCE (PUBLIC WORKS) ................................................. 23 

ARTICLE 26 CLOTHING ALLOWANCE (POLICE CLERK) ................................................... 25 

ARTICLE 27  DEFERRED COMPENSATION ..................................................................... 25 

ARTICLE 28  SAVINGS CLAUSE ................................................................................... 25 

ARTICLE 29 COMPLETE AGREEMENT ........................................................................... 25 

ARTICLE 30 TERM OF AGREEMENT ............................................................................. 26 

 

89

Section 9, ItemF.



 

 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT iii 
CITY ALGONA – IAM&AW DISTRICT LODGE 160 
 
4875-1918-5069, v. 1 

BY AND BETWEEN 

CITY OF ALGONA 

AND 

INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF MACHINISTS AND AEROSPACE WORKERS 

DISTRICT LODGE 160, LOCAL LODGE 297 

REPRESENTING THE PUBLIC WORKS AND CLERICAL EMPLOYEES 

PREAMBLE  

This Agreement is between the CITY OF ALGONA, WASHINGTON (the "Employer") and the 

INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF MACHINISTS AND AEROSPACE WORKERS, DISTRICT 

LODGE NO. 160, LOCAL LODGE 297  (the "Union") for the purposes of setting forth the mutual 

understanding of the parties as to conditions of employment for those employees for whom 

the City recognizes the Union as the collective bargaining representative.  

ARTICLE 1 RECOGNITION AND BARGAINING UNIT  

1.1 The Employer recognizes the Union as the exclusive bargaining representative for all 

employees designated by the classifications set forth below excluding elected officials, 

officials appointed for a fixed term, confidential employees, supervisors and all other 

employees. 

Job Title/Classification 

PoliceSpecialist  

Utility Supervisor 

Utility Worker I 

Utility Worker II 

Grounds/Maintenance Worker  

Code Enforcement/Permit Technician  

Clerical Assistant 

Community Coordinator 

ARTICLE 2 MANAGEMENT RIGHTS  

2.1 DIRECTION OF WORKFORCE — The Union recognizes the prerogative of the Employer 

to operate and manage its affairs in all respects in accordance with its lawful mandate, 

and the powers of authority which the Employer has not specifically abridged, 

delegated, or modified by this Agreement are retained by the Employer, including but 

not limited to the right to contract services of any and all types, in accordance with 

this Agreement.  The direction of its work force is vested exclusively in the Employer.  

This shall include, but is not limited to, the rights to (a) direct employees, (b) hire, 

promote, transfer, assign and retain employees; (c) suspend, demote, discharge, or 

take legitimate disciplinary action against employees for just cause; (d) right to 

determine hours of work, work schedules; (e) relieve employees from duty because of 

lack of work or other legitimate reasons; (f) maintain the efficiency of the operation 

entrusted to the City; (g) determine methods, means and personnel by which such 

operations are to be conducted; and (h) take any actions necessary in conditions of 

emergency regardless of prior commitments, to carry out the mission of the agency; 

provided, however, that items (a) through (h) shall not conflict with City ordinances, 

personnel rules and the terms of this Agreement.  

90

Section 9, ItemF.



 

 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT iv 
CITY ALGONA – IAM&AW DISTRICT LODGE 160 
 
4875-1918-5069, v. 1 

2.2 EMPLOYER RULES AND REGULATIONS — The Employer shall have the right to make 

such reasonable direction, rules and regulations as may be deemed necessary by the 

Employer for the conduct and the management of the affairs of the Employer, and the 

Union agrees that the employees shall be bound by and obey such directions, rules, 

and the regulations insofar as the same do not conflict with the terms of the contract.  

2.3 APPLICATION OF RULES — Rules shall be applied in a fair and equitable manner to all 

employees.  Rules and regulations shall be made available by the Employer in writing 

to all employees.  

ARTICLE 3 UNION SECURITY 

3.1 PAYROLL DEDUCTION FOR UNION DUES/FAIR SHARE PAYMENTS – The Employer shall 

deduct monthly dues and fair share payments clearly and affirmatively authorized by 

employees in the Bargaining Unit who freely and voluntarily execute a wage 

assignment authorization form acknowledging the indemnity/hold harmless provision 

of this paragraph.1  The Employer will deposit such dues and shop Agency Fee with 

Aerospace Industrial District Lodge 160, 9135 – 15th Place South, Seattle, Washington, 

98108-5190.  Upon issuance and transmission of such dues and initiation fees to the 

Union, the Employer’s responsibility shall cease with respect to such deductions.  The 

Union and each employee authorizing the assignment of wages for payment of Union 

dues hereby undertakes to indemnify and hold the Employer harmless from all claims, 

demands, suits or other forms of liability that may arise against the Employer for or 

on account of any deduction made in good faith from the wages of such employee. In 

the event an employee gives the Employer written notice of their withdrawal of 

authorization for a wage assignment and instruction to cease making monthly dues or 

fair share payment deductions from their wages, Employer shall give the Union 

Business Agent written notice (email is sufficient) within five (5) working days of 

receipt of the employee’s notice/instruction and comply with the employee’s 

instruction no later than the payroll period next following the Employer’s receipt of the 

notice/instruction. 

 

3.2 NEW EMPLOYEES – The Employer will notify the Union of all new hires involving 

Bargaining Unit positions within fourteen (14) calendar days of hire.  All newly hired 

employees shall be introduced to the Shop Steward or designee who will be allowed 

thirty (30) minutes to brief the new hire on the collective bargaining agreement, Union 

membership and related matters as part of the new hire orientation. No employee, 

however, may be mandated to remain with the Shop Steward or designee for the 

briefing after the introduction. 

1 The Union’s wage assignment authorization form shall include the supplement attached as 

Appendix B to this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 4 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE  

4.1 The purpose of this procedure is to provide an orderly method for resolving grievances.  

A determined and good faith effort shall be made by Union and City representatives to 

settle any differences at the lowest possible level of the grievance procedure. 

                                           

 

91

Section 9, ItemF.



 

 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT v 
CITY ALGONA – IAM&AW DISTRICT LODGE 160 
 
4875-1918-5069, v. 1 

4.2 A grievance shall be defined as an alleged violation of the explicit terms and conditions 

of this Collective Bargaining Agreement.  Grievances shall be processed in strict 

accordance with the following procedures and stated time limits.  

4.3 In the grievance procedure, the aggrieved employee shall have the right to represent 

him or herself or to be represented by a Union representative.  The Union has the 

right, in its own capacity, to act as an aggrieved party in the grievance procedure.  

4.4 In the event the aggrieved party is an individual employee, the grievance procedure 

shall begin with Step 1 – 4.7.  

4.5 A grievance may be initiated by the Union. In the event the Union is the aggrieved 

party, the procedure shall begin with Step 2 – 4.8. 

4.6 A grievance may be advanced to any step in the grievance process by mutual written 

agreement of the parties.  

STEPS IN GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE  

4.7 STEP 1: ORAL DISCUSSION — The aggrieved employee and/or the employee's Union 

representative shall meet with the Department Director within fifteen (15) calendar 

days of the occurrence of the alleged grievance to attempt to resolve the difference at 

that level.  

4.8 STEP 2:  In the event the grievance is not settled in Step 1, or in the event the Union 

is the aggrieved party, the grievant or the Union representative of the grievant shall, 

within twenty (20) calendar days of the occurrence of the alleged grievance, prepare 

a written grievance document which shall include the following: 

4.8.1 Statement of the grievance and relevant facts, including:  

(1) Full name of grievant;  

(2) Description of the event giving rise to the grievance;  

(3) Date and time (if appropriate) of event giving rise to the grievance;  

(4) Names of employees involved in the event;  

(5) Names of any and all witnesses, if known at time of filing;  

(6) Specific provisions(s) of the Agreement violated; and  

(7) Remedy sought.  

4.8.2 The written grievance shall be filed with the City Administrator or his/her designee.  

The Administrator or his/her designee shall conduct an investigation and shall notify 

the grievant and the Union, in writing, of the decision and the reasons therefore within 

twenty-one (21) calendar days after receipt of the written grievance.  The period 

during which the Director or designee shall have to investigate and notify the aggrieved 

party of the decision shall begin on the first working day after such individual receives 

the grievance.  If the grievance is against the Director, then the grievance shall be 

filed directly with the City Administrator or his/her designee in accordance with 

Subsection 4.8.3. 

4.8.3 If the grievant is dissatisfied with the decision of the Administrator, the grievant may 

file the written grievance with and request review by the Mayor or his/her designee.  

Such request shall be filed with the Mayor or his/her designee within twenty-one (21) 

calendar days of the grievant’s receipt of the Administrator’s decision.  The Mayor or 

his/her designee shall conduct an investigation and shall notify the grievant and the 

Union, in writing, of the decision and the reasons therefore within twenty-one (21) 

calendar days after receipt of the written grievance.  In the event the Mayor is not 

available to receive a written grievance, and the Mayor’s designee has not been 

92

Section 9, ItemF.



 

 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT vi 
CITY ALGONA – IAM&AW DISTRICT LODGE 160 
 
4875-1918-5069, v. 1 

appointed, then such grievance shall be filed upon the Mayor’s earliest availability.  

The period during which the Mayor or his/her designee shall have to investigate and 

notify the aggrieved party of the decision shall begin on the first working day after 

such individual receives the grievance. 

4.8.4 If the grievance is against the City Administrator, it shall be filed with the Mayor.  The 

Mayor or his/her designee shall conduct an investigation and shall notify the grievant 

and the Union, in writing, of the decision and the reasons therefore within twenty-one 

(21) calendar days after receipt of the written grievance.  In the event the Mayor is 

not available to receive a written grievance, and the Mayor’s designee has not been 

appointed, then such grievance shall be filed upon the Mayor’s earliest availability.  

The period during which the Mayor or his/her designee shall have to investigate and 

notify the aggrieved party of the decision shall begin on the first working day after 

such individual receives the grievance. 

4.8.5 If the grievance is against the Union by the Employer, the Employer shall file the 

grievance with the Shop Steward and/or the Union Business Representative within 

twenty-one (21) calendar days of becoming aware of the violation(s) of the provisions 

of the Agreement.  In the event the Shop Steward or the Union Business 

Representative is not available to receive a written grievance, then such grievance 

shall be filed upon the earliest availability of either one.  The Shop Steward or his/her 

designee shall conduct an investigation and shall notify the City Administrator, in 

writing, of the decision and the reasons therefore within twenty-eight (28) calendar 

days after receipt of the written grievance. 

4.9 STEP 3 — ARBITRATION: 

4.9.1 If the grievant is dissatisfied with the decision of the City Administrator, the Mayor, or 

their respective designee, the grievant may submit the matter to arbitration within 

thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of such decision.  The grievant shall initiate the 

arbitration process by delivering to the City Administrator, the Mayor or their 

respective designee written notice of the party’s intent to submit the grievance to 

arbitration.  The written notice shall identify the basis for grievance (including reported 

violations of the collective bargaining agreement) and the remedy sought. 

4.9.2 If the Employer is dissatisfied with the decision of the Union, the Employer may submit 

the matter to arbitration within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of such decision.  

The Employer shall initiate the arbitration process by delivering to the Shop Steward 

and/or the Union Business Representative written notice of the Employer’s intent to 

submit the grievance to arbitration.  The written notice shall identify the basis for 

grievance (including reported violations of the collective bargaining agreement) and 

the remedy sought.  

4.10  SELECTION OF AN ARBITRATOR: Within fourteen (14) calendar days from the date of 

receipt of the arbitration request, the parties shall meet for the purpose of selecting 

an arbitrator.  

4.11  If agreement cannot be reached on the selection of the arbitrator, either party may 

request the Federal Mediation & Conciliation Service to submit a list of seven (7) 

impartial persons qualified to act as arbitrators.  Each person on the list must be a 

current member of the National Academy of Arbitrators and reside in the State of 

Washington or Oregon.  The parties shall meet within fourteen (14) calendar days after 

the receipt of such list. If the parties cannot mutually agree on one of the listed 

arbitrators, the parties will each strike one arbitrator’s name from the list of seven and 

shall then repeat this procedure until there is only one name remaining.  That person 

93

Section 9, ItemF.



 

 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT vii 
CITY ALGONA – IAM&AW DISTRICT LODGE 160 
 
4875-1918-5069, v. 1 

shall be the duly selected arbitrator.  The party to strike the first name from the list 

shall be determined by a coin flip.  

4.12 The parties shall request that the arbitrator's decision shall be made in writing. 

4.13 The arbitrator shall have no power to render a decision that will add to, subtract from 

or alter, change or modify the terms of this Agreement, and the arbitrator's power 

shall be limited to interpretation and application of the express terms of this 

Agreement.  

4.14 The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding upon the City, the Union and 

the employees involved.  

4.15 The fees, expenses and all other costs of the arbitrator shall be shared equally by the 

parties.  Regardless of the outcome, each party shall bear the cost of presenting its 

own case, including but not limited to attorney’s fees and expenses.  

4.16 Any time limits stipulated in the grievance procedure shall be strictly adhered to unless 

extended by mutual agreement.  

4.17 In the event the City has not responded to the grievance within the specified time 

limitation of any step in the procedure in this Article, the grievance may be moved to 

the next step in the procedure.  

4.18 In the event the grievant or Union does not advance the grievance within the specified 

time frames, the grievance shall be deemed withdrawn.  

ARTICLE 5 UNION REPRESENTATION — ACCESS TO EMPLOYEES  

5.1 The Business Representative of the Union and/or Shop Steward shall be allowed 

reasonable access to all facilities of the City wherein the employees covered under this 

contract may be working for the purposes of investigating grievances, provided such 

representative or steward does not interfere with the normal work processes.  No 

Union member or officer shall conduct any Union business on City time and no Union 

meetings will be on City time.  Normally, such contacts with employees shall be allowed 

during the employee’s breaks and/or lunch period; provided that there is no 

suspension of work or interference with the operations of the City.  Union members 

may conduct union business on City property.  After notifying and receiving permission 

from the Employer, which permission shall not be unreasonably withheld, the Shop 

Steward of the Union or designated stewards, may have reasonable time off with pay 

in order to investigate and process grievances, meet with City officials and carry out 

the business of the Union.  

5.2 Employees shall not be discharged or unlawfully discriminated against for upholding 

lawful Union principles or for engaging in protected concerted activity so long as these 

activities do not interfere with normal work processes of the Employer.  

5.3 UNION BULLETIN BOARDS — The Employer shall provide suitable non-public space for 

the Bargaining Unit to use a bulletin board in each City building staffed by Bargaining 

Unit employees.  Postings by the Bargaining Unit on such boards shall be confined to 

official business of the Union.  

5.4 E-MAIL — E-mail may be used to expedite scheduling representation for discipline 

issues and for notification of a union meeting.  The Union’s use of the Employer’s e-

mail system shall be limited to only that use specifically authorized by the Employer 

and all such use shall not interfere with the normal work process and operations of the 

Employer or employees.  

94

Section 9, ItemF.



 

 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT viii 
CITY ALGONA – IAM&AW DISTRICT LODGE 160 
 
4875-1918-5069, v. 1 

ARTICLE 6 NONDISCRIMINATION  

6.1 It is mutually agreed that there shall be no unlawful discrimination because of lawful 

union activity, race, creed, color, religion, sex, age, marital status, national origin, 

sexual orientation, or physical, mental or sensory handicaps that do not prevent proper 

performance of the job, unless based upon a bona fide occupational qualification.  The 

Union and management representatives shall work cooperatively to assure the 

achievement of equal employment opportunity.  Furthermore, employees who feel 

they have been unlawfully discriminated against shall be encouraged to use the 

grievance procedure set up under this Agreement prior to seeking relief through other 

channels.  Grievances under this Article shall not be subject to Step Three of the 

grievance procedure (arbitration), but may be pursued in a Court of Law.  

ARTICLE 7 STRIKES OR LOCKOUTS  

7.1 During the term of this Agreement, neither the Union nor any employee shall cause, 

engage in, sanction, encourage, direct, request, or assist in a slow-down, work 

stoppage, interruption of work, strike of any kind, including a sympathy strike, against 

the Employer.  The Union and its representatives will undertake every reasonable 

measure to prevent and/or terminate all such strikes, slow-downs, or stoppage of 

work.  The Employer may discipline or discharge any employee who violates this 

Article.  This remedy shall not be exclusive of any other remedy available to the 

Employer.  The sole question which may be processed through the grievance and 

arbitration procedure in the event of discipline or discharge for violation of this Article 

is whether in fact the employee did violate this Article.  During the term of this 

Agreement, the Employer shall not cause, permit, or engage in any lockout of its 

employees.  Both the employee and Employer shall comply with state law as prescribed 

by the Revised Code of Washington 41.56.120 and 41.56.490 as currently enacted or 

as hereafter amended.  

ARTICLE 8 SAFETY  

8.1 MUTUAL OBJECTIVE — It is the mutual objective of both parties to this Agreement to 

maintain high standards of safety in order to eliminate as far as possible industrial 

accidents and illness.  

8.2 SAFETY COMMITTEE — The Safety Committee shall consist of a minimum of four (4) 

employees, with equal representation from management and labor.  The chair of this 

committee shall be rotated between the Employer and the Union once every year.  The 

Safety Committee shall meet a minimum of once every calendar quarter.  The Safety 

Committee meetings shall be conducted on Employer's paid time and shall not exceed 

four (4) hours per employee per calendar quarter.  

8.2.1 The duties of the Safety Committee shall be to advise on matters relating to employee 

safety as set forth in WISHA laws, review applicable WISHA laws and regulations, and 

make recommendations for maintenance of proper safety standards.  Minutes of the 

meetings will be taken by an appointed member of the Committee.  Copies of the 

minutes shall be sent to the Mayor's office and to the Union Representative.  Available 

members of the Safety Committee, including at least one (1) designee of the Union 

shall be invited to accompany WISHA authorities on any walk-around inspections.  

  

95

Section 9, ItemF.



 

 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT ix 
CITY ALGONA – IAM&AW DISTRICT LODGE 160 
 
4875-1918-5069, v. 1 

8.3 SAFETY EQUIPMENT — The Employer shall furnish proper safety devices for all 

employees as prescribed by WISHA standards.  It shall be mandatory that all 

employees use such devices, and an employee’s violation of this requirement may be 

just cause for disciplinary action. 

8.4 TRAINING – All member employees will receive required safety training and 

certification, provided and paid for by the Employer.  Recommendations from the 

Safety Committee will be taken into advisement, and offered if the Department 

Director gives authorization. All training will be provided on paid City time.   

ARTICLE 9 LABOR MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE  

9.1 LABOR MANAGEMENT — The Employer and the Union agree that a need exists for close 

cooperation between labor and management, and further, from time to time 

suggestions and complaints of a general nature affecting the Union and the Employer 

require consideration.  To accomplish this objective, the Employer and the Union agree 

that no more than three (3) duly authorized representatives of the Union, excluding 

the business representative, shall function as one-half (½) of a Labor-Management 

Committee, the other half being no more than three (3) certain representatives of the 

Employer named for that purpose.  The committee shall meet as mutually agreed for 

the purpose of discussing and facilitating the resolution of all problems which may 

arise between the parties.  Should the Union and Employer mutually agree to change, 

add, or delete any provision of this Agreement, such change shall be set forth in a 

Letter of Understanding.  

ARTICLE 10 EMPLOYEE PROBATION  

10.1 PROBATION — Regular full time employees shall serve a probation period of (6) six 

months and shall have no seniority rights during that period.  After six (6) months an 

employee's seniority date shall become the date on which the employee started the 

probation period.  The Union may not question the dismissal of any employee during 

the probation period nor shall the dismissal be the subject of a grievance.  

10.2 PROBATION - Regular part time employees shall serve a probation period of twelve 

(12) months, or shall be given credit for time worked based on pro rata hours worked 

(based on a 2,080-hour year), and shall have no seniority rights during that period.  

After twelve (12) months, or within the pro rata period set forth above, an employee's 

seniority date shall become the date on which the employee started the probation 

period.  The Union may not question the dismissal of any employee during the 

probation period nor shall the dismissal be or become the subject of a grievance.  

10.3 PROMOTION PROBATION — The probation period for an employee who has been 

promoted to a new classification shall be four (4) months.  If an employee's 

performance in the new classification is found to be unacceptable, as determined by 

the Employer, and if the employee is qualified to return to the position from which the 

employee was promoted, the employee shall have the right to return to the position 

from which the employee was promoted.  The Union may not question the Employer’s 

decision to return the employee to his/her previous position.  Nor shall the Union 

question or grieve the Employer’s decision to return the employee to his/her previous 

position.  

  

96

Section 9, ItemF.



 

 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT x 
CITY ALGONA – IAM&AW DISTRICT LODGE 160 
 
4875-1918-5069, v. 1 

ARTICLE 11 SENIORITY  

11.1 DEFINITIONS — Seniority shall be defined as the length of continuous service with the 

Employer, including the employee's satisfactorily completed probationary period.  

Seniority shall not be affected by an approved leave of absence of not more than ninety 

(90) calendar days.  

11.2 SENIORITY LIST — The Employer shall at least once per calendar year and when a 

new employee is hired establish and mail to the Union a seniority list which shall be 

brought up to date when changes occur in the Bargaining Unit.  The order of seniority 

shall be based on the hire or rehire date of employment or acceptance, whichever is 

later. 

11.3 VACANCIES AND PROMOTIONS — The Employer's intent is to encourage employees to 

apply for promotional opportunities.  As job openings occur, notices shall be placed on 

bulletin boards throughout the City and through the use of internal e-mail for not fewer 

than five (5) working days prior to outside posting.  The final decision shall be posted 

immediately following selection.  Seniority shall be given consideration along with the 

requirements of the Employer in filling job vacancies and promotions.  Seniority within 

classification shall apply when bona fide occupational qualifications are equal.  

11.4 LAYOFFS AND RECLASSIFICATION — Layoffs or Reclassifications due to work force 

reductions shall be determined strictly by the order of seniority  with the employee 

with the least seniority within classification affected first.  Employees who have 

previously held other classifications shall have the right to return to such classifications 

if the employee is still qualified for the position and their overall seniority is greater 

than other employees who are currently in said classification.  Employees shall not 

accrue seniority while on layoff. 

11.5 RECALL — Laid off or reclassified employees shall be recalled strictly on the basis of 

seniority to any previously held classification if a vacancy occurs.  

11.5.1 A laid off or reclassified employee with one (1) year of service but less than three (3) 

years of service, who is not recalled within one (1) year shall lose recall rights.  

11.5.2 A laid off or reclassified employee with three (3) or more years of service, who is not 

recalled within three (3) years shall lose recall rights.  

11.5.3 When an employee is on layoff and a job opening occurs within the City, the laid off 

employee, if qualified for minimum job requirements, shall have the opportunity to 

compete for such job.  

11.6 LOSS OF SENIORITY — An employee shall lose seniority for any of the following 

reasons:  

(a) voluntary resignation;  

(b) discharge for just cause;  

(c) failure to report for work within two (2) weeks after receipt of notice of recall 

from layoff unless mutually extended by the Employer and the employee;  

(d) exceeding a leave of absence (unless excused in writing or due to extenuating 

circumstances) 

(e) giving a false reason for obtaining a leave of absence;  

(f) accepting employment while on leave of absence unless agreed to in writing 

by the Employer, with a copy of such writing to be sent to the Union;  

(g) Expiration of employee's recall rights.  

97

Section 9, ItemF.



 

 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT xi 
CITY ALGONA – IAM&AW DISTRICT LODGE 160 
 
4875-1918-5069, v. 1 

ARTICLE 12 EMPLOYEE CLASSIFICATIONS  

12.1 FULL-TIME REGULAR EMPLOYEES — “Full-time employee” means any position in which 

the employee regularly works forty (40) hours per week.  

12.2 PART-TIME REGULAR EMPLOYEES — “Part-time regular employee” means a position 

in which the employee regularly works an average of twenty (20) to forty (40) hours 

per week.  Part-time regular employees shall accrue vacation, sick leave, seniority, 

and holiday benefits in direct ratio to hours worked.  Part-time regular employees shall 

receive health and welfare benefits in direct ratio to hours worked.  Part-time regular 

employees shall not receive life insurance.   

12.3 PART-TIME NON-REGULAR EMPLOYEES (TEMPORARY) — “Part-time non-regular 

employee” means a position in which the employee typically works less than twenty 

(20) hours per week, occasionally may work more than twenty (20) hours per week, 

or up to forty (40) hours per week on a seasonal basis.  Part-time non-regular 

employees shall not receive benefits nor shall they accrue seniority.  No full-time 

employee or regular part-time employee shall be displaced by the use of part-time 

non-regular employees.   

12.4 INTERNS — Interns must be actively pursuing a course of study related to the job 

classification for which they are employed.  Employment shall be limited to seven 

hundred and four (704) hours per intern, per year.  Interns shall not receive benefits 

or accrue seniority.  Interns applying for regular City employment shall not be 

considered as City employees.  

12.5 DEPARTMENT DIRECTORS — The Public Works Director, Chief of Police and City 

Clerk/Administrator shall be allowed to perform departmental Bargaining Unit work on 

an as-needed basis.  This Section shall not be used to displace bargaining unit 

employees.   

12.6 NEW CLASSIFICATIONS — Should the Employer establish a new Bargaining Unit 

classification during the term of this Agreement, the Employer will discuss them with 

the Union and attempt to arrive at mutual agreement on wage rates for the new 

Bargaining Unit classification.  If no agreement is reached, the Employer shall 

implement its proposed wage rate.   

ARTICLE 13 WAGES AND CLASSIFICATIONS  

13.1 WAGES AND CLASSIFICATIONS FOR 2024  

13.1.1 The wages (base rates of pay) in effect January 1, 2024 shall be in accordance with 

Appendix ‘A’ attached and incorporated herein. The 2024 wages shown in Appendix 

“A” incorporate an adjustment of 4.5%.  

13.1.2 For purposes of step advancement, employees shall be placed at the appropriate step 

on the matrix (Appendix ‘A’) as of January 1, 2024.  New employees will be placed at 

Step A. Step advancement shall be automatic, based on satisfactory performance.  Any 

early advancement shall create a new anniversary date for establishing further step 

increases. 

13.2 RATES OF PAY FOR 2025, 2026. 

13.2.1 Effective January 1, 2025, the base rate of pay as set forth in Section 13.1 shall be 

increased by one hundred percent (100%) of the Seattle-Tacoma-Bellevue Metro Area, 

All Items, CPI-U from June 2023 to June 2024 as is supplied by the United States 

Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics; proved, however, said increase shall 

98

Section 9, ItemF.



 

 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT xii 
CITY ALGONA – IAM&AW DISTRICT LODGE 160 
 
4875-1918-5069, v. 1 

be not less than two and one half percent (2.5%) nor more than four and one half 

percent (4.5%). Appendix A will be adjusted consistent with the CPI wage 

adjustments. 

13.2.2 Effective January 1, 2026, the base rate of pay as set forth in Section 13.1 and 

adjusted pursuant to Section 13.2.1 shall be increased by one hundred percent (100%) 

of the Seattle-Tacoma-Bellevue Metro Area, All Items, CPI-U, from June 2021 to June 

2022 as is supplied by the United States Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor 

Statistics; provided, however, said increase shall be not less than two and one half 

percent (2.5%) nor more than four and one half percent (4.5%). Appendix A will be 

adjusted consistent with the CPI wage adjustments. 

13.3 HOURS OF WORK — The Employer reserves the right to set work schedules. However, 

the normal work week for full-time employees, shall consist of forty (40) hours, five 

days per week (Monday-Friday).  

13.3.1 Any change in normal work schedules shall be posted on the Union bulletin board and 

sent by memo to affected employees at least ten (10) calendar days prior to the 

effective date of the change.  These notice requirements shall not apply to work 

schedule changes that are implemented due to an emergency.  

13.3.1.2 A “change in normal work schedules“ shall mean a change in an employee’s starting 

and stopping work time for a period of not less than two (2) consecutive weeks.   

13.4 MEAL & REST PERIOD —  

Clerical employees shall receive an unpaid one hour meal period, and two paid fifteen 

(15) minute rest periods.  Subject to management approval, all job classifications at 

the Public Works facility may schedule a combined rest period/lunch period to equal 

one (1) hour.  This schedule would consist of their two (2) fifteen (15) minute rest 

periods with their one-half (½) hour unpaid lunch period for a one (1) hour lunch 

period each day.  The first one-half (½) hour will be designated as their unpaid lunch 

period, and the second one-half (½) hour as their two (2) paid rest periods. The shop 

Steward will notify the employer fifteen (15) days prior to any deviation from this 

schedule. 

13.5 EARLY RELEASE — If early release is imposed by the employer, the employee will be 

paid for the balance of the shift.  When employees are not sent home by the employer, 

but are allowed to leave early, or not report to work, the employee may use vacation, 

compensatory time, or leave without pay.  

13.6 EMERGENCY SITUATION — Should the Employer elect to not have an employee report 

to work due to an emergency condition, the Employer shall pay lost wages to the 

employees not allowed to work at home or at the job site, to a maximum of two (2) 

days per year, not compounding.  Employees required to report to work during such 

emergency conditions, when due to an inclement weather situation, shall be paid two 

(2) times their base rate of pay.  An inclement weather situation for purposes of this 

section means a situation in which snow, ice, or other weather-related conditions 

present a hazard to employees and customers in getting to, and from, city facilities, 

as determined by the City Administrator or designee.  

13.7 PROMOTIONS — Any employee who is promoted into a higher classification shall be 

placed into a step in the higher classification that represents a rate of pay which is not 

less than a full step above the previous rate of pay that the employee received in the 

classification from which the employee was promoted.  The effective date of the 

99

Section 9, ItemF.



 

 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT xiii 
CITY ALGONA – IAM&AW DISTRICT LODGE 160 
 
4875-1918-5069, v. 1 

promotion shall become the employee’s anniversary date for subsequent step 

increases.  

13.8 OVERTIME — All authorized time worked in excess of an employee’s regular shift in a 

day or forty (40) hours in any work period shall be paid at one-and-one-half (1½) 

times the employee's regular straight time hourly rate of pay.    In so far as practical, 

overtime assignments will be distributed equitably to those employees who are 

qualified. Paid leave shall apply as time worked for the purposes of this section. 

13.9 COMPENSATORY TIME — All full-time employees may receive compensatory time at 

one-and one-half (1½) times all overtime hours worked, subject to the approval of the 

Employer, and 29 CFR Part 553 of the Fair Labor Standards Act.  The maximum 

compensatory time that an employee may accrue is eighty (80) hours.  

13.10 CALLBACK – Any employee called back to work outside of their normally scheduled 

shift shall receive a minimum of three (3) hours at 1.5 (one and one half) times, the 

employee’s regular hourly wage rate.  If callback hours worked exceeds three (3) 

hours, the employee shall be paid 2x (double-time) the employees regular hourly wage 

rate for the additional hours worked.  

13.10.1 Subject to the triggering mechanism of the callback provisions of Section 13.10, 

whenever additional duties are scheduled after normal work hours, all hours worked 

between the end of shift and the beginning of the next shift shall be paid at the rate 

of one-and-one-half (1½) times the employee’s straight time hourly rate of pay.   

13.11 STAND-BY — Any employee who is required to be on stand-by outside of their normal 

shift shall receive (Three) $3.00 per hour, regardless of weekday, weekends, or 

holidays. The appropriate callback provision (13.10) will apply if the employee is called 

to report to work. 

13.12 OUT OF CLASS COMPENSATION – Employees appointed to perform projects or 

additional duties from the list below shall receive an additional 5% premium pay, per 

month for the responsibility.  The employee assigned to the below list, will only receive 

such compensation after providing proof of training or certification. 

Permit Tech   Evidence Custodian 

13.13 SET-UP PAY – An employee shall be entitled to additional 10% premium pay for each 

hour worked when serving as acting Department Director or Working Supervisor in 

the absence of said Director or Supervisor, or an additional $2.00 per hour when 

serving as a lead worker on a utility crew if the following qualifications are met:  

1. Service as acting Department Director or Working Supervisor for five (5) or 

more consecutive working days upon written request and approval by the 

Mayor or City Administrator, to perform the duties of the Department Director 

or Working Supervisor.  

2. Service as a utility crew lead worker by discretionary assignment of the Public 

Works Director or designee. The Public Works Director has the sole discretion 

to assign a lead worker to a utility worker crew. 

 On occasions where the acting Director or Supervisor performs five (5) or more days 

of work; a workday will be defined as a day that the Director or Supervisor normally 

reports to work for a full shift. For the purpose of set-up pay, “work days” do not 

include bargaining unit employee’s vacation days, sick days, holidays or weekends. 

The set up pay will be equal to 10 percent (10%) of the bargaining unit employee’s 

wage in effect at the time the employee serves as acting Director or Supervisor.  

100

Section 9, ItemF.



 

 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT xiv 
CITY ALGONA – IAM&AW DISTRICT LODGE 160 
 
4875-1918-5069, v. 1 

ARTICLE 14 CDL CERTIFICATION 

14.1 Commercial Driver License (CDL) – New hires will be required to have a class A CDL 

or enroll and achieve the certification at their own expense during their probationary 

period. PROVIDED, the Employer is willing to pay for the employee’s CDL 

training/schooling costs,  but with the understanding and agreement that the 

employee commits to three years of continuous employment with the employer 

following the end of their completed probationary period. The agreement of the 

employee shall further provide that in the event an employee decides to terminate 

their employment with the employer before the three years are up, the employee 

shall reimburse the employer the prorated cost of the CDL training/schooling paid for 

by the employer, prorated against the time remaining on the three-year 

commitment. For example, if an employee resigns after two years from the date of 

the end of their probationary period, 1/3rd of the CDL costs will be reimbursed by the 

employee for the remaining year. The employee shall consent to any monies due to 

the employer due to the early termination of employment be deducted from their last 

paycheck. Any additional monies due shall be due and paid immediately by the 

employee. 

14.2 All current Utility Worker 1 employees without a CDL shall achieve certification within 

nine months  of the effective date of this agreement at their won expense. 

PROVIDED, (a) a CDL training program is available within the Seattle-Tacoma 

metropolitan area; (b) the training will occur during the regular working hours, or 

the Employer will adjust the Employee schedule to encompass the training during 

working hours; and (c) the Employer is willing to pay for the employee’s CDL 

training/schooling costs, but with the understanding and agreement that the 

employee commits to three years of continuous employment with the employer 

following the end of their completed probationary period. The agreement of the 

employee shall further provide that in the event an employee decides to terminate 

their employment with the employer before the three years are up, the employee 

shall reimburse the employer the prorated cost of the CDL training/schooling paid for 

by the employer, prorated against the time remaining on the three-year 

commitment, provided, the employee will be given seniority time against the 3-year 

commitment of employment. Meaning if the employee has been employed for three 

years, then they would not owe the City any money to cover the cost of the CDL 

schooling upon their leaving the City. CDL class will be scheduled by the public works 

director, in consultation with the employee. 

ARTICLE 15 LONGEVITY 

15.1 LONGEVITY – In addition to their base monthly pay, eligible employees shall receive 

longevity pay as follows:  

 Upon completion of 5 years of service 2.0% of base pay 

Upon completion of 10 years of service 3% of base pay 

Upon completion of 15 years of service 4.0% of base pay 

Upon completion of 20 years of service 5.0% of base pay 

ARTICLE 16 HOLIDAYS  

101

Section 9, ItemF.



 

 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT xv 
CITY ALGONA – IAM&AW DISTRICT LODGE 160 
 
4875-1918-5069, v. 1 

16.1  NUMBER OF PAID HOLIDAYS — All full-time regular employees shall be entitled to 

compensation at their regular rate of pay for twelve (12) holidays per year as listed 

below.  The holidays herein referred to shall be as follows:  

New Year's Day Veteran’s Day 

Martin Luther King, Jr.'s Birthday Thanksgiving Day 

President's Day The day following Thanksgiving 

Memorial Day 

Juneteenth Christmas Eve Day 

Fourth of July Christmas Day  

Labor Day 

Columbus Day Three Floating Holidays* 

Wellness Day per Article 21.7 

*Two of the floaters must be pre-planned and submitted to management for 

approval by February 1 of each year. 

  

16.2  DATES OF HOLIDAYS — Dates of the above legal holidays will be so designated as 

celebrated and proclaimed by the State of Washington.  The "floating holidays" shall 

be chosen by mutual agreement by the employee and the Employer.   

16.3  ELIGIBILITY — New employees shall be eligible for all holidays except the "floating 

holidays."  New employees shall become eligible for the "floating holidays" after 

completion of their probationary period.  

16.4  WORKED HOLIDAY — If a full-time or part-time regular employee is required to work 

on an actual holiday listed in Article 15.1, the employee shall then be given an 

additional "floating holiday" which may be converted to compensatory time.  In 

addition, all time worked on the actual holiday shall be paid at one-and-one-half (1½) 

times the employee's regular straight time hourly rate of pay.  

ARTICLE 17 VACATION  

17.1  VACATION — All full-time regular employees shall be entitled to the following vacation 

leave with pay after the indicated period of continuous service and said vacation leave 

is accrued “as earned” based on hours worked rather than in a lump sum.  

Years of Service Hours Per Year  

 0-1 48 

 2 96 

 3 104 

 4 112 

 5 120 

 6 128 

 7 136 

 8 144 

 9 152 

 10 160 

 11 164 

 12 168 

 13 172 

 14 176 

 15 180 

102

Section 9, ItemF.



 

 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT xvi 
CITY ALGONA – IAM&AW DISTRICT LODGE 160 
 
4875-1918-5069, v. 1 

   

17.2  Each full-time regular employee shall be entitled to accrue unused vacation leave not 

to exceed a maximum of two hundred and forty (240) hours.  Should the two hundred 

forty (240) hour maximum be exceeded through no fault of the employee, the 

Employer shall pay the employee for all vacation hours in excess of two hundred and 

forty (240) hours.  Otherwise, such vacation hours shall be forfeited.  

17.3  PAYMENT FOR UNUSED VACATION LEAVE — Upon meeting all of the proper severance 

requirements, employees who leave the employment of the Employer shall be paid for 

all accrued vacation leave not used.  

17.4  VACATION SCHEDULING 

17.4.1 All vacation leave shall be taken at a time mutually agreeable between the employee 

and the Employer, and the Employer reserves the right to deny requested vacation 

leave when such leave would interfere with the operations of the City or create an 

undue negative impact on accomplishment of work. 

17.4.2 On February 1st of each year the Department Director shall post a twelve (12) month 

vacation roster.  Employees within the Department shall bid for vacation on or before 

March 1st.  Vacation choices may include compensatory time and projected accrued 

vacation to the beginning of the vacation period requested.  Selection of vacation dates 

shall be made by order of seniority within each department.  Where an employee 

chooses to split vacation into two (2) or more periods, no second or third choice may 

be made until all other employees have made their first or second selection 

respectively.  Vacation scheduling requested after March 1st of each year shall be on 

a first come first serve basis, subject to the approval of the Department Director.  The 

Employer reserves the right to make reasonable modifications to the vacation schedule 

depending on bona fide operational requirements.  Employees shall take at least one 

vacation period of no less than five (5) consecutive workdays per year.  Except in an 

emergency the Employer shall not change the scheduled vacation within thirty (30) 

days of the scheduled date.  For the purposes of this section “emergency” shall mean 

an unforeseen circumstance which could not be predicted by a reasonable person.  The 

Employer may not blackout any month for vacation scheduling.  

  

103

Section 9, ItemF.



 

 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT xvii 
CITY ALGONA – IAM&AW DISTRICT LODGE 160 
 
4875-1918-5069, v. 1 

ARTICLE 18 SICK LEAVE  

18.1  SICK LEAVE ACCRUAL — Sick leave shall be earned at the rate of eight (8) hours per 

month for full-time regular employees including for the month they begin work and 

the month they terminate.  Part-time regular employees (employees with a regular 

recurring schedule) will accrue sick leave at a rate equal to the percentage of full-time 

hours worked.   

18.2  MAXIMUM SICK LEAVE - Maximum sick leave accrual at year end for full-time 

employees is four hundred eighty (480) hours or sixty (60) days. Accrual beyond the 

four hundred eighty (480) hours shall be paid to the employee  at year end, or upon 

termination when employment occurs prior to yearend, at a rate of fifty percent (50%) 

of the employee’s hourly wage. 

18.3  USE OF SICK LEAVE — In order to provide consistency with RCW 49.46.210, sick leave 

is provided to employees as follows:  

 (1) Usage:   

(a) An employee is authorized to use paid sick leave for absences that 

qualify for leave under the Domestic Violence Leave Act, Chapter 49.76 

RCW.   

(b) An employee is entitled to use accrued paid sick leave beginning on the 

ninetieth (90) calendar day after the commencement of his or her 

employment.   

(c) Consistent with the requirements for “reasonable notice” in WAC 296-

126-650, the employer may require employees to give reasonable 

notice of an absence from work, so long as such notice does not interfere 

with an employee’s lawful use of paid sick leave.   

(d) For absences exceeding three days, an employee is required, consistent 

with WAC 296-128-660, to provide verification to the employer that an 

employee’s use of paid sick leave is for an authorized purpose.  The 

verification must be provided to the employer within a reasonable time 

period during or after the leave. The employer’s requirements for 

verification may not result in an unreasonable burden or expense on the 

employee and may not exceed privacy or verification requirements 

otherwise established by law.   

 

(2) For purposes of this section, “family member” means any of the following:  

 

(a) A child, including a biological, adopted, or foster child, stepchild, or a 

child to whom the employee stands in loco parentis, is a legal guardian, 

or is a de facto parent, regardless of age or dependency status;  

(b) A biological, adoptive, de facto, or foster parent, stepparent, or legal 

guardian of an employee or the employee’s spouse or registered 

domestic partner, or person who stood in loco parentis when the 

employee was a minor child; 

(c) A spouse; 

(d) A registered domestic partner;  

(e) A grandparent; 

(f) A grandchild; or 

(g) A sibling.  

 
  

104

Section 9, ItemF.



 

 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT xviii 
CITY ALGONA – IAM&AW DISTRICT LODGE 160 
 
4875-1918-5069, v. 1 

(3) Terms used in this section shall be defined as provided in WAC 296-128-600.  

 

(4) Consistent with WAC 296-128-750, the employer may withhold payment of 

paid sick leave for hours the employer can demonstrate that an employee’s use 

of paid sick leave was for purposes not authorized by this section.    

ARTICLE 19  EMPLOYEE RIGHTS  

19.1  EMPLOYEE PROTECTION — All employees within the Bargaining Unit shall be entitled 

to the following protection:  

19.2  APPLICATION OF DISCIPLINE — Any formal discipline of employees shall be applied 

by the Employer.  Formal discipline shall include documented oral warnings, written 

warnings, suspension or discharge for just cause.  No employee covered by this 

Agreement shall formally discipline another employee, provided however, nothing in 

this Article shall prevent such employee from directing the workforce, recommending 

discipline, conducting an investigation which may result in disciplinary action, or 

advising the employee of any disciplinary action when so assigned by the Employer.  

19.3  An employee shall have the right, upon request, to have the Union Steward and/or 

Union Representative present at any meeting during which an employee reasonably 

believes discipline may be implemented against the employee; provided, that nothing 

herein shall be construed as prohibiting, limiting or restricting the Employer’s right to 

discuss with any employee performance and/or other work-related issues which will 

not result in any formal disciplinary action.  

19.4  An employee shall be provided with a copy of any document to be placed in the 

employee’s personnel file that relates to disciplinary action and shall be given an 

opportunity to acknowledge, by signature, such document.  Should the employee 

refuse to sign such a document, a notation to that effect shall be made and witnessed 

prior to filing.  

19.5  INVESTIGATIONS — An employee who is the subject of an investigation which may 

result in disciplinary action shall be provided written notice of the investigation prior 

to being interviewed or questioned in conjunction with such investigation, which notice 

shall advise the employee of the nature of the investigation and the fact that the 

employee is a subject of the investigation.  

19.6  Any interview of an employee shall be at a reasonable hour, when the employee is on 

duty unless the exigencies of the investigation dictate otherwise.  Where practicable, 

interviews shall be scheduled for the daytime.  

19.7  All employee interviews shall take place at an Employer's facility, except when 

impractical.  Where an employee is the subject of an investigation, the employee shall 

be afforded opportunities and facilities to contact and consult privately with the Union 

Steward or Union Representative before being interviewed.  Upon the employee’s 

request, the Union Steward or a Union Representative shall be present during the 

interview, if requested, and may provide the employee with full representation. 

19.8  The interview shall not be overly long, and the employee shall be entitled to such 

reasonable intermissions as the employee shall request for personal necessities, 

telephone calls, and conference with Union officials.  

19.9  The employee shall not be subjected to any offensive language, nor shall the employee 

be threatened with dismissal, transfer or other disciplinary punishment as a guise to 

attempt to obtain the employee's resignation, nor shall the employee be intimidated 

105

Section 9, ItemF.



 

 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT xix 
CITY ALGONA – IAM&AW DISTRICT LODGE 160 
 
4875-1918-5069, v. 1 

in any other manner; provided, however, that nothing herein shall be construed as 

prohibiting the Employer from advising the employee as to contemplated or potential 

disciplinary action as set forth in a written notice of pre-disciplinary hearing and 

anticipated disciplinary action.  No promises or rewards shall be made as an 

inducement to answer questions. 

19.10  Any employee who is the subject of an investigation may request an attorney of their 

choosing to be present during such investigation; provided that such request shall not 

unreasonably delay or hinder the Employer’s investigation.  The cost of such an 

attorney shall be paid by the employee requesting such attorney.  

19.11  POLYGRAPH TESTS — No employee shall be required to take or be subjected to any 

polygraph as a condition of continued employment.  

19.12  SUBSTANCE ABUSE TESTS — Employees shall be subject to random alcohol and/or 

drug testing, as required by federal, state and/or local law.  The Employer may also 

require that an employee submit to post-accident and reasonable suspicion alcohol 

and/or drug testing.  Except as specifically set forth herein and in return-to-work 

agreements, no employee shall be required to take or be subject to any random alcohol 

and/or drug testing as a condition of continued employment. 

ARTICLE 20  DISCIPLINE & DISCHARGE PROCEDURES  

20.1  The following procedure of progressive discipline shall be applied by the Employer; 

provided, that the Employer need not follow progressive discipline before suspension 

or discharge if the suspension or discharge is for:  theft; deliberate damage or 

sabotage to City property; gross insubordination; physical violence and/or threats of 

physical violence; violation of conflicts of interest laws; unlawful harassment and/or 

discrimination; or similar offenses.  It is recognized that this list is not exhaustive and 

does not include all offense/violations for which the Employer need not follow 

progressive discipline. 

20.2  For those offenses not warranting an immediate suspension and/or discharge, the 

Employer may implement disciplinary action for just cause according to the following 

progression:  

20.2.1 Verbal warning.  At the Employer’s discretion, the Employer shall verbally warn the 

employee and shall counsel the employee as to areas of needed improvement.  The 

employee will be provided with written documentation of the areas of improvement 

discussed in the verbal warning.  

20.2.2 Written warning/reprimand.  At the Employer’s discretion, the Employer may issue a 

written warning to the Employee.  

20.2.3 Suspension.  At the Employer’s discretion, the employee shall be suspended without 

pay for up to three (3) days, depending upon the nature of the offense, to be 

reasonably determined by the Employer.  

20.2.4 Further suspension or discharge.  At the Employer’s discretion, the Employer may 

impose a further suspension without pay, or may alternatively discharge the employee 

for just cause.  

20.3  The Employer shall document the disciplinary action implemented by placing a written 

summary of such disciplinary action in the employee’s personnel file, which summary 

shall include the date, nature and details of the offense for which the disciplinary action 

is issued, and the name of the supervisor implementing the disciplinary action.  The 

106

Section 9, ItemF.



 

 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT xx 
CITY ALGONA – IAM&AW DISTRICT LODGE 160 
 
4875-1918-5069, v. 1 

employee shall be given the opportunity to acknowledge the written summary 

pursuant to provisions set forth above.  

20.4  Notwithstanding the progressive disciplinary procedure set forth herein, the Employer 

may elect to impose a lesser form of discipline than that allowed pursuant to this 

Agreement; provided, that such election shall not be construed as compromising the 

Employer’s rights to subsequently implement discipline in accordance with this 

schedule.  

20.5  Except for the imposition of a documented verbal or written warning, the procedures 

set forth herein shall be subject to the terms of the grievance procedure.  

ARTICLE 21 LEAVE OF ABSENCE  

21.1  MEDICAL LEAVE — An employee who becomes disabled (as defined by applicable 

federal, state, and/or local law) due to illness, injury or pregnancy, or an employee 

who suffers an industrial injury or illness shall be granted a medical leave of absence 

without pay effective the first day of absence from work; provided, that the employee 

shall submit to the Employer as soon as reasonably practical a written claim of such 

illness or injury along with supporting medical documentation as required by law.  The 

Employer may, at its sole cost and expense, require a second opinion of a doctor of its 

own choosing to verify illness or injury, and a doctor’s statement of fitness to return 

to work.  Medical leave shall run concurrently with FMLA Leave.  This does not preclude 

an employee from receiving sick leave or vacation pay during such medical leave.  

21.2  FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE — Leave taken pursuant to the Family and Medical Leave 

Act is without pay, except that FMLA leave shall run concurrently with use of accrued 

leave, and the City shall require the employee to use accrued, unused sick leave, 

vacation time, comp time and/or other paid time for the 12-week FMLA allowance.  In 

the event the employee's accrued leave(s) do not extend for the 12-week FMLA 

allowance, the balance of the FMLA leave shall be unpaid. 

21.2.1 An employee on FMLA leave who is receiving continuous compensation through the 

use of accrued, unused sick leave, vacation time, comp time and/or other paid time 

shall continue to accrue leave and seniority benefits.  

21.2.2 An employee on FMLA leave who has exhausted all paid leave time and who is not 

receiving compensation shall not accrue leave and seniority benefits while on unpaid 

leave.  

21.3  PROLONGED DISABILITY — An employee shall not be terminated by the Employer 

because of a non-job-related injury or prolonged continuous illness or injury, provided; 

that the period of disability is no longer than twelve (12) months, and provided, further 

that on or before the expiration of said twelve (12) month period, the employee will 

be able to perform the essential functions of the employee’s job.  Upon being certified 

as physically or mentally fit to return to work by the employee's doctor and, if deemed 

necessary, the Employer's doctor(s), the employee shall be reinstated to the same or 

substantially equivalent classification if such classification exists.  Such employees on 

prolonged disability shall continue to accumulate seniority during such disability, 

except that seniority shall not apply towards advancement through the wage step 

program. 

21.3.1 An employee on prolonged absence because of occupational illness or injury incurred 

in the service of the City, shall not be terminated by the Employer because of such 

absence for a period of twenty-four (24) months; provided, that on or before the 

107

Section 9, ItemF.



 

 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT xxi 
CITY ALGONA – IAM&AW DISTRICT LODGE 160 
 
4875-1918-5069, v. 1 

expiration of such twenty-four (24) month period the employee will be able to perform 

the essential functions of the employee’s job.  Such employees on prolonged disability 

shall continue to accumulate seniority during such disability, except that seniority shall 

not apply towards advancement through the wage step program.  

21.4  MILITARY LEAVE — Every full-time regular employee who is a member of the 

Washington National Guard or of the Army, Navy, Air Force, Coast Guard or Marine 

Corps reserve of the United States, or of any organized reserve of the United States 

shall be entitled to and shall be granted military leave of absence from such 

employment, in accordance with applicable law.  Such leave shall be granted in order 

that the person may take part in active training duty in such manner and at such time 

as he may be ordered to active training duty.  Such military leave of absence shall be 

in addition to any vacation or sick leave to which the employee might otherwise be 

entitled, and shall not involve any loss of efficiency rating, privileges, or pay.  During 

the period of military leave, the employee shall receive from the Employer his normal 

pay for a period not exceeding fifteen (15) working days during each twelve (12) 

month period from October 1 through September 30. 

21.5  JURY DUTY — Employees who are required by due process of law to render jury service 

shall receive their regular pay during such period.  If any payment, excluding travel 

pay, is received for jury duty, such pay will be reimbursed to the Employer or deducted 

from the employee's paycheck.  

21.6  BEREAVEMENT LEAVE — All employees who suffer a death in their immediate family 

shall be compensated for and given up to three (3) days off with full pay per incident.  

If additional leave is necessary, it may be granted, subject to the approval of the 

Employer, and such additional bereavement leave shall be deducted from accrued 

vacation, sick leave, compensatory time, or leave without pay.  

21.6.1 Immediate family shall be defined as spouse, domestic partner, son, daughter, 

mother, father, brother, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, sister, mother-in-law, father-in-

law, sister-in-law, brother-in-law, stepson, stepdaughter, stepparents, grandchildren 

and grandparents on both sides, aunts, uncles, nieces, nephews. 

21.6.2 When an employee participates in a funeral or memorial ceremony for a person other 

than those in the immediate family the employee may, subject to the approval of the 

Employer, be granted reasonable vacation, or compensatory time off.  

21.7 LEAVE OF ABSENCE WITHOUT PAY – An employee may apply to the City Administrator 

or his/her designee for a leave of absence without pay.  The Administrator or his/her 

designee shall have sole discretion whether to grant the request, including but not 

limited to the duration of the leave of absence.  A leave of absence without pay may 

be used only after all other accrued leave has been used except for Union business 

leave of two (2) weeks or less in duration.  Unless otherwise required by law or the 

terms of this Agreement, an employee shall not receive any benefits and/or 

wages/pay/compensation nor accrue seniority during such leave of absence.  The 

Employer reserves the right to recall any employee from a previously authorized leave 

of absence.   

ARTICLE 22 HEALTH AND BENEFITS  

22.1  MEDICAL — The Employer shall make available the Association of Washington Cities 

Health First 250 Plan medical insurance for all full-time regular employees, employee’s 

spouse/domestic partner, and dependents, and shall pay one hundred percent (100%) 

108

Section 9, ItemF.



 

 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT xxii 
CITY ALGONA – IAM&AW DISTRICT LODGE 160 
 
4875-1918-5069, v. 1 

of the medical insurance premiums for coverage of each employee, but the Employer 

and employee shall share the costs of the medical insurance premiums for the 

employee’s spouse/domestic partner and dependents in accordance with the following:   

Each employee shall pay twenty five percent (25%) of the medical insurance premiums 

for the employee's spouse/domestic partner, and dependents. 

22.1.1 The Employer will agree to negotiate with the Union if the Employer chooses to change 

medical plans or providers.   

22.2  DENTAL — The Employer shall make available the following dental insurance plans for 

all full-time regular employees and shall pay one hundred percent (100%) of the 

premiums for employee, employee's spouse and qualified dependents. 

 Plan:  Washington Dental Service Plan F plus orthodontia rider plan I  

22.3  VISION — The employer shall make available the AWC VSP Vision Plan for all full-time 

regular employees, as well as the Second Pair Rider benefit, and shall pay one hundred 

percent (100%) of the premium.  

22.4  LIFE — The employer shall make available Basic Life Insurance with Accidental Death 

& Dismemberment in the amount of sixty thousand dollars ($60,000) for all full time 

regular employees and shall continue to pay one hundred percent (100%) of the 

premium.  

22.5  EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM — The Employer shall make available the AWC 

Employee Assistance Plan (EAP) for all full time employees and shall continue to pay 

one hundred percent (100%) of the premium.  

22.6 LONG-TERM DISABILITY – The Employer shall make available, for all full-time regular 

employees the Long-term Disability Plan offered by the Association of Washington 

Cities, with a benefit provision of sixty seven percent (67%), and a ninety (90) day 

elimination period.  The Employer shall pay one hundred percent (100%) of the 

premium.   

22.7 CITY OF ALGONA WELLNESS PROGRAM – Each bargaining unit member will receive an 

additional personal holiday if the bargaining unit has 100% participation in the City’s 

wellness program. One-hundred percent (100%) participation shall constitute 

participation by all employees in any one (1) activity in each quarter of the calendar 

year in which a wellness program activity is offered.  This personal holiday will be 

referred to as a wellness day and must be used before December 31st of the year. The 

wellness day will only be given upon written verification from the City’s wellness 

coordinator that the goal has been met.  The City’s wellness coordinator will verify 

100% participation in December each year. In addition, starting in year 2025, each 

employee will be eligible to receive at the beginning of each year following a year in 

which the bargaining unit has 100% participation, a one percent increase over base 

pay to be paid each pay period during the calendar year. Provided, if an employee has 

a safety related violation or accident involving damage or destruction of city equipment 

or vehicles, the employee will be ineligible for the 1% premium the following year. 

ARTICLE 23 INDEMNIFICATION OF CITY EMPLOYEES  

23.1  The Employer indemnifies and holds personally harmless all of its employees for any 

action, claim or proceeding instituted against said individual arising out of acts or 

omissions, except in cases of intentional acts or omissions and willful and wanton 

negligence, in the scope of employment.  The Employer holds said individuals harmless 

109

Section 9, ItemF.



 

 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT xxiii 
CITY ALGONA – IAM&AW DISTRICT LODGE 160 
 
4875-1918-5069, v. 1 

from any expenses connected with the defense, settlement, or monetary judgment 

from such actions, claims or proceedings.  If insurance becomes unavailable, then 

employees shall, at the Employer's request, obtain substitute individual insurance 

protecting themselves against liability for their acts or omissions in the scope of their 

employment.  The Employer shall pay the premiums for such insurance and shall have 

the right to approve the policies.  If substitute individual insurance is unavailable, or 

if no policy is in effect at the time of a liability-creating event, the Employer shall act 

as self-insurer for the indemnity under this Article.  

ARTICLE 24 SUBCONTRACTING  

24.1  The Employer shall not subcontract the Bargaining Unit work of an employee who is 

on layoff. 

ARTICLE 25  EDUCATION INCENTIVE  

25.1  In the sole discretion of the Mayor or designee, the Mayor or designee may authorize 

an employee to take college classes and upon receiving a passing grade (“C” or better) 

the Employer shall reimburse the employee for tuition and book expenses associated 

with the authorized class.  The authorization must be in writing and received prior to 

enrollment in order to be eligible for tuition and book reimbursement. 

25.2 Any employee in a position classification not requiring an AA degree or its equivalent 

in skills and experience, who has earned an AA degree, shall receive an additional one 

percent (1%) in the employee’s base hourly rate of pay. 

25.3 Any employee in a position classification not requiring a BA degree or its equivalent in 

skills and experience, who has earned a BA degree, shall receive an additional two 

percent (2%) in the employee’s base hourly rate of pay. 

ARTICLE 26 CLOTHING ALLOWANCE (PUBLIC WORKS) 

26.1  The Employer will provide an annual clothing allowance of $850.00 to each employee 

for Navy Carhart Dungarees, Enhanced Vis Comfort Shirts, and Carhart Jacket; and 

$300.00 for a pair of Safety Boots. Employees will their employer issued credit card 

for the purchases authorized by this section. For the purchase of safety boots  only, 

an employee may elect to carry over up to maximum of Two Hundred Dollars 

($200.00) to the following year. To carry over any unused portion of the safety boot 

allowance, the employee must notify the City Administrator in writing by December 1 

of the current year prior to the carry over year.  

  
 

 

  
 The Employer will further provide each employee:  

  1 Reflective Vest    1 Set Rain Gear 

  Earplugs    Eye Protection 

  1 pair Chemical Gloves  1 pair Regular Leather Gloves 

  1 Hard Hat    1 Ball Cap  

 All of the above items, purchased by the City, will be replaced, by approval of the 

Department Director, on an “as needed” basis.  

110

Section 9, ItemF.



 

 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT xxiv 
CITY ALGONA – IAM&AW DISTRICT LODGE 160 
 
4875-1918-5069, v. 1 

   

26.1.1 Items provided by the Employer and purchased by the employee shall be maintained 

on a department inventory and shall remain the property of the Employer. Employees 

shall be responsible for the care and cleaning of all clothing and safety equipment paid 

for and provided by the Employer. The Employer, however, shall provide an annual 

payment of $100.00 to each public works employee as reimbursement for cleaning the 

clothing items provided under this Article.  

26.1.2 The replacement of clothing and equipment items lost or damaged because of 

Employee negligence shall be the responsibility of the Employee.  

26.1.3 Should an Employee purchase any items other than those listed above, such items 

shall be paid for and maintained at the Employee's expense.  The use of such additional 

items shall be subject to the approval of the City Administrator or his/her designee 

and shall remain the property of the Employee.  

26.1.4 Upon termination for any reason, all uniform items, equipment, and property provided 

by the Employer to the employee shall be returned to the Employer.  

  

111

Section 9, ItemF.



 

 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT xxv 
CITY ALGONA – IAM&AW DISTRICT LODGE 160 
 
4875-1918-5069, v. 1 

ARTICLE 27 CLOTHING ALLOWANCE (CLERICAL STAFF) 

26.1 Each regular fulltime Clerical Personnel shall be allowed up to three hundred ($300.00) 

dollars per calendar year for the purchase of uniforms and equipment authorized by 

the Chief of Police or City Clerk.  The purchase of all items shall be approved by the 

Chief of Police or City Clerk. 

ARTICLE 28  DEFERRED COMPENSATION 

28.1 The Employer shall provide matching contributions to a Deferred Compensation Plan 

for full-time regular employees who have completed their initial probation period, not 

to exceed one hundred and twenty-five ($125.00) per month.  The bargaining unit 

shall participate in the plan that is currently being offered by the City.   

ARTICLE 29  SAVINGS CLAUSE  

29.1  Should any term or provision of this Agreement be in conflict with any State or Federal 

statute or other applicable law or regulation binding upon the Employer, such law or 

regulation shall prevail.  In such event, however, the remaining terms and provisions 

of this Agreement will continue in full force and effect.  No City ordinance or resolution 

shall modify or change any Article of this Agreement during the life of this Agreement, 

unless mutually agreed by the Employer and the Union.  

29.2  If any Article or Section of this Agreement shall be held invalid by operation of law or 

by any tribunal of competent jurisdiction, or if compliance with or enforcement of any 

Article or Section shall be restrained by such tribunal, the remainder of this Agreement 

shall not be affected thereby, and the parties shall enter into immediate collective 

negotiations for the purpose of arriving at a mutually satisfactory replacement for such 

Article or Section. 

ARTICLE 30 COMPLETE AGREEMENT  

29.1  The Agreement expressed herein in writing constitutes the entire Agreement between 

the parties.  All matters not specifically covered in the Agreement shall be deemed to 

have been raised and disposed of as if specifically covered herein.  It is agreed that 

this document contains a full and complete Agreement on all bargainable issues 

between the parties hereto and for all whose benefit this Agreement is made, and no 

party shall be required during the term of this Agreement to negotiate or bargain upon 

any issue except as otherwise specified herein.  While those Letters of Intent executed 

concurrent with this Agreement are not specifically part of this Agreement, they 

represent a continuing intent of the Employer to abide with their terms during this 

Agreement.  The parties agree that no changes in wages, hours, or working conditions 

shall be made without negotiating such changes as required by law.  Past practices 

shall not prevail. 

  

112

Section 9, ItemF.



 

 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT xxvi 
CITY ALGONA – IAM&AW DISTRICT LODGE 160 
 
4875-1918-5069, v. 1 

ARTICLE 30 TERM OF AGREEMENT  

30.1 Except as provided in this section, the terms of this Agreement shall become effective 

only upon its full execution and remain in full force and effect through December 31, 

2026; provided, however, that this Agreement shall be subject to change or 

modification as may be mutually agreed upon by the parties hereto. The effective date 

for the 2024 wage adjustments provide in Section 13.1 and the new Longevity 

schedule in Section 15.1 shall, however, have retroactive effect to January 1, 2024. 

The Employer shall use due diligence in computing and making payment of the 

retroactive pay due each employee following full execution of this Agreement. 

 

DATED this _____ day of _________________, 202_. 

 

 

CITY OF ALGONA INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATIONS OF  

MACHINISTS AND AEROSPACE WORKERS 

DISTRICT LODGE 160 

By _______________________________  By _______________________________  

Troy Linnell, Mayor Beth Bergeon, Business Representative 

By _______________________________  By _______________________________  

Jessica Griess, City Administrator ___________, Shop Steward 

 

 

  
  

113

Section 9, ItemF.



 

 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT xxvii 
CITY ALGONA – IAM&AW DISTRICT LODGE 160 
 
4875-1918-5069, v. 1 

 

 Appendix A 

TO THE  

AGREEMENT 

BY AND BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF ALGONA, WASHINGTON 

AND 

INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF MACHINIST AND AEROSPACE WORKERS 

DISTRICT LODGE NO. 160 

(REPRESENTING THE PUBLIC WORK & CLERICAL WORKERS) 

 

THIS APPENDIX is supplemental to the Agreement by and between the City of 

Algona, hereafter referred as the “employer” and the IAMAW District Lodge 

NO. 160 on behalf of the employees of the Public Works Department, and 

Clerical workers, hereinafter referred to as the “employees”. 

 

A.1 Effective January 1, 2024, the monthly rates of pay for the 

hourly wage employees covered by this Agreement (a 4.5% increase 

over 2023 rates) shall be as follows: 

 

Position A 

0-6 mo. 

B 

7-18 

mo. 

C 

19-30 

mo. 

D 

31-42 

Mo. 

E 

42-60 

mo. 

Police Specialist  4,809  5,050  5,290  5,555  5,833 

Utility Supervisor  5,907  6,202   6,511  6,837  7,179 

Utility Worker I  4,922  5,162  5,420  5,691  5,975 

Utility Worker II  5,670  5,957  6,255  6,568  6,897 

Grounds/Maintenance 

Worker  3,871  4,065  4,268  4,481  4,708 

Code 

Enforcement/Permit 

Technician  5,907  6,202  6,511  6,837  7,179 

Clerical Assistant  4,587  4,816  5,057  5,310  5,550 

Community Connector  5,934  6,231  6,543  6,850  7,192 

 

A.2 Progression through each step plan shall be in accordance with the 

number of months in each step, and step advancement shall be automatic 

based on satisfactory performance. 

 

A.3 The hourly rate of pay for full-time employees shall be determined by 

dividing the monthly rate of pay by 173.3 hours.  

 

DATED this ___ day of ________, 2024. 

 

CITY OF ALGONA     IAMAW, DISTRICT LODGE 160 

 

 

________________________   __________________________ 

TROY LINNELL, MAYOR    BETH BERGERON, BUSINESS 

       REPRESENTATIVE 

114

Section 9, ItemF.



 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL  

AGENDA BILL # 

City of Algona 

200 Washington Blvd. 

Algona, WA 98001 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

City Council Agenda Packet   4-8-2024  

ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT: 
 

  Resolution 1274-24, King County Parks Grant  

  Agreement 

Agenda Date: April 8th, 2024   

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 

Mayor   
City Administrator  X 

City Attorney  x 
City Clerk  x 

Finance Dept   
PW/Utilities   

Planning Dept   
 Community Services   

Cost Impact: Police Dept   
Fund Source: Finance Committee   
Timeline: 1st review – 3/11/24 Planning Commission   

                2nd review – 3/25/24 Civil Service Committee   
             3rd review – 4/8/24     

Staff Contact: Dana Parker, City Clerk; Jessica Griess, City Administrator 

Attachments: Resolution 1274-24; King County Parks Grant Agreement 

- 

SUMMARY STATEMENT:  

THIS AGREEMENT is a grant agreement entered into between City of Algona  and King County for an active 
recreation, passive recreation, local trail, or other capital project in a park or recreational facility using a Parks 
Capital and Open Space Program grant.  

 

The grant award is for $1 million to fund the David E. Hill Wetland Preserve.  

COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:  

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  

Make a motion to approve Resolution 1274-24. 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date:  Action: Vote:   

 

 

AB24-0015 

115

Section 12, ItemA.



CITY OF ALGONA 
RESOLUTION NO. 1274-24 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ALGONA, WASHINGTON, APPROVING AND 
AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF THE CAPITAL PROJECT 
GRANT AGREEMENT FOR PARKS CAPITAL AND OPEN 
SPACE PROGRAM WITH KING COUNTY IN SUPPORT OF 
THE DAVID E. HILL WETLAND PRESERVE 

 

 
  

WHEREAS, the King County Natural Resources and Parks Division has 
established the Parks Capital and Open Space Program to provide funding for projects 
that support active recreation, passive recreation, local trails, or other capital parks or 
recreational projects; and  
 
 WHEREAS, as authorized in King County Ordinance 18890, the King County 
voters approved the parks, recreation trails, and open space levy which includes funding 
for the capital projects; and  
 

WHEREAS, King County has awarded the City of Algona Wetland Preserve 
Restoration & Interpretive Trail project in the amount of $1,000,000; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council desires to accept and utilize such allocation by 
approving and authorizing the execution of the Capital Project Grant Agreement as 
provided herein;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALGONA, 
WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1.   Approval of Capital Project Grant Agreement; Execution Authority.  The City 

Council hereby approves the Capital Project Grant Agreement for the Parks Capital and Open 

Space Program between King County and the City of Algona  in support of the Wetland Preserve 

Restoration & Interpretive Trail project in the form provided in Exhibit A, attached hereto and 

incorporated herein by this reference as if set forth in full. The Mayor is hereby authorized to 

execute said Agreement on behalf of the City, inclusive of any minor revisions deemed reasonably 

necessary and appropriate by the Mayor.   

 
Section 2.   Effective Date.  This resolution shall take effect immediately upon 

passage. 
 
 PASSED by the City Council of the City of Algona, at its regular meeting thereof 
this __ day of April, 2024. 
 
       CITY OF ALGONA, WASHINGTON 

 

116

Section 12, ItemA.



 

 

{JZL2525833.DOC;1/13150.000003/ } Page 2 of 3 
  

 
4894-8004-5190, v. 1 

 
______________________________ 
Troy Linnell, Mayor 

 
 
 
(SEAL) 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 

Dana Parker, City Clerk 
  

 

  

117

Section 12, ItemA.



 

 

{JZL2525833.DOC;1/13150.000003/ } Page 3 of 3 
  

 
4894-8004-5190, v. 1 

Exhibit A 
 

118

Section 12, ItemA.



City of Algona – Wetland Preserve Restoration & Interpretive Trail – 6416652
Task - 1.23

PARKS CAPITAL AND OPEN SPACE PROGRAM
CAPITAL PROJECT GRANT AGREEMENT

Department/Division: Natural Resources and Parks   /   Parks and Recreation
Grant 
Recipient: City of Algona

Project: Wetland Preserve Restoration & Interpretive Trail

Award Amount: $1,000,000 Project#: 1144509 Contract#: 6416652

Term Period: To 11/30/2025

THIS AGREEMENT is a grant agreement entered into between City of Algona (the 
“Grant Recipient”) and King County (the “County”) (referred to individually as a “Party” 
and collectively the “Parties”) for an active recreation, passive recreation, local trail, or 
other capital project in a park or recreational facility using a Parks Capital and Open 
Space Program grant.  

RECITALS

A. Ordinance 18890, which took effect May 13, 2019, called for a special election to 
authorize the King County parks, recreation trails, and open space levy. On 
August 6, 2019, King County voters approved the levy, which included funding 
for capital projects for active and passive recreation, local trails, or capital 
projects in parks and recreation facilities in order to construct new and improve 
existing recreation facilities to address the pressures of rapid growth in King 
County. 

B. Motion 15378, Section A.1., and Attachment A, further delineated the use of levy 
funds for the Parks Capital and Open Space Grants Program and the guidelines 
governing that use.

C. Ordinance 19166, Attachment A established the grant award criteria and the 
process for the distribution of Parks Capital and Open Space Grants as well as 
the proposed composition of an advisory committee to review and make 
recommendations on the grant awards.

D. King County, a home rule charter county and political subdivision of the State of 
Washington, is authorized to administer the Parks Capital and Open Space Grant 
Program and enter into agreements for the use of the grant funds with King 
County towns, cities, or metropolitan parks districts for capital projects for active 

119

Section 12, ItemA.

https://aqua.kingcounty.gov/Council/Clerk/OldOrdsMotions/Ordinance%2018890.pdf
https://aqua.kingcounty.gov/Council/Clerk/OldOrdsMotions/Motion%2015378.pdf
https://mkcclegisearch.kingcounty.gov/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8812049&GUID=B120D8E6-83E8-41AD-9141-29EA97E59988


City of Algona – Wetland Preserve Restoration & Interpretive Trail – 6416652
Task - 1.23

and passive recreation, local trails, or capital projects in parks and recreation 
facilities.

E. Grant Recipient is a(n) City or Town in King County.

F. The Parks Capital and Open Space Grant Program Advisory Committee 
(“Advisory Committee”) has recommended an allocation of levy grant funds to 
specific projects, pursuant to Ordinance 19666. 

G. King County has selected Grant Recipient to receive a Parks Capital 
and Open Space Grant award in the amount of $1,000,000 (“Grant 
Award Funds”) in order to construct, improve, or repair the Project 
described below and in the attached exhibits. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises, covenants, and other provisions 
set forth in this Agreement, the Parties agree as follows:

GRANT AWARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. DEFINITIONS
1.1 Project.
The term “Project” means the design, development, and construction of the 
Facility described in Exhibit A. Grant Award Funds available pursuant to this 
Agreement may only be used for the Project. To complete the Project, Grant 
Recipient shall use the Grant Award Funds to design, develop, and construct the 
Facility, as set forth in Exhibit B, consistent with the requirements set forth in this 
Agreement and in the following attached exhibits, which are incorporated herein 
by reference:

Map of Facility and/or Schematic Attached hereto as Exhibit 
A

Scope of Work  Attached hereto as Exhibit 
B

Project Budget Attached hereto as Exhibit 
C

Insurance Requirements Attached hereto as Exhibit 
D

Certificate of Insurance and Endorsements Attached hereto as Exhibit 
E

Notice of Grant (draft) Attached hereto as Exhibit 
F

120

Section 12, ItemA.

https://aqua.kingcounty.gov/Council/Clerk/OldOrdsMotions/Ordinance%2019666.pdf


City of Algona – Wetland Preserve Restoration & Interpretive Trail – 6416652
Task - 1.23

Cultural Resource Preservation 
Requirements 

Attached hereto as Exhibit 
G

1.2 Map of Facility and/or Schematic. This Agreement applies to the Project to 
improve the park and recreational facility (“Facility”) which is located at:

Parcel Number(s): 3621049002
See Exhibit A for a visual depiction of the Facility via a map and/or schematic 
(including boundaries) for the physical address noted above. 

1.3 Scope of Work. Grant Recipient shall provide a scope of work (“Scope of 
Work”), attached hereto as Exhibit B, which describes the Project in detail 
and includes a description of the various design, development, permitting, 
and construction milestones required for completion of the Project and 
intended use of the Grant Award Funds. Grant Recipient shall apply the 
funds received from the County for the Project under this Agreement in 
accordance with the Scope of Work, attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

1.4 Project Budget. Grant Recipient shall work with King County to develop a 
Project Budget (“Project Budget”), attached hereto as Exhibit C. King 
County shall provide the Grant Award Funds to the Grant Recipient to pay 
for costs and expenditures related to the Project, as set forth in Exhibits B 
and C. Grant Award Funds provided to Grant Recipient may only be used to 
pay for costs and expenditures related to the Project, as set forth in Exhibits 
B and C.

1.5 Contractor. “Contractor” shall include any contractor or consultant hired by 
Grant Recipient, including any of the contractor’s or consultant’s 
subcontractors or subconsultants.

2. EFFECTIVE DATE
The Agreement shall be effective upon signature by both Parties (“Effective Date”). 

3. TERM
The term (“Term”) of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and end on 
11/30/2025. This Agreement shall remain in effect until such time as it is 
amended in writing or terminated as provided herein. 

4. AMENDMENTS
This Agreement together with the attached exhibits expressly incorporated herein 
by reference and attached hereto shall constitute the whole Agreement between 
the Parties. This Agreement may be amended only by an instrument, in writing, 
duly executed by the Parties. Either party may request changes to this Agreement, 
however, changes that deviate substantially from the proposal submitted to and 
approved by the Advisory Committee and the King County Council will need to be 
approved by those entities. 

5. NOTICES 

121

Section 12, ItemA.



City of Algona – Wetland Preserve Restoration & Interpretive Trail – 6416652
Task - 1.23

Unless otherwise specified in the Agreement, all notices or documentation 
required or provided pursuant to this Agreement shall be in electronic form and 
shall be deemed duly given when received at the addresses first set forth below 
via electronic mail. 

KING COUNTY City of Algona
Parks Grant Manager Jessica Griess
Community Investments 
Unit City Clerk/Treasurer
King County Parks City of Algona
201 S Jackson Street
Suite #5702 200 Washington Blvd
Seattle, WA 98104 Algona, WA 98001
(206) 848-0984 253-833-2897
ehirschi@kingcounty.gov jessicag@algonawa.gov
*NOTE: Personal contact information for your assigned grant manager is 
available in the grant management system 

Either Party hereto may, at any time, by giving ten (10) days written notice to the 
other Party, to designate any other address in substitution of the foregoing 
address to which such notice or communication shall be given.

6. DISBURSEMENT OF GRANT FUNDS
6.1 Notwithstanding the Effective Date of this Agreement, the County shall 

pay for eligible and authorized costs supported by adequate 
documentation, as determined by the County, for the work specified in the 
Scope of Work (Exhibit B) expended from 09/13/2023 through 11/30/2025.

6.2 The County may authorize, at County’s sole discretion, release of a 
portion of the Grant Award Funds to Grant Recipient, upon execution of 
this Agreement, and receipt of Grant Recipient’s County-approved 
completed Scope of Work and Project Budget (see Section 1 and Exhibits 
B and C).

6.3 The County shall initiate authorization for payment and disbursement of 
Grant Award Funds after approval of sufficiently detailed Project-related 
invoices submitted by Grant Recipient. The County shall make payment to 
Grant Recipient not more than thirty (30) days after a complete and 
accurate invoice and any other required documentation is received and 
approved.

6.4 Grant Recipient shall submit the final invoice, supporting documentation 
and any outstanding deliverables, as specified in the Scope of Work 
(Exhibit B) and Project Budget (Exhibit C), no later than thirty (30) days 
after the Contract End Date.  If the Grant Recipient’s final invoice, 
supporting documentation, and reports are not submitted by the day 
specified in this subsection, or if such final documents are not approved by 
the County then the County shall have no obligation to pay Grant 

122

Section 12, ItemA.



City of Algona – Wetland Preserve Restoration & Interpretive Trail – 6416652
Task - 1.23

Recipient unless and until Grant Recipient submits, and the County 
approves, a properly completed invoice. Grant Recipient must submit a 
corrected invoice within 30 days after receiving notice of an improper or 
incomplete invoice.

7. GRANT REPORTING
All Grant Award Funds received pursuant to this Agreement and accrued interest 
therefrom must accounted for separately from all other Grant Recipient accounts 
and moneys. Until the Project is completed, and all proceeds provided pursuant 
to this Agreement have been expended, the Grant Recipient shall provide reports 
to the King County Project Manager on a schedule determined by the County.

8. COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT 
Grant Recipient shall complete the Project described in Section 1.1 and Exhibits 
A, B and C of this Agreement. If Grant Recipient cannot complete the Project, as 
specified by the Scope of Work and deliverables set forth in Exhibit B, the County 
shall be released from any obligation to fund the Project, and the County in its 
sole discretion may reallocate such funds for other projects in other jurisdictions 
in accordance with Ordinance 19166 and Motion 15378. 
Pursuant to Section 19, Termination, this Agreement will be terminated if the 
Grant Recipient is unable or unwilling to expend the Grant Award Funds for the 
Project as provided in this Agreement. The Grant Recipient may not redirect 
Grant Award Funds for a purpose other than completion of the Project as 
approved by the Advisory Committee and King County Council. 

9. COMMUNICATION AND KING COUNTY MILESTONE NOTIFICATION
Grant Recipient shall recognize County as a “grant sponsor” for the Project in the 
following manner:
9.1 Events: Grant Recipient shall invite and recognize “King County Parks” at 

all events promoting the Project, and at the final Project dedication. 
9.2 Community Relations: Grant Recipient shall recognize “King County 

Parks” as a “grant sponsor” in all social media, websites, brochures, 
banners, posters, press releases, and other promotional material related 
to the Project.

9.3 King County Parks Notification: Grant Recipient shall notify the King 
County Parks Grant Manager thirty (30) days prior to any major milestone, 
such as a groundbreaking or opening dates.

9.4 King County Council Notification: If Grant Recipient is a city or town, 
notification to the King County Council thirty (30) days prior to any major 
milestone, such as a groundbreaking or opening dates is, required.

9.5 Signage: Grant Recipient shall recognize “King County Parks” on any 
signage as a funder/contributor of project/facility. Grant Recipient is 
required to use appropriate King County logo on any signage and 

123

Section 12, ItemA.

https://mkcclegisearch.kingcounty.gov/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8812049&GUID=B120D8E6-83E8-41AD-9141-29EA97E59988
https://aqua.kingcounty.gov/Council/Clerk/OldOrdsMotions/Motion%2015378.pdf


City of Algona – Wetland Preserve Restoration & Interpretive Trail – 6416652
Task - 1.23

communications. 

10. DISPOSITION OF REMAINING GRANT AWARD FUNDS 
If Grant Recipient does not expend all proceeds obligated to be provided through 
this Agreement, such proceeds, if held by Grant Recipient, shall be refunded to the 
County. For purposes of this section, “proceeds” shall include all Grant Award 
Funds obligated to be provided by the County plus interest accrued by Grant 
Recipient on the grant funds. Any proceeds in excess of those required to be 
provided by the County for the actual costs of the Project shall remain with the 
County for use in its sole discretion.

11. PUBLIC ACCESS
The Grant Award is provided to Grant Recipient for the Project for the purpose of 
land protection and recreation for the citizens of King County. Therefore, Grant 
Recipient and any successor in interest agree to maintain the Facility for public 
use as required by Ordinances 18890 and 19166, and the Parks Capital and 
Open Space Grant program requirements specified in Motion 15378. The Facility 
shall be open and accessible to the public at reasonable hours and times. Grant 
Recipient shall notify the public of the availability of use by posting and updating 
that information on its website and by maintaining at entrances and/or other 
locations openly visible signs with such information. Fees for use of the Facility 
shall be no greater than those generally charged by public operators of similar 
facilities in King County. 
Notwithstanding temporary closure for required maintenance or repairs, the 
minimum period of time Grant Recipient must ensure the Project is available for 
public use is thirty (30) years. If the Facility is retired or otherwise removed from 
use before the end of the thirty-year period, then the Grant Recipient shall 
reimburse the Grant Award Funds to King County. Grant Recipient’s duties under 
this Section 11 will survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement.

12. NOTICE OF GRANT 
Upon completion of construction of the Facility, a completed Notice of Grant will 
be provided by King County for execution, a sample of which is attached hereto 
as Exhibit F. Upon final execution of the Notice of Grant, Grant Recipient and/or 
the legal property owner must record a copy with the appropriate county offices.  

13. CONSTRUCTION OF THE FACILITY
13.1 Capital Improvements. 

Grant Recipient shall design, develop, and construct mutually agreed 
upon Facility, features, and amenities in accordance with all applicable 
design(s), timelines, restrictions, environmental considerations, permitting 
determinations, neighborhood impact mitigations, and all other 
requirements. All contracted work by Grant Recipient, its agents, 
representatives, or subcontractors, shall be bonded and properly insured 
to ensure the complete and safe design and construction of all facilities, 
features, and amenities. As between Grant Recipient and King County, 

124

Section 12, ItemA.

https://aqua.kingcounty.gov/Council/Clerk/OldOrdsMotions/Ordinance%2018890.pdf
https://mkcclegisearch.kingcounty.gov/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8812049&GUID=B120D8E6-83E8-41AD-9141-29EA97E59988
https://aqua.kingcounty.gov/Council/Clerk/OldOrdsMotions/Motion%2015378.pdf


City of Algona – Wetland Preserve Restoration & Interpretive Trail – 6416652
Task - 1.23

Grant Recipient will be solely responsible to comply with all applicable 
authorities and to obtain all necessary permits, approvals, and 
endorsements for the Project.  

13.2 Warranties. 
With respect to all warranties, express or implied, for work performed or 
materials supplied in connection with the Project, Grant Recipient shall:

• Obtain all warranties, express or implied, that would be given in normal 
commercial practice from suppliers, manufacturers, contractors, or 
installers;

• Require all warranties be executed, in writing; and
• Be responsible to enforce any warranty of a contractor, subcontractor, 

manufacturer, or supplier.
If, within an applicable warranty period, any part of the Facility or work 
performed to construct the Facility is found not to conform to 
specifications, permit requirements, or industry standard, Grant Recipient 
shall correct it correct it within a reasonable timeframe at the 
determination of King County.

13.3 Right to Inspect- Construction.
King County personnel or agents may inspect the construction project at 
any time provided that such persons observe due regard for workplace 
safety and security. King County may require Grant Recipient or its 
contractors to stop work if King County deems work stoppage necessary 
to remedy construction defects or to address risks to health, safety, or 
welfare. Grant Recipient specifically understands, acknowledges, and 
agrees that at a minimum, King County will inspect the Facility 
construction project before final completion of the Project.

13.4 Design. 
Grant Recipient has retained a licensed architect and/or licensed 
professional engineer, registered in the State of Washington, who will 
prepare a Project design for the Facility and exterior landscaping, which 
visually blends with the setting. King County shall review the design plans 
for the Project in concept and reserves the right to approve the final 
design of the Project, consistent with established zoning, design code, or 
both.

13.5 Construction Site/Work Fencing.
Grant Recipient will be solely responsible for the site work, required 
permits, and grading for the Project. Grant Recipient will ensure the work 
area is properly barricaded, and that signage is installed, directing 
unauthorized persons not to enter onto the construction site during any 
phase of development or construction. Unless otherwise agreed by the 
Parties in writing, fencing will be placed around work areas. In addition, 
construction areas will be kept clean and organized during development 

125

Section 12, ItemA.



City of Algona – Wetland Preserve Restoration & Interpretive Trail – 6416652
Task - 1.23

periods. Grant Recipient will be responsible for site security, traffic, and 
pedestrian warnings at the site during the development and construction 
phases.

13.6 Alteration of Site or Facility after Construction. 
For thirty (30) years after the Facility is completed and accepted by Grant 
Recipient and King County as defined herein, Grant Recipient will not 
make any material alteration outside of ordinary maintenance to the 
Facility without the express, written consent by King County.

13.7 Development and Construction Fees and Expenses. 
Grant Recipient will be responsible to obtain and pay for all necessary 
permits, fees, and expenses associated with the Project.

13.8 Public Works Laws. 
To the extent applicable, Grant Recipient will comply with all public works 
laws, regulations, and ordinances, including but not limited to those 
related to prevailing wages (see RCW 39.12), retainage (see RCW 60.28), 
bonding (see RCW 39.08), use of licensed contractors (see RCW 39.06), 
and competitive bidding (see RCW 36.32 and RCW 35.21.278). Grant 
Recipient will indemnify and defend King County should it be sued or 
made the subject of an administrative investigation or hearing for a 
violation of such laws, regulations, and ordinances in connection with the 
improvements.

13.9 Contractor Indemnification and Hold Harmless. 
Grant Recipient will require its construction contractors and subcontractors 
to defend, indemnify, and hold King County, its officers, officials, 
employees, and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, 
damages, losses, or suits including attorney's fees and costs, arising out 
of or in connection with the design, development, and construction of the 
Facility except for injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of 
King County.

13.10Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance. 
Grant Recipient shall maintain, and/or require its Contractor(s) to maintain 
the minimum scope and limits of insurance as required in Exhibit D – 
Insurance Requirements and as evidenced in Exhibit E – Certificate of 
Insurance and Endorsements. 

14. INTERNAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTING SYSTEM
Grant Recipient shall establish and maintain a system of accounting and internal 
controls which complies with applicable, generally accepted accounting 
principles, and governmental accounting and financial reporting standards in 
accordance with Revised Code of Washington (RCW) Chapter 40.14. 

15. MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS

126

Section 12, ItemA.

https://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=39.12&full=true
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=60.28&full=true
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=39.08&full=true
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=39.06&full=true
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=36.32&full=true
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=35.21.278
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=40.14&full=true


City of Algona – Wetland Preserve Restoration & Interpretive Trail – 6416652
Task - 1.23

15.1 Grant Recipient shall maintain accounts and records, including personnel, 
property, financial, Project records, including Agreement deliverables, and 
other such records as may be deemed necessary by the County to ensure 
proper accounting for all Grant Award Funds and compliance with this 
Agreement.

15.2 These records shall be maintained for a period of six (6) years after the 
expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement unless permission to 
destroy them is granted by the Office of the Archivist in accordance with 
(RCW) Chapter 40.14.

15.3 Grant Recipient shall inform the County in writing of the location, if different 
from the Grant Recipient address listed in Section 5 of this Agreement of 
the aforesaid books, records, documents, and other evidence and shall 
notify the County in writing of any changes in location within ten (10) working 
days of any such relocation.

16. RIGHT TO INSPECT  
King County reserves the right to review and approve the performance of Grant 
Recipient with regard to this Agreement, and, at its sole discretion, to inspect or 
audit the Grant Recipient’s records regarding this Agreement and the Project upon 
seventy-two (72) hours’ notice during normal business hours. 

17. COMPLIANCE WITH ALL LAWS AND REGULATIONS
Grant Recipient shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances and regulations 
in using funds provided by the County, including, without limitation, those relating 
to providing a safe working environment to employees and, specifically, the 
requirements of the Washington Industrial Safety and Health Act (WISHA); and, 
to the extent applicable, those related to “public works,” payment of prevailing 
wages, and competitive bidding of contracts. The Grant Recipient specifically 
agrees to comply and pay all costs associated with achieving such compliance 
without notice from King County; and further agrees that King County, does not 
waive this Section by giving notice of demand for compliance in any instance. 
The Grant Recipient shall indemnify and defend the County should it be sued or 
made the subject of an administrative investigation or hearing for a violation of 
such laws related to this Agreement.

18. CORRECTIVE ACTION
18.1 If the County determines that a breach of contract has occurred or does 

not approve of the Grant Recipient’s performance, it will give the Grant 
Recipient written notification of unacceptable performance. Grant 
Recipient will then take corrective action within a reasonable period of 
time, as may be defined by King County in its sole discretion in its written 
notification to Grant Recipient.

18.2 King County may withhold any payment owed Grant Recipient until the 
County is satisfied that corrective action has been taken or completed.

127

Section 12, ItemA.

https://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=40.14&full=true
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=49.17&full=true


City of Algona – Wetland Preserve Restoration & Interpretive Trail – 6416652
Task - 1.23

19. TERMINATION
19.1 King County may terminate this Agreement in whole or in part, with or 

without cause, at any time during the Term of this Agreement, by providing 
Grant Recipient ten (10) days advance written notice of the termination.

19.2 If the termination results from acts or omissions of Grant Recipient, 
including but not limited to misappropriation, nonperformance of required 
services, or fiscal mismanagement, Grant Recipient shall return to the 
County immediately any funds, misappropriated or unexpended, which 
have been paid to Grant Recipient by the County.

19.3 Any King County obligations under this Agreement beyond the current 
appropriation biennium are conditioned upon the County Council's 
appropriation of sufficient funds to support such obligations. If the Council 
does not approve such appropriation, then this Agreement will terminate 
automatically at the close of the current appropriation biennium.

19.4 The Agreement will be terminated if the Grant Recipient is unable or 
unwilling to expend the Grant Award Funds as specified in Section 1 and 
Exhibits B and C, or upon reimbursement by the Grant Recipient to the 
County of all unexpended proceeds provided by the County pursuant to this 
Agreement and payment of all amounts due pursuant to Section 6. 

20. FUTURE SUPPORT; UTILITIES AND SERVICE
The County makes no commitment to support the services contracted for herein 
and assumes no obligation for future support of the activity contracted for herein 
except as expressly set forth in this Agreement. Grant Recipient understands, 
acknowledges, and agrees that the County shall not be liable to pay for or to 
provide any utilities or services in connection with the Project contemplated 
herein.

21. HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFICATION
Grant Recipient shall protect, indemnify, and save harmless the County, its 
officers, officials, agents, and employees from and against any and all claims, 
costs, and/or losses whatsoever occurring or resulting from (1) Grant Recipient’s 
failure to pay any such compensation, wages, benefits, or taxes, and/or (2) work, 
services, materials, or supplies performed or provided by Grant Recipient’s 
employees or other suppliers in connection with or support of the performance of 
this Agreement.
Grant Recipient further agrees that it is financially responsible for and will repay 
the County all indicated amounts following an audit exception which occurs due to 
the negligence, intentional act, and/or failure, for any reason, to comply with the 
terms of this Agreement by the Grant Recipient, its officers, employees, agents, 
representatives, or subcontractors. This duty to repay the County shall not be 
diminished or extinguished by the expiration or prior termination of the Agreement.
Grant Recipient agrees for itself, its successors, and assigns, to defend, indemnify, 
and hold harmless King County, its appointed and elected officials, and employees 

128

Section 12, ItemA.



City of Algona – Wetland Preserve Restoration & Interpretive Trail – 6416652
Task - 1.23

from and against liability for all claims, demands, suits, and judgments, including 
costs of defense thereof, for injury to persons, death, or property damage which is 
caused by, arises out of, or is incidental to any use of or occurrence on the Project 
that is the subject of this Agreement, or Grant Recipient’s exercise of rights and 
privileges granted by this Agreement, except to the extent of the County's sole 
negligence. Grant Recipient’s obligations under this Section shall include:

A. The duty to promptly accept tender of defense and provide defense to the 
County at the Grant Recipient’s own expense;

B. Indemnification of claims made by Grant Recipient’s employees or agents; 
and

C. Waiver of Grant Recipient’s immunity under the industrial insurance 
provisions of Title 51 RCW, but only to the extent necessary to indemnify King 
County, which waiver has been mutually negotiated by the parties.

In the event it is necessary for the County to incur attorney's fees, legal expenses, 
or other costs to enforce the provisions of this Section, all such fees, expenses, 
and costs shall be recoverable from the Grant Recipient.
In the event it is determined that RCW 4.24.115 applies to this Agreement, the 
Grant Recipient agrees to protect, defend, indemnify and save the County, its 
officers, officials, employees, and agents from any and all claims, demands, 
suits, penalties, losses damages judgments, or costs of any kind whatsoever for 
bodily injury to persons or damage to property (hereinafter "claims"), arising out 
of or in any way resulting from the Grant Recipient’s officers, employees, agents 
and/or subcontractors of all tiers, acts or omissions, performance of failure to 
perform the rights and privileges granted under this Agreement, to the maximum 
extent permitted by law or as defined by RCW 4.24.115, as now enacted or 
hereafter amended.
A hold harmless provision to protect King County similar to this provision shall be 
included in all Agreements or subcontractor Agreements entered into by Grant 
Recipient in conjunction with this Agreement. Grant Recipient’s duties under this 
Section 21 will survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement.

22. NONDISCRIMINATION
King County Code (“KCC”) chapters 12.16 through 12.19 apply to this Agreement and 
are incorporated by this reference as if fully set forth herein. In all hiring or 
employment made possible or resulting from this Agreement, there shall be no 
discrimination against any employee or applicant for employment because of 
sex, race, color, marital status, national origin, religious affiliation, disability, 
sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, or age except minimum age 
and retirement provisions, unless based upon a bona fide occupational 
qualification. 

23. POLITICAL ACTIVITY PROHIBITED
None of the funds, materials, property, or services provided directly or indirectly 
under this Agreement shall be used for any partisan political activity or to further 

129

Section 12, ItemA.

https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?Cite=51
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=4.24.115
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=4.24.115
https://aqua.kingcounty.gov/council/clerk/code/15_Title_12.pdf


City of Algona – Wetland Preserve Restoration & Interpretive Trail – 6416652
Task - 1.23

the election or defeat of any candidate for public office.
24. PROJECT MAINTENANCE; EQUIPMENT PURCHASE, MAINTENANCE, AND 

OWNERSHIP
A. As between the County and Grant Recipient, Grant Recipient shall be 

responsible to operate and maintain the completed Project at its own sole 
expense and risk. Grant Recipient shall maintain the completed Project in good 
working condition consistent with applicable standards and guidelines. Grant 
Recipient understands, acknowledges, and agrees that the County is not 
responsible to operate or to maintain the Project in any way.

B. Grant Recipient shall be responsible for all property purchased pursuant to this 
Agreement, including the proper care and maintenance of any equipment.

C. Grant Recipient shall establish and maintain inventory records and transaction 
documents (purchase requisitions, packing slips, invoices, receipts) of 
equipment and materials purchased with Grant Award Funds. 

Grant Recipient’s duties under this Section 24 shall survive the expiration of this 
Agreement.

25. CULTURAL RESOURCES 
Grant Recipient agrees to coordinate cultural resource review of the Project with 
the King County Historic Preservation Program (“HPP”) in order to determine 
potential effects to cultural resources and any necessary mitigation. Grant 
Recipient further agrees to perform the steps outlined by the HPP for any 
necessary cultural resource preservation as specified in Exhibit G.

26. ASSIGNMENT
Grant Recipient shall not assign any portion of rights and obligations under this 
Agreement or transfer or assign any claim arising pursuant to this Agreement 
without the written consent of the County. Grant Recipient must seek such 
consent in writing not less than thirty (30) days prior to the date of any proposed 
assignment.

27. WAIVER OF BREACH OR DEFAULT
Waiver of breach of any provision in this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a 
waiver of any subsequent breach and shall not be construed to be a modification 
of the terms of the Agreement unless stated to be such through written approval 
by the County, which shall be attached to the original Agreement. Waiver of any 
default shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any subsequent defaults.

28. TAXES  
Grant Recipient agrees to pay on a current basis all taxes or assessments levied 
on its activities and property, including, without limitation, any leasehold excise tax 
due under RCW Chapter 82.29A; PROVIDED, however, that nothing contained 
herein will modify the right of the Grant Recipient to contest any such tax, and 
Grant Recipient shall not be deemed to be in default as long as it will, in good faith, 
be contesting the validity or amount of any such taxes. 

130

Section 12, ItemA.

https://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=82.29A&full=true


City of Algona – Wetland Preserve Restoration & Interpretive Trail – 6416652
Task - 1.23

29. WASHINGTON LAW CONTROLLING; WHERE ACTIONS BROUGHT
This Agreement is made in and will be in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Washington, which will be controlling in any dispute that arises hereunder. Actions 
pertaining to this Agreement will be brought in King County Superior Court, King 
County, Washington.

30. PUBLIC DOCUMENT
This Agreement will be considered a public document and will be available for 
inspection and copying by the public. 

31. LEGAL RELATIONS  
Nothing contained herein will make, or be deemed to make, County and Grant 
Recipient a partner of one another, and this Agreement will not be construed as 
creating a partnership or joint venture. Nothing in this Agreement will create, or be 
deemed to create, any right, duty or obligation in any person or entity not a party 
to it.

32. PERMITS AND LICENSES  
Grant Recipient shall develop and run the Project in accordance with all applicable 
laws and regulatory requirements including environmental considerations, 
permitting determinations, and other legal requirements. All activities and 
improvements shall be performed by Grant Recipient at its sole expense and 
liability. Grant Recipient shall, at its sole cost and expense, apply for, obtain and 
comply with all necessary permits, licenses and approvals required for the Project.

33. INTERPRETATION OF COUNTY RULES AND REGULATIONS  
If there is any question regarding the interpretation of any County rule or regulation, 
the County decision will govern and will be binding upon the Grant Recipient. 

34. ENTIRE AGREEMENT  
This Agreement, including its attachments, constitutes the entire Agreement 
between the County and Grant Recipient and supersedes all other agreements 
and understandings between them, whether written, oral or otherwise. 

35. COUNTERPARTS; ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES
This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which 
shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the 
same instrument. The Parties acknowledge and agree that this document may be 
executed by electronic signature, which shall be considered as an original 
signature for all purposes and shall have the same force and effect as an original 
signature. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each individual signing this Agreement warrants that they 
have the authority to enter into this Agreement on behalf of the Party for which that 
individual signs. The Parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the dates set 

131

Section 12, ItemA.



City of Algona – Wetland Preserve Restoration & Interpretive Trail – 6416652
Task - 1.23

forth below.

City of Algona King County

By By

Title Title

Date Date

132

Section 12, ItemA.



City of Algona – Wetland Preserve Restoration & Interpretive  

EXHIBIT A – MAP OF FACILITY AND LOCATION

133

Section 12, ItemA.



City of Algona – Wetland Preserve Restoration & Interpretive  

134

Section 12, ItemA.



City of Algona – Wetland Preserve Restoration & Interpretive Trail – 6416652
Task - 1.23

EXHIBIT B – SCOPE OF WORK

Project Summary 
The City of Algona will remove invasive plant species, restore native wetland habitat, 
and construct an accessible boardwalk with an interpretive trail and viewing platforms to 
provide outdoor education and increased access to parks and open spaces.
 
Deliverables  
 

Progress Reports 
Final Report  
Completed Design/Plan
Notice of Grant
Cultural Resource Requirement

 
 

 
Timeline 
 

Complete all permitting January 2024
Complete final design February 2024
Constuction contractor selected April 2024
Groundbreaking - construction 
begins

June 2024

Complete construction June 2025
Grand opening June 2025

 
The Grantee shall not make any significant changes to an approved project without prior 
written consent of the County. Significant changes include, but are not limited to, a 
change to the timeline that falls outside the contract period or a shift of more than 
twenty percent of funds within the approved grant budget over the term of this Exhibit. If 
changes are necessary and approved by the County, such changes will be formalized in 
a written amendment signed by all parties.

135

Section 12, ItemA.



City of Algona – Wetland Preserve Restoration & Interpretive Trail – 6416652
Task - 1.23

EXHIBIT C – PROJECT BUDGET

Planning Costs $77,500
Construction Costs $915,000
Personnel Costs $7,500
Indirect Costs $0

Total $1,000,000
 
 
Grant Budget Changes 
 
With written approval from the County, the Grantee may reallocate grant funds across 
budget line items within twenty percent of the total grant budget without requiring an 
official contract amendment. Indirect costs shall not exceed twenty percent of direct 
costs.  

Budget Line Items Descriptions 
 
Planning Costs include but are not limited to final design, specifications, and engineers 
cost estimate, tribal engagement, exhibit and sign design and translation, and tax.

Construction Costs include but are not limited to basic construction elements, 
restoration, trail and overlook, habitat elements, planting and site stabilization, and tax.

Personnel Costs include but are not limited to staff pay and benefits.

Indirect Costs include expenses of doing business that are not readily identified with a 
particular grant, contract, project, function, or activity, but are necessary for the general 
operation of the organization or the performance of the organization’s activities.

136

Section 12, ItemA.



City of Algona – Wetland Preserve Restoration & Interpretive Trail – 6416652
Task - 1.23

EXHIBIT D – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

1. Insurance Requirements

1.1.Grant Recipient shall purchase and maintain for the entire term of this 
Agreement or as otherwise stated in this Exhibit, at its sole cost and expense, 
the minimum insurance set forth below.  By requiring such minimum insurance, 
the County does not and shall not be deemed or construed to have assessed 
the risks that may be applicable to Grant Recipient, or any Contractor under this 
Agreement, or in any way limit the County’s potential recovery to insurance limits 
required hereunder.  To the contrary, this Agreement’s insurance requirements 
may not in any way be construed as limiting any potential liability to the County 
or the County’s potential recovery from Grant Recipient.  Grant Recipient and 
any Contractor shall assess their own risks and if they deem appropriate and/or 
prudent, maintain greater limits and/or broader coverage.

1.2.Each insurance policy shall be written on an “occurrence” basis, except 
insurance for Pollution Liability, which may be written on a “claims made” basis.

If coverage is approved and purchased on a “claims made” basis, the coverage 
provided under that insurance shall be maintained through:  (i) consecutive 
policy renewals for not less than three (3) years from the date of completion of 
the Project which is subject of this Agreement or, if such renewals are 
unavailable, (ii) the purchase of a tail/extended reporting period for not less than 
three (3) years from the date of completion of the Project which is the subject of 
this Agreement.  

2. Evidence and Cancellation of Insurance
2.1.Prior to contract execution and upon request by the County, Grant Recipient 

shall furnish the County certificates of insurance and endorsements certifying 
the issuance of all insurance required by this Agreement which is to be 
maintained for the entire term of the Agreement or as otherwise stated in this 
Exhibit.  All evidence of insurance shall be signed by a properly authorized 
officer, agent, general agent, or qualified representative to the insurer(s), shall 
certify the name of the insured(s), the type and amount of insurance, the location 
and operations to which the insurance applies, the inception and expiration 
dates, shall specify the form numbers of any endorsements issued to satisfy this 
Agreement’s insurance requirements, and shall state that the County shall 
receive notice at least thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of any 
cancellation, lapse, or material change in the policy(s). Certificate Holder: King 
County Parks, 201 S. Jackson Street, Suite 5702, Seattle, WA 98104. Electronic 
evidence of insurance documents may be emailed to: 
ParksGrants@kingcounty.gov.      

2.2.The County reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required 
insurance policies, including all endorsements and riders, which may be 

137

Section 12, ItemA.



City of Algona – Wetland Preserve Restoration & Interpretive Trail – 6416652
Task - 1.23

redacted of any confidential or proprietary information.  Grant Recipient shall 
deliver such policies to the County within five (5) business days of County’s 
request.

3. Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance

3.1.Grant Recipient shall maintain the following types of insurance and minimum 
insurance limits:

3.1.1. Commercial General Liability:  $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 
in the aggregate for bodily injury, personal and advertising injury, and 
property damage. Coverage shall be at least as broad as that afforded 
under ISO form number CG 00 01.  Such insurance shall include coverage 
for, but not limited to, premises liability, ongoing operations, products and 
completed operations, and contractual liability.  Limits may be satisfied by a 
single primary policy or by a combination of separate primary and umbrella 
or excess liability policies, provided that coverage under the latter shall be at 
least as broad as that afforded under the primary policy and satisfy all other 
requirements applicable to liability insurance including, but not limited to, 
additional insured status for the County.

3.1.2. Automobile Liability:  Grant Recipient and/or its Contractor(s) will maintain 
Automobile Liability insurance with a minimum $1,000,000 combined single 
limit per accident for bodily injury and property damage.  Coverage shall be 
at least as broad as that afforded under ISO form number CA 00 01 
covering BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE, symbol 1 “any auto”; or the 
combination of symbols 2, 8, and 9. Limit may be satisfied by a single 
primary policy or by a combination of separate primary and umbrella or 
excess liability policies, provided that coverage under the latter shall be at 
least as broad as that afforded under the primary policy.

3.1.3. Workers Compensation:  If Grant Recipient or its Contractor(s) have 
employees, then Workers Compensation coverage shall be maintained as 
required by the Industrial Insurance Act of the State of Washington, as well 
as any similar coverage required for this Project by applicable Federal or 
“Other States” State Law.

3.1.4. Employers Liability or “Stop Gap” coverage:  If Grant Recipient or its 
Contractor(s) have employees, then Employers Liability or “Stop Gap” 
coverage shall be maintained with a minimum limit of $1,000,000 each 
occurrence and shall be at least as broad as the protection provided by the 
Workers Compensation policy Part 2 (Employers Liability), or, in 
monopolistic states including but not limited to Washington, the protection 

138

Section 12, ItemA.



City of Algona – Wetland Preserve Restoration & Interpretive Trail – 6416652
Task - 1.23

provided by the “Stop Gap” endorsement to the commercial general liability 
policy.

3.1.5. Builder’s Risk / Installation Floater Insurance.  If construction activities will 
be funded by the Grant, Grant Recipient or its Contractor(s) shall procure 
and maintain, prior to and for the duration of the construction phase of the 
Project, “All Risk” Builder’s Risk insurance or Installation Floater insurance 
at least as broad as ISO form number CP0020 (Builder’s Risk Coverage 
Form) with ISO form number CP0020 (Causes of Loss – Special Form).  
The coverage shall insure for direct physical loss to property of the Project 
for 100% of the replacement value.  The policy shall be endorsed to cover 
the interests, as they may appear, of King County, Grant Recipient, and 
Contractor(s) of all tiers.  In the event of a loss to any or all of the work 
and/or materials therein and/or to be provided at any time, Grant Recipient 
or its Contractor(s) shall promptly reconstruct, repair, replace, or restore all 
work and/or materials so destroyed.  Policy shall include a waiver of 
subrogation in favor of King County.

3.1.6. Pollution Liability:  If geotechnical work will take place, Grant Recipient or 
its Contractor(s) shall provide Pollution Liability coverage with minimum 
limits of $1,000,000 per occurrence and in the aggregate to cover sudden 
and non-sudden bodily injury and/or property damage to include the 
destruction of tangible property, loss of use, clean-up costs, and the loss of 
use of tangible property that has not been physically injured or destroyed.

3.1.7. Fidelity and Crime Insurance.  If a Fiscal Sponsor is a party to this 
Agreement, Fiscal Sponsor(s) shall procure and maintain Fidelity and Crime 
insurance with a minimum limit equal to the grant amount.  Coverage shall 
include ‘Join Loss Payable’ ISO form CR 20 15 10/10 or substantive 
equivalent and ‘Provide Required Notice of Cancellation to Another Entity’ 
ISO form CR 20 17 10/10. 

4. Other Insurance Provisions and Requirements
4.1.All insurance policies purchased and maintained by Grant Recipient and any 

Contractor required in this Agreement shall contain, or be endorsed to contain 
the following provisions:

4.1.1. With respect to all liability policies except Professional Liability (Errors and 
Omissions) and Workers Compensation:

4.1.1.1. King County, its officials, employees, and agents shall be covered 
as additional insured for full coverage and policy limits as respects 
liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of the Grant 
Recipient, its agents, representatives, employees, or Contractor(s) in 
connection with this Agreement.  Additional Insured status shall include 
products-completed operations CG 20 100 11/85 or its substantive 
equivalent.  The County requires the endorsement(s) to complete the 
Agreement.

139

Section 12, ItemA.



City of Algona – Wetland Preserve Restoration & Interpretive Trail – 6416652
Task - 1.23

4.1.2. With respect to all liability policies (except Workers Compensation):
4.1.2.1. Coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the County, its 

officials, employees, and agents.  Any insurance and/or self-insurance 
maintained by the County, its officials, employees, or agents shall not 
contribute with any of Grant Recipient’s or Contractor(s)’s insurance or 
benefit the Grant Recipient, or any Contractor, or their respective 
insurers in any way.

4.1.2.2. Insurance shall expressly state that it applies separately to each 
insured and additional insured against whom a claim is made and/or 
lawsuit is brought, except with respect to the limits of insurer’s liability.

5. Waiver of Subrogation
5.1.Grant Recipient, its Contractor(s), and their respective insurance carriers release 

and waive all rights of subrogation against King County, its officials, agents, and 
employees for damages caused by fire or other perils which can be insured by a 
property insurance policy.  This provision shall be valid and enforceable only to 
the extent permissible by the applicable property insurance policies.

6. Deductibles/Self-Insured Retentions
6.1.Any deductible and/or self-insured retention of the policies shall in all instances 

be the sole responsibility of Grant Recipient or its Contractor, even if no claim 
has been made or asserted against them.

7. Acceptability of Insurers
7.1.Unless otherwise approved by the County, insurance is to be placed with 

insurers with an A.M. Best rating of no less than A:VIII.

8. Self-Insurance
8.1. If the Grant Recipient is a governmental entity or municipal corporation, Grant 

Recipient may maintain a fully funded self-insurance program or participate in an 
insurance pool for the protection and handling of its liabilities including injuries to 
persons and damage to property. Further, if Grant Recipient maintains a self-
insurance program or participates in an insurance pool, the additional insured 
requirement shall not apply to the coverage provided by the self-insured 
program or insurance pool.

9. Contractors 
9.1.Grant Recipient shall include all Contractors as insureds under its policies or, 

alternatively, Grant Recipient must require each of its Contractors to procure and 
maintain appropriate and reasonable insurance coverage and insurance limits to 
cover each of the Contractor’s liabilities given the scope of work and services 
being provided herein.  Contractor(s) must include the County, its officials, 
agents and employees as additional insured for full coverage and policy limits on 

140

Section 12, ItemA.



City of Algona – Wetland Preserve Restoration & Interpretive Trail – 6416652
Task - 1.23

its Commercial General Liability insurance and, if applicable, its Automobile 
Liability insurance.  Upon request by the County, and within five (5) business 
days, Grant Recipient must provide evidence of each Contractor(s) insurance 
coverage, including endorsements.  

141

Section 12, ItemA.



City of Algona – Wetland Preserve Restoration & Interpretive Trail – 6416652
Task - 1.23

EXHIBIT E – CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE AND ENDORSEMENTS

142

Section 12, ItemA.



 
 

Certificate of Coverage 
 
 
 
 

Certificate holder:  Policy number: None 
City of Algona  Term of certificate: 1/1/2023 – 1/1/2024 
200 Washington Blvd  Annual re-issue: Yes 
Algona, WA 98001    

 

RE: 2023 King County Parks Levy Grant Program 
 
Please be advised that the City of Algona is a member of the Association of Washington Cities Risk 
Management Service Agency (AWC RMSA) and participates in the self-insured and loss-pooling programs 
checked below, which are administered by the AWC RMSA for its members. 
 

Type of coverage Limits Deductible 
X All risk property coverage $250 million per occurrence $0 
X Liability coverage $15 million per occurrence $0 
X Employee fidelity blanket coverage $1 million per occurrence $0 
X Employer Liability (“Stop Gap”) $15 million per occurrence $0 
X Comprehensive auto liability $15 million per occurrence $0 
X Cyber liability $3 million per occurrence $0 
X Pollution liability $2 million per occurrence $0 

 
Under the AWC RMSA Coverage Agreement issued to the member referenced above, and within the limits 
and provisions of the above program, AWC RMSA has agreed to provide, to the certificate holder named 
above, defense, payment, and loss or indemnification funding in accordance with the terms of the Coverage 
Agreement, with the exception that no defense or indemnity is available for claims arising from the sole 
negligence of the certificate holder with respect to the referenced operations or activities. 
 
AWC RMSA is not an insurance company and therefore cannot name an additional insured or loss payee. 
 
Cancellation: Should the above described coverage be cancelled before the expiration date thereof, the AWC RMSA will provide 

notice to its members in accordance with its Coverage Agreement. Failure to provide such notice to the certificate 
holder shall impose no obligation or liability of any kind upon the AWC RMSA. 

 
This certificate is issued for information only and gives no rights to the certificate holder. This certificate does not 
amend, extend, or alter the coverage provided by the AWC RMSA. 

 

 
 
Carol Wilmes 
Director of Member Pooling Programs 
 
cc: City of Algona 
 

143

Section 12, ItemA.



 
 

Certificate of Coverage 
 
 
 
 

Certificate holder:  Policy number: None 
King County Parks  Term of certificate: 1/1/2024 – 1/1/2025 
201 Jackson Street  Annual re-issue: Yes 
Seattle, WA 98104    

 

RE: 2023 King County Parks Levy Grant Program 
 
Please be advised that the City of Algona is a member of the Association of Washington Cities Risk 
Management Service Agency (AWC RMSA) and participates in the self-insured and loss-pooling programs 
checked below, which are administered by the AWC RMSA for its members. 
 

Type of coverage Limits Deductible 
X All risk property coverage $250 million per occurrence $0 
X Liability coverage $15 million per occurrence $0 
X Employee fidelity blanket coverage $1 million per occurrence $0 
X Employer Liability (“Stop Gap”) $15 million per occurrence $0 
X Comprehensive auto liability $15 million per occurrence $0 
X Cyber liability $3 million per occurrence $0 
X Pollution liability $2 million per occurrence $0 

 
Under the AWC RMSA Coverage Agreement issued to the member referenced above, and within the limits 
and provisions of the above program, AWC RMSA has agreed to provide, to the certificate holder named 
above, defense, payment, and loss or indemnification funding in accordance with the terms of the Coverage 
Agreement, with the exception that no defense or indemnity is available for claims arising from the sole 
negligence of the certificate holder with respect to the referenced operations or activities. 
 
AWC RMSA is not an insurance company and therefore cannot name an additional insured or loss payee. 
 
Cancellation: Should the above described coverage be cancelled before the expiration date thereof, the AWC RMSA will provide 

notice to its members in accordance with its Coverage Agreement. Failure to provide such notice to the certificate 
holder shall impose no obligation or liability of any kind upon the AWC RMSA. 

 
This certificate is issued for information only and gives no rights to the certificate holder. This certificate does not 
amend, extend, or alter the coverage provided by the AWC RMSA. 

 

 
 
Carol Wilmes 
Director of Member Pooling Programs 
 
cc: City of Algona 
 

144

Section 12, ItemA.



City of Algona – Wetland Preserve Restoration & Interpretive Trail – 6416652
Task - 1.23

EXHIBIT F – NOTICE OF GRANT

Upon Recording Return To: 
King County 
Department of Natural Resources and Parks 
Parks and Recreation Division 
201 S Jackson Street, KSC-NR-5702 
Seattle, WA 98104-3855 
 
Document Title:  
Reference No. of Related Document: 
Legal Description:  
Assessor's Parcel No.:  
 

NOTICE OF GRANT
 
This Notice of Grant is effective as of the ___ day of __________, 202_, and is made 
and executed by the Parks Capital & Open Space Levy grant recipient, City of Algona, 
and King County (the “County”), a political subdivision of the State of Washington.  
 
________ is/are the owner(s) (the “Property Owner”) of the property(ies) in King 
County, State of Washington (the “Property”), legally described and attached hereto in 
Exhibit F-1. 
 
Pursuant to a Parks Capital & Open Space Levy Grant Agreement, between the King 
County and City of Algona, dated__________ (“Grant Agreement”), attached hereto as 
Exhibit F-2, City of Algona constructed a Facility Improvement “Facility” on the Property 
for the purpose of providing recreation for the public. A map of the Property and Facility 
is attached hereto as Exhibit F-3. 
 
The City of Algona hereby agrees to be bound by the terms of the Grant Agreement 
including the obligation to ensure public access to the Facility. 
                                          
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, City of Algona and King County have executed this Notice of 
Grant on the date set forth above.  

City of Algona 
 

KING COUNTY 

By:  _____________________________ 
 

By:  _____________________________ 
 

Name:  ____________________________ Name:  ____________________________ 
 

145

Section 12, ItemA.



City of Algona – Wetland Preserve Restoration & Interpretive Trail – 6416652
Task - 1.23

PROPERTY OWNER 

By:  _____________________________ 
 
Name:  ____________________________ 
 

146

Section 12, ItemA.



City of Algona – Wetland Preserve Restoration & Interpretive Trail – 6416652
Task - 1.23

STATE OF WASHINGTON ) 
   ) ss. 

COUNTY OF KING   ) 
 
 
I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that ____________________ is the person 
who appeared before me, and said person acknowledged that he/she signed this instrument, on 
oath stated that he/she was authorized to execute the instrument and acknowledged it as the 
____________________ of the City of Algona to be the free and voluntary act of such party for 
the uses and purposes mentioned in the instrument.  
 
 
Dated:  ___________________ 
 
 
 

________________________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC 

 
Print Name:  _____________________ 

My Commission Expires: ___________ 
 

STATE OF WASHINGTON ) 
) ss. 

COUNTY OF KING   ) 
 
 

I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that ____________________ is the 
person who appeared before me, and said person acknowledged that he/she signed this 
instrument, on oath stated that he/she was authorized to execute the instrument and 
acknowledged it as the ____________________ of KING COUNTY, a political subdivision of 
the State of Washington, to be the free and voluntary act of such party for the uses and 
purposes mentioned in the instrument.  
 
Dated:  ___________________ 
 
 
 

 
________________________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC 

Print Name:  _____________________ 

My Commission Expires: ___________

147

Section 12, ItemA.



City of Algona – Wetland Preserve Restoration & Interpretive Trail – 6416652
Task - 1.23

STATE OF WASHINGTON ) 
) ss. 

COUNTY OF KING   ) 
 
 

I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that ____________________ is the 
person who appeared before me, and said person acknowledged that he/she signed this 
instrument, on oath stated that he/she was authorized to execute the instrument and 
acknowledged it as the ____________________ of KING COUNTY, a political subdivision of 
the State of Washington, to be the free and voluntary act of such party for the uses and 
purposes mentioned in the instrument.  
 
Dated:  ___________________ 
 
 
 

 
________________________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC 

Print Name:  _____________________ 

My Commission Expires: ___________

148

Section 12, ItemA.



City of Algona – Wetland Preserve Restoration & Interpretive Trail – 6416652
Task - 1.23

NOTICE OF GRANT EXHIBIT F-1 – LEGAL DESCRIPTION

149

Section 12, ItemA.



City of Algona – Wetland Preserve Restoration & Interpretive Trail – 6416652
Task - 1.23

NOTICE OF GRANT EXHIBIT F-2 – GRANT AGREEMENT

150

Section 12, ItemA.



City of Algona – Wetland Preserve Restoration & Interpretive Trail – 6416652
Task - 1.23

NOTICE OF GRANT EXHIBIT F-3 – PROPERTY AND FACILITY MAP

151

Section 12, ItemA.



City of Algona – Wetland Preserve Restoration & Interpretive Trail – 6416652
Task - 1.23

EXHIBIT G – CULTURAL RESOURCE PRESERVATION REQUIREMENTS

Based on the initial cultural resources review, the following recommendation(s) is/are 
conditions and/or requirements for this Project:

Grant Recipient will consult with the King County Historic Preservation Program's 
Archaeologist, Philippe LeTourneau, at 206-477-4529 or 
philippe.letourneau@kingcounty.gov, to determine the need for cultural resources 
investigations prior to ANY ground disturbing activity associated with the project. The 
Grant Recipient shall be required to comply with any recommendations made by the 
Archaeologist, which may include a cultural resource study and/or archaeological 
monitoring of construction conducted by a qualified, County-approved, professional 
archaeologist at the Grant Recipient’s expense. The professional archaeologist selected 
to complete any needed fieldwork will notify the King County Archaeologist as soon as 
their fieldwork is scheduled. Any resulting survey or monitoring reports will meet the 
Washington Department of Archaeology and Historic Preservation's reporting 
standards. If a report is needed, the professional archaeologist will create a new project 
in WISAARD (as needed), upload the report, and add the King County Historic 
Preservation Program as an Organization with Editor access. Reports shall include 1) a 
USGS topographic map and an aerial photograph showing excavation locations and 2) 
detailed stratigraphic information for the reviewed area. The King County Archaeologist 
will also advise on tribal coordination, if required. The selected professional 
archaeologist shall notify the Affected Indian Tribes of their field schedule so that the 
Tribes can send staff to observe the field work. The professional archaeologist may 
contact the King County Historic Preservation Program's Archaeologist with any 
questions about the scope of work. The Grant Recipient shall make a copy of the 
provided King County Parks inadvertent discovery plan (IDP) available to the 
construction contractor prior to the start of ground disturbance. The IDP will be kept on 
site during all construction. Grant Recipient shall cc their King County Parks grant 
manager on all emails with Historic Preservation Program staff. 

152

Section 12, ItemA.



 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL  

AGENDA BILL # 

City of Algona 

200 Washington Blvd. 

Algona, WA 98001 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

City Council Agenda Packet  04-08-2024  

ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT: 
 

   Resolution 1273-24, Traffic School Fee 

Agenda Date: April 8th, 2024   

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 

Mayor   
City Administrator  X 

City Attorney x x 
City Clerk  x 

Finance Dept   
PW/Utilities   

Planning Dept   
 Community Services   

Cost Impact: Police Dept   
Fund Source:  Finance Committee   
Timeline: 1st review - 3/11/2024 Planning Commission   

             2nd review - 3/25/2024 Civil Service Committee   
                  3rd review – 4/8/2024     

Staff Contact: James Schrimpsher, Chief of Police; Jessica Griess, City Administrator 

Attachments: Resolution 1273-24 

- 

SUMMARY STATEMENT:  

  Resolution 1273-24 increases the traffic school fee to $135.00, $11.00 more than the current fee. This is the 
first fee increase presented to Council since the start of the program.  

COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:  

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  

Make a motion to approve Resolution 1273-24. 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date:  Action: Vote:   

 

 

AB24-0117 

153

Section 12, ItemB.



{JZL4892-4138-1803;1/13150.000004/} 

CITY OF ALGONA 
RESOLUTION NO. 1273-24 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ALGONA, WASHINGTON, INCREASING THE FEE FOR 
ATTENDING THE CITY’S TRAFFIC SAFETY SCHOOL 
PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 10.15 AMC.  

 

 
 

WHEREAS, through the adoption of Ordinance No. 1157-18, the City Council 
created a traffic safety school, to be administered by the Algona Police Department, in 
order to educate participants in the proper, lawful, and safe operation of motor vehicles 
upon the roadway, the rules of the road, and the challenges of driving safely among 
bicyclists and pedestrians, and the consequences of unsafe driving practice; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City’s regulations governing the traffic safety school are codified 

at Chapter 10.15 of the Algona Municipal Code (AMC); and   
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to AMC 10.15.030, the Police Department charges a fee to 

attend the traffic safety school, with revenues collected therefrom used to reimburse the 
City for applicable administrative costs, safe driver education efforts, and/or to provide for 
the training of law enforcement officers; and 

 
WHEREAS, AMC 10.15.030 provides that the amount of said fee may be 

periodically amended by City Council resolution; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to increase the fee for attending the traffic 

safety school in order to reflect the City’s increased costs of operating the school, 
including without limitation increased vendor prices;   

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALGONA, 

WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.   Traffic Safety School Fee Increased. In accordance with AMC 

10.15.030, the fee to attend the City’s traffic safety school is hereby increased to $135.00.    
 
Section 2.   Effective Date. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon 

passage. 
 
 PASSED by the City Council of the City of Algona, at its regular meeting thereof 
this _____ day of __________, 2024. 
 
 
       CITY OF ALGONA, WASHINGTON 

 
 
 

154

Section 12, ItemB.



 Page 2 of 2 
  
4892-4138-1803, v. 1 
{JZL4892-4138-1803;1/13150.000004/} 

______________________________ 
Troy Linnell, Mayor 

(SEAL) 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 

Dana Parker, City Clerk 

155

Section 12, ItemB.


	Top
	Section 6, ItemA.	Minutes
	3-25-24 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Document (14)
	3-25-2024 City Council Workshop Meeting Minutes Document (6)

	Section 9, ItemA.	Ordinance 1233-24, Ziply Franchise Agreement, April 8th 2024, 2nd review
	Agenda Bill 24-0120
	1233-24 Algona Ziply Wireline Franchise 4890-0990-1217 v.3

	Section 9, ItemB.	Street Racing Ordinance 1234-24, April 8 2024, 2nd review
	Agenda Bill 24-0121
	1234-24 - Street Racing Regulations 2024

	Section 9, ItemC.	Parks, community center rental fees, April 8 2024, 2nd review
	Community Cental Rental Fees
	Agenda Bill 24-0118
	Edited Rental  Application For Community Center Rental

	Section 9, ItemD.	PW Surplus, Resolution 1275-24, April 8 2024, 1st review
	Agenda Bill 24-0122
	1275-24 Surplus of PW Property

	Section 9, ItemE.	2024 Budget Amendment #1, April 8 2024, 1st review
	1235-24 Budget amendment 2024 #1
	Exhibit A
	Exhibit B
	Exhibit C

	Section 9, ItemF.	IAM&AW CBA, Collective Bargaining Agreement, Union, April 8 2024, 1st review
	2024-2026 CBA

	Section 12, ItemA.	Resolution 1274-24, King County Parks Grant Agreement, 3rd review, April 8 2024
	Agenda Bill 24-0115
	1274-24 KC Capital Projct Grant
	KC Parks Grant Agreement

	Section 12, ItemB.	Traffic School Resolution 1273-24, 3rd review, April 8 2024
	Agenda Bill 24-0117
	1273 -24  Amending Traffic School Fee 2024 

	Bottom

